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PILIPINAS SHELL PETROLEUM CORPORATION
NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS® MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual meeting of the stockholders of PILIPINAS SHELL PETROLEUM
CORPORATION will be held at the Board Room, 14th Floor, Shell House, 156 Valero Street, Salcedo Village,
Makati City at 9:00 A.M. on 12 May 20135, for the following purposes;

(0
2
@)
(4)
4
(6)
(M
(8)

Approval of Minutes of the Annual Stockholders” Meeting held on 5 May 2014
President’s Report

Audited Accounts

Approval/Ratification of the Acts of the Board, Board Committees and Management
Election of Directors

Appointment of Auditors

Ratification of the Increase in Authorized Capital Stock

Any Other Business.

Makati City, 24 March 2015,

FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

WE ARE NOT SOLICITING YOUR PROXY.
YOU NEED NOT SEND US A PROXY.

Pilipinas Shel Petroleum Corporation
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-I8

Information Statement Pursuant to the
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Name of Registrant as specified in its Charter:

Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation

Province, couniry and other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization:

Makati City, Philippines

SEC Identification Number:
14829

BIR Tax Identification Code:
000-164-757

Address of principal office:
Shell House, No, 156 Valero Street, Salecedo Village, Brgy, Bel-Air, Makati City 1227

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:

(632) 816-6501 / 1227

The Annual Stockholders’ Meeting is scheduled on 12 May 2015 at 9:00a.m., Boardroom, 14"
Floor, Shell House, 156 Valero Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is to be first sent or given to security
holders:

20 April 2015

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC

Not Applicable.
Are any or all Corporation’s securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange?

Yes X Neo

Pilfpinas Shell Petroleum Corporation
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PART L.

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1,

@

Date, Tinte and Place of Meeting of Security Holders

The Annual Stockholders’ Meeting (ASM) of Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation (“Corporation”™) has been set on
the date, titne and place indicated below:

Date: 12 May 2015
Time: 900 am,
Place;  Boardroom, 14 Floor, Shell House, 156 Valero Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City

The mailing address of the principal office of the Corporation is:

Pilipinas Shell Petroleurn Corporation

Shell House, 156 Valero Street, Salcedo Village

Makati City 1227

The approximate date on which the information statement forms are to be sent or given to the security holders s 20
April 2015, The distribution of the information statement shall be made in CD format. Al required permits from the

Optical Mediz Board (OMB) for the distribution of the information statement in CD format have been secured.

Proxy Solicitation: We are not soliciting for proxy.

Item 2. Dissenter’s Right of Appralsal

There are no matters or proposed corporate actions which may give rise to a possible exercise by security holders of
their appraisal rights under Title X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines.

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

(a)

No current dircctor or officer of the Corporation, or nominee for election as director of the Corporation or any of their
associate, has any substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, in any matter o be acted
upen other than election to office.

No director has informed the Corporation in writing that he intends to oppose any action to be taken by the Corporation
at the meeting,

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereofl

@

(b)
{©

No. of Common Shares Outstanding as of 24 March 2015: 691,271,425

Number of Votes Entitled: One (1) vote per share

All stockholders of record as of 24 March 2015 are entitled to vote al the Annuval Stockholders” Meeting.
Manner of Voting

Article 11, Sections 6 and 7 of the Amended By-Laws of the Corporation provides, as follows:

Fillpinas Shell Petroleum Corporation
ry information t(20-15)
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“Section 6. Voting: At every meeting of the stockholders of the Company, every
stockholder entitled to vote shall be entitled to one vote for each share of stock standing
in his name on the books of the Company and may vote ¢ither in person or by proxy duly
given in writing in favor of another person who need not be a stockholder and presented
to the Sceretary for inspection and record at or prior to the opening of the meeting
provided, however, that at all meetings for the election of Directors the shares of stock
shall be voted as provided in the Corporation Law. No proxy bearing a signature which
is not legally acknowledged, if unrecognized by the Secretary, shall be recognized at any
meeting.

Section 7. Election of Dirvectors: The clection of Directors shall be held at the Annual
Meeting of the stockholders in each year and shall be conducted in the manner provided
by the Corporation Law, and with such formalitics and machinery as the Officer
presiding at the meeting shall then and there determine.”

(d) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management as of 24 March 2015 (information
required by Part IV paragraph (C) of “Annex C” to the extent known by the persons on whose behalf the solicitation is

made}.

[} Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners (of more than 5%) of Common Shares as of 24

March 20i5:
Title of Name, Address of Record Name of Citizenship No. of Percent
Class Owner and Relationship Beneficial Owner Shares
with Issuer and Relationship
with Record
Owner
Common Shell Overseas Beneficial and Dutch 463,988,998 67.1%
Investments B.V. Record Owner
Carel van Bylandtlaan
30, 2596 HR the Hague
The Netherlands
- Parent Company
Common The Insular Life Beneficial and Filipino 134,702,822 [9.5%
Assurance Company, Record Owner
Lid.
The Insular Life Bldg,,
Ayala Avenue cor.
Paseo de Roxas, Makati
City
- Shareholder
Common Spathodea Campanulata | Beneficial and Filipino 34,991,752 5.1%
Inc. Record Owner
General Aviation Center
Domestic Airport
Compound
Pasay City
- Shareholder

Pilipings Shell Petroleum Corporation
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The stockholders who hold more than 5% ownership arc:

(i) Shell Overseas Investmenis B.V.

Shetl Overseas lnvestments B.V. operates as a holding company and is based in The Hague, the
Netherlands. It is owned 100% by Shell Petroleum N.V. (SPNV).

The Corporation’s Chairman and President, Mr. Edgar O. Chua, and in his absence, Vice President for
Finance, Mr. Shaiful B. Zainuddin, are the proxy holders whe shall vote the shares of this stockholder.

(ii} The Insular Life Assurance Company Limited

The Insular Life Assurance Company Limited is engaged in carrying out the business of life assurance in
all its branches and in particular, the grant or effect of assurances of all kinds for payment of money by
way of single payment or by several payments or by way of immediate or deferred annuities upon the
death of or upon the attaining a given age by any person or persons or upon the birth or failure of issue or
subject to or upon a fixed or certain date irrespective of any such event or contingency

The Chairntan, Mr. Vicente R. Ayllon, or President, Mr. Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco, is the proxy holder
who shall vote the shares of this stockholder.

(iii) Spathodea Campanulata Inc.

Spathodea Campanulata Inc, is a domestic corporation whose primary purpose is to acquire by purchase,
exchange, assignment, gift or otherwise, and hold, own and use for investment or otherwise, and to sell,
assign, transfer, exchange, mortgage, pledge, traffic and deal in and with and otherwise to enjoy and
dispose of, any bonds, debentures, promissory notes, shares of capital stocks, or other securities or
obligation’s, created, negotiated or issued by any corporation, association or other entity, foreign or
domestic and in real and persona! property of all kinds in the same manuer and to the extlent as a juridical
person might, could or would do, and while the owner thereof, to exercise all the rights, powers and
privileges of ownership, incleding the right to receive, collect, and dispose of, any and, all dividends,
interest and income, derived therefrom and the right to vote on any shares of the capital stock, and upon
any bonds, debentures, or other securities, having voting power as owned, and to issue proxies for said
purposes, but only to extent permitted by law, provided it shall not act as brokers or dealers in securities.

Mr. Carlos R. Araneta is the proxy holder who shall vote the shares of this stockholder.

2}  Security Ownership of Directors and Management as of 24 March 2015:

AMOUNT
AND NATURE
TYFEOF | NAMEOF BEREFICIAL POSITION OF NATIONALITY | PERCENTAGE
BENEFICIAL
OWNERSHIP

Director/Cliairman & o
Common Fdgar . Chua President 23 (direot) Filipino 0.0000032%

. . . Director /Treasurer/ . o
Common Shaiful B. Zainuddin VP- Finance 1 {direct) Malaysian 0.06000014%
Commen Fernando Zobel de Ayala Director 1 {direct) kiltpino 0.0UIV014%
Comunon Vicente R. Ayllon Director 17 {direct) Filipino 4.0000025%
Contmon Carlos R. Arancta Director [ (direct) Filipino 0.00000014%
Common Mayo Jose B, Ongsingeo Director 3 (direet) Filipino 0.00000043%

Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation
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Mona Lisa Bautista Dela

Conunon Cruz Nominge Director o! Filipine 0%
Comnton Cesar B, Bautista Director I (direct) Filipino 0.00000014%
Common Cesar A. Buenaventura Director { (direct) Filipino 0.000000i4%
Common Eduard R. Geus ﬁﬁs:g;ggﬂ; i (direct) Dutch 0.00000014%
Common | AMhORYIAWIREED: | pieoion/VP- Reta | (direct) Eilipio 0.00000014%
Common i Director | irect) Filipino 0.00000014%
Ramon Del Rosardo Commvu:i;ations None Fitipino Not Applicable
Homer Gerard L. Ortega \g;l(—)!::::;z None Filipino Not Applicable
Dennis G. Gamab VP 7;:;?)}?‘% and None Filipino Not Applicable
Atty. Jannet C, Regalado VP-L;‘%i lr/e(g:rymomte None Filipino Not Applicable
Assistant Corporate
Atty. Erwin R. Orocio Sec;:lél:rgrqfl;\;c:g:;nee None Filipine Not Applicable
Secrelary
Alty. Mnr[i)aig;)urdm 0. C}(i?;c:irgf:g:c}::::;y None Filipino Not Applicable
Security Ownership of all Directors and Officers S1 0,0000072%
None of the members of the Corporation’s directors and management owns 2.0% or more of the outstanding

capital stock of the Corporation.

3)  Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

The Corporation knows of no person holding more than 5% of common shares under a voting trust or similar

agreement,

4y Changes in Control

There are no arrangements which may result in a change in control of the registrant.

(¢} No change in control of the registrant has occurred since the beginning of its last fiscal year.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Directors

(@)(1) Annex “C” Part IV, Paragraph A

{i) Directors and Executive Officers

There are eleven (11) members of the Board, three (3) of whom are independent divectors. The members of the
Board of Directors are elected at the general meeting of stockholders, and shall hold office for a terin of one (1) year

I Ms, Mona Lisa Bautista Dela Cruz shall he proposed to replace Mr, Mayo Jose B. Ongsingco due to the latter's retirement from The Insutar Life
Assurance Company Limited, Mr. Ongsingeo’s shares shall be tmnsferred to Ms. Dela Cruz on 12 May 2015 to qualify her as nominee to a

Board seat.

Pllipinas Shell Pelroleum Corporation
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or until their successors shall have been elected and qualified. A director who was elected to fill any vacancy holds
office only for the unexpired term of his predecessor.

The Officers of the Corporation, unless reimoved by the Board of Directors, shall serve as such until their successors
are ¢lected or appointed.

The following are the incumbent directors and officers of the Corporation:

Name Age Citizenship Position
Edgar O. Chua 58 Filipino Director/Chairman & President
Fernando Zobel de Ayala 54 Filipino Independent Director
Cesar A, Buenaventura 85 Filipino Independent Director
Cesar B, Bautista 77 Filipino Independent Director
Vicente R, Ayllon 84 Filipino Director
Mayo Jose B, Ongsingco 63 Filipino Director
Carlos R. Araneta 69 Filipino Director
Shaiful B, Zainuddin 49 Malaysian Director/Treasurer
Anthony Lawrence ). Yam 50 Filipino Director/ VP-Retail
Eduard Geus 49 Dutch Director/VP-Manufacturing
Sebastian C. Quiniones, Jr. 55 Filipino Director
Ramon Del Rosario 55 Filipino VP-Communications
Homer Gervard L, Ortega 48 Filipino VP-Human Resources
Dennis G, Gamab 50 Filipino VP-Trading and Supply
Atty. Jannet C, Regalado 52 Filipino VP-Legal & Corporate Secretary
Atty. Erwin R. Orocio 45 Filipino Asst. Corporate Secretary

Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors

The names of persons listed below are expected to be nominated as Members of the Board of Directors for the
ensuing calendar year.

Messrs. Femando Zobel de Ayala, Cesar B. Bauwtista, and Cesar A. Buenaventura, who are all incumbent
independent directors, will be nominated anew by stockholder Mr. Edgar O. Chua, who is also the Chairman and
President of the Corporation. They have continuously possessed the qualifications and none of the disqualifications
of an independent director from the time they were first elected as such, The nominees for independent directors are
not related to Mr. Edgar Chua.

In compliance with the Securities & Exchange Commission (SEC) Notice dated October 20, 2006, the Corporation
will submit updated Certifications of Qualification for the Independent Directors within thirty (30) days from their
election.

Nominations of all directors of the Corporation follow the process and procedures of the Board Nomination
Committee approved by the Corporation’s Board and submitted to the SEC. The members of the Board Nomination
Committee are Messrs. Cesar A, Buenaventura (Independent Director and Chairman of the Nominations
Committee), Edgar O. Chua, Homer Gerrard L. Ortega (VP-Human Resources and Non-Voting Member) and Jannet
C. Regalado.

Final list of nominces for the Board of Directors for 2015 to 2016 is as follows:

The final list of nominees, including the independent directors, as endorsed by the Nomination Committee, to the
Board of Directors of the Corporation for the ensuing year are:

Edgar O. Chua (Filipino) Carlos R. Arvaneta (Filipino}

Cesar A. Buenaventura (Filipino) Shaiful B. Zainuddin (Malaysian)
Fernando Zobel de Ayala (Filipino) Anthony Lawrence D. Yam (Filipino)
Cesar B, Bautista (Iilipino) Sebastian Cortez Quiniones, Jr, (Filipino)
Vieente R. Ayllon (Filipino) Eduard Rudolf Geus (Putch)

Mona Lisa Bautista Dela Cruz (Filipino}

Pilipinas Stell Petroteum Corporation
Preliminary Information Statement (20-15)
24 March 2015
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Below are the profiles of current members of the Board of Directors and the new nominees to the Board seats:

Edgar 0. Chua (58 years old, Filipino) — has been a Divector of the Corporation since 1998. He is the current
Chairman and President of the Corporation. He is also a director and the President of the various Shell
companies in the Philippines, He served the Corporation as: GM — Censumer Markets (Commercial OP
East) from 2001 to 2003; GM — Conmmercial Marketing (ASEAN+) from 1999 to 2000; VP —~ Marketing from
1998 to 1999; GM — Marketing in 1998; GM of the Shell Company of Cambodia from 1995 to 1997; Energy
Demand Analyst, Group Planning for SIPC frem 1993 to 1995; Supply Planning & Trading Manager from
1991 to 1993; Lubricants Manager from 1989 to 1991; Consumer Development & Services Manager in 1988;
Economics Assistant in the Supply Trading Department from 1986 to 1988; Inventory Management & Manila
Movements Assistant from 1985 to 1986; General Auditor in 1985; Internal Auditor from 1983 fo 1985, Heis
a director of joint venture companies wherein the Corporation has investment, He is currently an
Independent Director at Energy Development Corporation (EDC) and Integrated Micro Electronics Ine. at
IMI (IMI), He also serves in the Advisory Board of Coca-Cola FEMSA Philippines, Globe Telecom, Inc. and
Mitsabishi Motors Philippines, Inc. He received a Bachelor of Science in Chemical Engineering degree from
the De La Salle University in 1978, He was born on the 9™ of October 1956,

Fernando Zobel de Ayalu (54 years old, Filipino) — has been an Independent Director of the Corporation for
more than five years, He is the Vice Chairman, President, and COO of Ayala Corporation. He is also:
Chairman of Ayala Land, Inc, Manila Water Company, Inc, AC International Finance Ltd.,, Ayala
International Pte Ltd,, Ayala DBS Holdings, Inc,, Alabang Commercial Corporation, AC Energy Holdings,
Ine, and Hero Foundation, Ine.; Co-Chairman of Ayala Foundation, Inc.; Co-Vice Chairman of Mermac,
Ine,; Director of Bank of The Philippine Islands, Globe Telecom, Inc,, Integrated Micro-Electronics, Inc,
Livelt Investments, Ltd,, Asincom Philippines, Ine.,, AG Holdings Limited, Ayala International Holdings
Limited, Al North America, Inc.,, Vesta Property Holdings Inc., Honda Cars Philippines, Inc., Isuzu
Philippines Corporation and Manila Peninsula; Member of The Asia Society, World Economic Forum,
INSEAD East Asia Council, and World Presidents’ Organization; Chairman of Habitat for Humanity’s Asia-
Pacific Capital Campaign Steering Committee; Vice Chairman of Habitat for Humanity International; and
Member of the Board of Trustees of Caritas Manila, Pilipinas Shell Foundation, Kapit Bisig para sa llog Pasig
Advisory Board and National Museum. He received a Bachelor of Arts in Liberal Arts degree from Harvard
Coltege in 1982, In 1993, he received a Certificate in International Management (CIM) Programme from
INSEAD, He was horn on the 14™ of March 1960,

Cesar A. Buenaventura (85 years old, Filipino) — has been an Independent Director of the Corporation for
more than five years. He is the Chairman of Buenaventura, Echauz and Partners, Inc. He is the Vice
Chairman of DMCI Holdings, Inc. He isa Director of Phil. American Life Insurance Co,, PetroEnergy
Resources Corporation, Semirara Coal Company, and Manila International Aivport Authority. He was
founding Chairman of the Pilipinas Shell Foundation Inc, and founding member of the Board of Trustees of
the Makati Business Club. He was a recipient of many awards, among which are Management Man of the
Year in 1985, Qutstanding Fulbright scholar in the field of business by the Fulbright Association in 2008, He
was also awarded as one of the Top Alumnl Engineering Graduates of the University of the Philippines, In
1991, he was personally granted the award of Honorary Officer of the Order of the British Empire by her
Royal Majesty Queen Elizabeth IL He received a Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering from the
University of the Philippines in 1950. In 1954, he received a Master of Science in Civil Engineering from the
Lehigh University in Pennsylvania as a Fulbright Scholar, He was born on the 18™ of December 1929,

Cesar B. Bantista (77 vears old) — has been an Independent Director of the Corporation for more than five
years. has been a Founding Trustee of the Institute of Corporate Director and the Institute of Solidarity for
Asia, He is a Director of Steel Asia (Phil) Ine., Philratings Services Inc¢,, D&L Indusiries, Ine,, First
Philippine Holdings Cerporation, Phinuna, Inc, and Maxicare Healtheare Inc. He is also Chairman of CIBI
Information Inc. and St. James Ventures, Inc. He was Chairman and President of Unilever (Philippines),
Chairman of Biocon (Philippines), International Starch Corp, (an affiliate of U.S, Natfonal Starch Corp.) and
Director of ABS CBN Communications, Inc., Chartist Insurance Inc., and Bayan Telecommunications, Inc.
After his career with Unilever, he also served the government as: Secretary of the Department of Trade and
Industry; Chairman of the Board of Investments, the Presidential Econontic Monitoring and Mobilization
Task Force, Export Development Council, Industry and Development Council, WTO/AFTA Advisory
Commission, the National Development Corporation, The Presidential Commitftee on National Museum
Pevelopment, Cabinet Committee on Tariff and Related Matters, Econromic Growth Areas/Zones; Meonetary
Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation
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Board Member, representing the President and the Cabinet Man in charge of Region IIl. He was also
appointed: Ambassador to the United Kingdom, Ireland, Tceland and Permanent Representative (o the
International Maritime Organization and alse as Special Envoy to Europe. Upon his return from Europe, he
was tasked to establish the National Campetitiveness Council, the Task Force for Competitive Services &
Tricustries, and appointed to he the country contact to the U.S. Millenium Challenge Corporation. He was
also named to represent the country in the ASEAN-ROK Eminent Persons Group, and in the ASEAN
Masterplan for Connectivity, He received a Bachelor of Science in Chemical Engineering from the University
of the Philippines in 1958. In 1959, ke received a Master of Sclence in Chemical Engineering from the Ohio
State University. He completed the graduate management program from IMEDE of Switzerland in 1983, He
is the chairman of the International Chamber of Commerce (Phil), the English Speaking Union (U.K), and the
compefitiveness committee of MAP. He is in the Board of the Foundation for Glebal Concerns, European IT
Services Corp., and Adviser Emeritus to the Secretary of Trade & Industry on Strategic Roadmaps. He s a
Multisectoral Governance Councilman of the Armed Forces of the Philippines Transformation. He was born
on the 19" of December 1937,

Vicente R. Ayllon (84 years old, Filipino) — has heen a Director of the Corporation since 1985, He is Chairman
of the Board and CEO of The Insular Life Assurance Co, Lid.; Chairman of the Board and President of
Inswlar Life Property Holdings, Inc. (formerly Vigan Realty, Inc); Chairman of the Board of Insular
Investment Corporation, Insular Health Care, Insular Foundation, ILMADECO, Home Credit Mutual
Building & Loan Association; Vice Chairman of Unfon Bank of the Philippines and Mapfre Insular Insurance
Corporation; Director of Shell Co. of the Philippines, Ltd., The Palms Couatry Club and Rockweli Land
Corporation. He was also: Chairman of Asian Hospital, Inc,, Insular Life Savings & Trust Co., Insular
General Insurance Co., Inc,, FGU Insurance Corporation, Universal Reinsurance Corporation, Filipinas Life,
China Underwriters Life & Gen. Insurance Co. (Hongkeng), Asian Institute of Managentent Council of
Presidents, Madrigal Business Park Commercial Estate Association and Tabangao Realty, Ine,; President of
Shell Chemical Co. of the Philippines, The Insular Life Assurance Co,, Ltd. and Association of Insurers and
Reinsurers of Developing Countries; He was Director of Philippine Hoteliers, Ine,, Purefoods Corporation,
Bank of the Philippine Islands, Ayala Land, Inc,, Engineering Equipment, Inc,, Filipinas Foundation, Inc.,
Family Bank, Filinvest Credit Corporation, Insurance Instifute for Asia & the Pacific, Globe Telecom
(GMCR, Inc.)), Keppel Phils. Holding, Inc., Kepphil Shipyard, Inc., Insular Century Hotel, Davao, Araneta
Properties, Inc. and LIMRA International; Trustee of Life Underwriting Training Council. He received a
Bachelor of Science in Commerce degree from the University of the East in 1952. In 1969, he reccived a
Certificate in International Management from the Waterloo University., He also attended the following
courses: Harvard Advance Management Program in the Far East in 1963, Agency Management at the
LIAMA in Chicago in 1965 and the Top Management Program at the Asian Institute of Management in
1979. He was bora on the 23rd of January 1931.

Maye Jose B. Ongsingeo (63 years old, Filipino) — has been a Director of the Corporation since 2002. He is
President and Chief Operating Officer of The Tnsular Life Assurance Co, Ltd, He is also: Chairman of
Insular General Insurance Agency, Ine. and Insular Life Employees® Retirement Fund; Vice Chairman of
Insular Life Health Care, Inc.; President and Vice Chairman of Insular Life Management & Development
Corp.; Vice Chairman, Board & Excom of Home Credit Mutual Building & Loan Assoc, and Vice Chairman
Excom of Unionbank of (he Philippines,; Director of Insular Investment Corporation, Insular Life
Foundation, Insular Life Property Holdings, Inc., Mapfre-Insular Insurance Corporation, Pilipinas Shell
Petroleum Corporation, Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc., and Pamplona Realty, Inc. He is also a trustee of
the De La Salle College of St. Benilde, DLSU Parents of University Students Crganization, DLSU PUSO
Foundation and Foundation for Carmelite Scholastics, He received an AB Economics and Bachelor of Science
in Commerce degree, major in Accounting (Magna Cum Laude) from the De La Salle University in 1974, In
1977, he received n Master of Business Administration from the University of the Philippines. He also
completed an Advance Investment Banking Course from INSEAD in 1996. In 1999, he received a Master of
Nationat Security Administration degree from the National Defense College of the Philippines, graduating
Class Valedictorian, He alse completed the Naval Command and General Staff Course at the Philippine Navy
Naval Education & Training Conunand in 2001. He was born on the 8" of May 1951.

Carlos R. Avaneta (69 years old, Filipino) — has been a Director of the Corporation since 1986. He is a Director
of Araneta Properties, Inc, and Chairman of Spathodea Campanulata Ine. He received a Bachelor of Sclence
in Business Administration degree from Boston University in 1967, In 1971, he received a Bachelor of Law
degree from the Ateneo de Manila University. He was born on the 24™ of March 1945,
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Shaifid B, Zalnuddin (49 years old, Malaysian) - joined Shell in 1988 in Retail Development and Network
Planning and then undertook vartous assignments in Shell companies in Malaysia in Finanee and LNG
business. He spent 4 years in Melbourne as Planning & Appraisal lead for the Oceania Cluster Downstream
businesses, Thereafter he returned to Malaysia and took on the role as the Finance Manager of Shell Refining
Company in Port Dickson as well as the Cluster Manufacturing, Supply & Distribution M for Malaysia &
Thailand, Shaiful was next appointed as the Controller/Finance Divector for Shell Oman Marketing
Company, a position he held until 2008, He then assumed role as the DS Finance Implementation Manager for
East, Canada, responsible for rolling out the Streamline Finance processes and delivery of the Finance
Functional Plan for multiple countries in East region, Canada. In 2011 December he took the Long Term
International Assignment here in Manila Philippines as Cluster Cantroller for Philippines and North pacific
Island and representing PSPC as Vice President for Finance, Shaiful graduated from the University of Kent
at Canterbury, B.A. with Honours in Accounting with Computing and alse took the Executive Business
Leadership Programme in INSEAD Singapore, He was born on January 21, 1966,

Anthony Lawrence D, Yam (50 years old, Filipino) - is the Vice-President for Retail Business in Pilipinas Shell,
He joined Shell in August 1986 and has served the company as Operational Excellence Manager for the
Customer Service Center from mid-2010 to mid-2011, He has been the Refail Pricing Manager from Iate 2009
to mid-2010, Inferim General Manager for LPG Business from May-October 2009 and Retail District
Manager for Metro Manlia from 2005 to 2009. He was assigned in Vietnam for a cross-posting assignment as
General Manager for LPG from 2001-2005. Prior to his cross-posting assignment, he was the Seuthern
Reglonal Sales Manager for LPG (Phil). from 1997-2001 and has served Shell in various support roles from
1993-1997, that included stints in Corporate Brand, Customer Service Center, Lubricants and Internal
Audits. He started his career as a sales representative for Retail from 1986-1993. He received his Bachelor of
Science in Industrial Management Engineering minor in Mechanical Engineering degree from the De La Salle
University in 1985, He was born on December 20, 1964,

Sebastian Cortez Quiniones, Jr (55 yenrs old, Filipino) - is currently the General Manager/Managing Director
of Shell Philippines Exploration BV, appointed into the position in 2009, He served as: General Manager
Distribution of Philippines and North Pacific Islands from 2001 te 2009-during that period he was alse a
Director and Chairman of the Board of Pandacan Depot Services, Ine; Vice President Supply of Pllipinas
Shell Petroleum Corporation from 2000 to 2001-during that period he was also a Director of the Batangas Bay
Carriers, Inc and First Philppines Holding Corporation; Reflnery Superintendent of the Pililla Refinery from
1995 to 2000; Operations Shift Manager, Start-up Team member and Process A Manager from 1991 to 1995;
Site Focal for STAR BDEP in Shell Internationale Maatschapij BY in the Hague Netherlands from 1989 to
1991; Process Manager of the Shell Tabangao Refinery 1986 to 1989; Refinery Technologist of the Shell
Tabangao Refinery from 1981 to 1986. He was a Philippine Science High School scholar, and an NSDB
Scholar at the University of the Philippines where he studied Chemical Engineering, He was born on the 10th
of January 1960,

Eduard Rudolf Geus (49 years old, Dutch) - is the General Manager and Vice-President for Manufacturing of
the Corporation since 5 May 2014, He served as: Senior Advisor Refining — Secondee to Statoil Refinery
Mongstad, Norway from 2011 to 2013; General Manager Global Operations — Shell WindEnergy Inc,,
Houston, USA from 2007 to 2011; Business Improvement Leader — Couronnaise de Raffinage, Shell Refinery
Petit Couronne, France from 2006 to 2007; Process Unit Manager — Counronnaise de Raffinage, Shell Refinery
Petit Couronne, France from 2003 to 2006; Senior Technologist — Couronnaise de Raffinage, Shell Refinery
Petit Couronne, France from 2000 to 2003; Distillation and Membrane Technology Technologist — Shell
Global Solutions, Amsterdam, The Netherlands from 1996 to 2000; Technologist — Sela Refinery, Norske
Shell, Norway from 1993 to 1996; Base Oil Technologist - Shell Internationale Petroleum Maatschappij, The
Hague, The Netherlands in 1993, He received a Master’s Degree in Chemical Technology from the Technical
Unlversity Delft, the Netherlauds in 1988, and a PhD Degree in Technical Sciences also frem the Technical
University Delft in 1993, He was horn on the 9th of July 1965,

Mona Lise Bautista Dela Cruz (57 years old, Filipine) — is the Assistant Manager to the Exccutive Vice-
President of Insular Life Assurance Company Lid. and shall take over as President and Chief Operating
Officer of Insular Life Assurance Company Ltd, by 1 May 2015. She has been a directer of Insular Life
Health Care, Inc,, ILAC General Agency, Inc., Insular Investment and Frust Corporation, Home Credit
Mutual building and Loan Association, Insular Life Development and Management Corporation, and
Professionnal Services, Inc. (The Medical City). She has also been a Trustee of the Insular Life Foundation,
Inc. She received her Bachelor of Science degree in Statistics from the University of the Philippines and
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graduated Crm Laude in 1978, She likewise completed her Masters Degree in Science and Mathematics,
majoring in Actuarial Science, in the University of Michigan In 1979. Her memberships include the Actuarial
Society of the Philippines, the Society of Actuaries, USA, and the International Actuarial Assoctation. She
was born on the 5 of June 1957,

Final List of Nominees for Appointment as Corporate and By-Laws Executive Officers for 2015 to 2016:

The final list of nominees for appointment as Corporate/By-Laws Executive Officers for the ensuing year are:

Edgar O. Chua* Chairman & President Filipino
Shaiful B. Zainuddin* Vice President — Finance/Treasurer Malaysian
Homer Gerrard L. Ortega Vice President — Human Resources Filipino
Eduard Geus* Vice President — Manufacturing Dutch
Dennis (. Gamab Vice President — Trading and Supply Filipino
Anthony Lawrence D. Yam™* Vice President — Retail Filipino
Ramon Del Rosario Vice President — Communications Filipino
Jannet C. Repalado Vice President — Legal Filipino
Erwin R. Orocio Corporate Secretary Filipino
Maria Lourdes O, Dino Asst, Corporate Secretary Filipino

*Member of the Board of Directors

Below are the profiles of incumbent and new nominee/s for appointment as Corporate/By-Laws Executive Officers:

Other By-Laws Executive Officers (who are not dircctors/nominees to the Board}):

Homer Gervard L. Ortega (48 years old, Filipino) - has been the Vice President for Human Resources
since April 2007. He has served the Corporatlon in several assignments: as HR Change Manager supporting
Shell's Retail businesses in Asin/Pacific/Middle East countries (2005-2007); HR Capability Manager also for
Shell's Retail businesses in Asia/Pacific/Middle East (2002-2004); Retail Operations Manager (1999-2001); HR
Transition Management Team Member (1997-1998); HR Recruitment & Training Adviser (1996-1997}); and,
Retail Territory Manager (1990-1995). He studied at the University of the Philippines In Diliman, Bachelor of
Science in Business Administration and Accountancy (1984-1989); and, became a Certified Public Accountant
in 1990, He was born in Quezon City on 13" January 1967.

Dennis G. Gamal — (50 years old, Filipino) - has been Vice President for Trading and Supply since 2010. He
Joined the Corporation in 1987 and has served the Corporation as: Vice President for Supply from 2005-2009,
Road Transport Manager for the Philippines from 2000 - 2008, Secondary Logistics Economist from 1998 -
2000, Logistics Project Implementor in 1997 - 1998, Poro Installation Manager in 1995 - 1997, crossposting
asslgnment in Dubai 1992 - 1995 as Marine and Lubricants Distribution Head, Bataan Depat Manager 1990 -
1992 and Plant and Transport Assistant and various other Distribution jobs from 1987 - 1990, He received a
Bachelor of Science in Mathematies from the University of the Philippines in 1987, He was bora on the 12" of
February 1965,

Raman Del Rosario (55 years old, Filipino) — has been the Vice President far Communications since 19 August
2014. He graduated with a Bachelor of Sclence degree in Mechanical Englueering from the University of the
Phitippines in 1980. Following his Bachelor’s degree, he took a Masters degree in Business Administration
from the Ateneo de Manila Graduate School of Business in 1981, He also took up several trainings in Program
Management, Sales Effectiveness, Cultural Awareness, Marketing, Lubricants Business, and other technical
courses. He started his career in 1981 as a Commereial Fuels Account Manager in the Corporation before
wmeving progressively to broader and more senior roles. He held vavious posifions in Lubricants, Marlketing
and Sales, Brand and Market Research, Commercial Fuels, and GSAP. He gnined extensive international
exposure in his overseas assignments with the Shell Company of Cambodia Ltd,, where he held the position of
a Marketing and Sales Manager, Prior to his current assignment, he was assigned to Shell's Regional Offices
with responsibility over Commercial Transport Marketing Development, Consumer Lubricants, and Sales
Ist. Tan 2007 to 2008, he became the Country Implementation Manager and organized the gap analysis of local
pracesses relative to global Streamline design and policies. He then became the Country Programe Manager
in the successful Streamline, Global SAP, Organizational Design, and Connected Applications deployment in
the Philippines. Mon became the Shell Gas (LPG) Philippines In¢, General Manager in 2009 and succeeded in
transitioning the LPG business from PSPC to Isla Gas Corporation, Two years after, he became the Chief
Executive Officer of Isla LPG Corporation. He was born on 19 July 1959,
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Jannet C. Regalade (52 years old, Filipino)} — has been the General Counsel and Corporate Secrefary since
2001, She is the Vice President for Legal and Corporate Secretary of Pilipinas Shell Petroleum
Corporation and Is concurrently Royal Butch Shell’s Managing Counsel for Global Litigation Asia Pacific
covering the Phillppines, China, New Zealand, Korea, Japan, Indonesia, Brunei and the Pacific Islands,
Malaysia, Singapore, Thailand, India, Pakistan, Vietnam, Laos, Cambodia, and Australia. She is responsible
for managing and supervising a sizeable portfolio of litigation and arbitration in these jurisdictions involving
commereial, civil, eriminal, tort, environmental & employment matters and deals with a big network of Shell -
accredited global law firms, She has served the Company as: Employment and Industrial Relations Manager
from 1997 to 2001; Assistant Legal Counsel from 1994 to 1997; Legal Assistant from 1992 to 1994, Prior to
joining the Shell Companies in the Philippines (SCiP), she was corporate secretary of Fivst Lepanto
Corporation and was a legal counsel ot the Carpio, Yillaraza and Cruz Law Firin.  She graduated with high
henors with degrees in Bachelor of Arts in Political Science and Bachelor of Laws from the University of the
Phitippines (U.P.)., During her stint at the University, she was a student leader and very active in intra-
university debates and moot court competitions, She is also a faculty member of both the University of the
Philippines and the Lyceum College of Law and is active in several legal and professional organizations. She
is married to Atty. Reynaldo Regalado of the Regalado, Atienza and Mendoza Law Offices, with whom she
has three children. She was born on the 26th of November 1962.

Erwin R, Orocio (46 years old, Filipino) — is the Managing Counsel for Downstream, He is also the Assistant
Corporate Secretary of the Corporation, first elected as such on 17 April 2012. He also serves as the
Corporate Secretary for various Shell compantes in the Philippines. He joined the Legal department as a
Legal Counsel in November 1997 and has since advised all businesses and functions. Prior to that, he served
as managing partner of the Garcia Ines Villacarlos Gareia Recifia & Orocio Law Office.  He first joined the
Corporation as an accountant in 1991 and left in January 1996 to complete his Juris Doctor degree from the
Ateneo De Manila Scheol of Law. He graduated from the De La Salle University in 1989 with a Bachelor of
Arts (Major in Economics) and Bachelor of Science (Majm in Accountancy). He placed 13 in the
Accounting Board exams of May 1990. He was born on the 9™ of March 1969.

Maria Lourdes O. Dine (33 years old, Filipino) — serves as Legal Counsel for Downstream.  She is also the
Assistant Corporate Secretary for varions Shell Companies in the Philippines. She joined the Corporation’s
Legal Department in July 2012 and has since managed corporate legal issues and advised several businesses
and functions including Manufacturing, Lubricants Supply Chain, and Finance. Prior to joining the
Corporation, she was an associate in the Corporate Law & Taxation Team of Jimenez Gonzales Liwanag
Belle Valdez Caluya & Fernandez In 2006 and later served as in-house counsel of various multinational
companies including PeopleSupport Philippines, In¢, and Maersk GSC ROHQ, advising, collaborating with,
and assisting both local and foreign clients on corporate restructuring, corporate due diligence, mergers &
acquisitions, securities, regulatory compliance, corporate secretaryship, contract negotiations, immigration
law, labor law, and international trade control laws. She finished her Bachelor of Arts Degree in Political
Science from the University of the Philippines in three years and graduated Cum Laude in 2001, She then
went on te complete Lier Juris Doctor Degree from the Ateneo de Manila School of Law in 2005, Her
memberships include the International Honor Socicty of Phi Kappa Phi, the International Honor Society in
Social Sciences (Pi Gamma Mu), and the Integrated Bar of the Philippines. She was born on the 14th of
March 1981,

(i) Significant Employees

The Corporation values its human resources. It expects each employee to do his share in achieving the Corporation’s
st goals.

(iii) Family Relationship

None of the Directors and Executive Officers of the Corporation is related up to the fourth civil degree either by
consanguinity or affinity,

(iv) Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

For the past five years, none of the enumerated Directors or By-Laws’ Executive Officers or any of their property is
involved in any material pending legal proceedings in any court or administrative agency of the Government, except
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that, in connection with the leak of petroleum products from the First Philippine Industrial Corporation’s white oil
pipeline, the West Tower Condominium Corporation filed on 15 October 2011 a complaint for violation of Article
365 of the Revised Penal Code against several directors of the Corporation. The Corporation uses said pipeline to
transport its products from the Tabangao refinery to its Pandacan terminal. Preliminary investigation is ongoing
before the Departiment of Justice with the directors having filed their respective counter-affidavits on the 19th of
December 201 1. ’

To the knowledge and/or information of the Corporation, none of the cuirent and nominated dircctors and officers
were involved during the past five {5) years in any bankruptcy proceedings. Neither have they been convicted by
final judgment in any criminal proceeding, or subject to any order, judgment or decree of competent jurisdiction,
permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting their involvement in any type of
business, securities, commeodities or banking activities, or found in an action by any court or administrative bodies to
have violated a securitics and commadities law.

(a}(2) Annex “C” Part IV, Paragraph D(1} - Certain Relationships and Related Fransactions

The Corporation, in its regular course of trade or business, enters into transactions with attiliated companies. For
details on these transactions, please refer to the notes of the 2014 Audited Financial Statements attached to this
Definitive Information Statement as Annex “A”,

No other transaction was undertaken by the Corporation in which any Dircctor or Executive Officer was involved or
had a direct or indirect material intcrest. During the last two (2) years, there were no transactions to which the
Corporation was a party concerning transactions with;

i,  Any director/executive director;
ii. Any nominee for election as director;
ifi.  Any security holder of certain record, beneficial owner or Management; or
iv.  Any meinber of the immediate family of subpar (a){(2)(1), (ii} or (iii} of this paragraph (iv).

(@)(3) Annex “C” Part IV, Paragraph D(3) - Parent Company

Shell Overseas Invesiments B.V. owns 67.1% of the total issued and outstanding capital stock of the Corporation as
of 24 March 2015,

{b) Neo director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election for the Board of Directors since the date of the annual
meeting of stockholders due to any disagreement with the Corporation relative to the Corporation’s operations,
policies and practices.

Item 6. Compensation of Directors & Executive Officers

{a) Governing By-Laws Provision:

Directors, Article 111 Section 6 of the Corporation’s Amended By-Laws provides:

“Section 6 - Compensation: ‘The Directors as such shall not receive any salary or
compensation for their services, but for their attendance for each regular or special
mecting of the Board of Directors, they shall receive an honorarium not exceeding such
amounts as may be laid down from titme to time by the stockholders of the Corporation.
Nothing herein contained shall preclude any Director from serving the Company in any
other capacity and receiving compensation therefor.”

Officers. Article IV, Section 4 of the Corporation‘s Amended By-Laws provides that:

“Section 6 - Compensation: The Board of Directors shall from time to time fix the
compensation of the Officers and agents of the Company.”
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(b) Summary Compensation Table

Name and Prineipal Position Year Salary Other Variable Pay

I. Edgar O. Chua
Chairman and President

2. Shatful B, Zainuddin
Treasurer/VP - Finance

3. Ramon Del Rosario
VP - Communications

4, Dennis G. Gamab
VP - Trading and Supply

5. Homer Gerrard Ortega
VP - Human Resources

6. Anthony Lawrence D, Yam
VP - Retail

7. Eduard Geus
VP - Manufacturing

8. Jannet C. Regalado
VP - Legal/ Corporate Secretary

9. Erwin R. Orocio
Assistant Corporate Secretary
/Incoming Corporate Secretary

10, Maria Lourdes Q. Dino
Incoming Asst. Corporate Sceretary

Actual 2013 P 67.7 Million P 33.0 Million
President and By-Laws Officers Actual 2014 £69.1 Mitlion P-28.3 Million
Projected 2015 P 73.4 Million P 44,1 Million
All Directors as a Group (Honorariums & Actual 2013 P 8.090 Million
Retainers) Actual 2014 P 8.085 Million

Projected 2015 | =R 8.690 Million

*Profected total annual compensation

(¢} The total amnual compensation was ail paid in cash. The total annual compensation of officers includes the basic
salary, the mid-year bonus and the 13th month pay.

(d) The following amounts were paid to Board Members:

Director’s Honorarium for attendance in Board Meetings is Php 75,000.00 per director.
Total Director’s Annual Relainer’s Fee (Non-Shell Directors only) is Phpt,000,000.00 per director.
Honorarium for attendance at Board Cominittee Mcetings (Non-Executive Directors onty) is Php40,000.00 per director,
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(e)

f

(g)

The company has a registered, non-contributory retirement plan. All regular employees are covered by the said
retirement plan. The Executive Officers are regular employees of the Corporation,

The Corporation has no standard arrangement with regard to the remuneration of Hs existing directors and officers
aside from the compensation received as herein stated,

There are no other actions to be taken with regard to any bonus, profit sharing, pension/retirement plan granting of
extension of any option, watrant or right to purchase any securities,

Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

0

The Board Audit Committee, which is composed of Mr. Cesar B. Bautista (Chairman), Cesar A. Buenaventura
(Member) and Sebastian Quiniones (Member) recommended the re-appointiment of the accounting tirm of [sla Lipana
& Co. (PriceWaterhouseCoopers - Philippines) fformerly known as Joaquin Cunanan & Co.] as the principal
accountants and external auditors of the Corporation, The same accounting firm shall be reconnmended for re-
appointment at the scheduled Board Meeting on 24 March 2015, subject to final approval by the stockholders during
the annual meeting, for almost the same remuneration as in the previous year.

The same accounting firm rendered the same services for the Corporation during the most recent fiscal year, Mr.
Roderick M. Danao, Assurance Partner, has been in-charge of auditing the Corporation since 2014. For Y2015, . Mr.
Raderick M. Danao, Assurance Partner, is proposed to be the officer in-charge of auditing the Corporation.

The Corporation is in full compliance with the five (5) year rotation requirement for External Auditors under Section
68 of the Securities & Regulations Code (SRC), The Corporation’s external auditor for 2013 and 2014 was Isla Lipana
& Co. (PriceWaterhouscCoopers - Philippines). It was again represented in 2013 by its Assurance Partner, Ms.
Blesilda Pestanc who had been in charge of auditing the Corporation since 2011. She was replaced by Mr. Roderick
M. Danao, Assurance Partner, in 2014,

Representatives of Isla Lipana & Co. (PriceWaterhouseCoopers - Philippines) for the current year and for the most
recently completed fiscal year are expected to be present at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting, They will have the
opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be available to respond to appropriate
questions.

During the registrant’s {wo most recent fiseal years or any subsequent interim period,

(1} No independent accountant who was previously engaged as the principal accountant to audit the registrant's
financial statements, or an independent accoundant on whom the principal accountant expressed reliance in its
report regarding a significant subsidiary, has resigned (or indicated it has declined to stand for re-election afier the
completion of the current audit) or was dismissed; and

(2) No new independent accountant has been engaged as either the principal accountant to audit the registrant’s
financial statements or as an independent accountant on whom the principal accountant has expressed or is
expected to express reliance in ifs report regarding a significant subsidiary.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures

The accounting firm of Isla Lipana & Co, (PriceWaterhouscCoopers - Philippines) has been the principal accountants
and external auditors of the Corporation for the current and previous fiscal years. There are no changes in and
disagreements with mentioned accountants ot any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement
disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure.

Extemmal Audit Fees
1}  Audit and Audit-Related Fees

i Audit of the annval financial statements or services that are normally provided in connection with
statutory and regulatory filings or engagements:

2014: P 7.0 miltion pesos
201 5: P 7.0 million pesos

Piliplnas Skell Petroleum Corporation
Preffminary Infarmation Si t{26-15}
24 March 2015

Page 160f29




i, Other assurance and related services reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the
financial statements:

2014 None
20185; None

2) Tax Fees - Nil
3)  Ali Other Fees — Nil
4)  The Corporation’s Board Audit Commitiee’s (BAC) policies and procedures on “External Audit” are as follows:

i Review the external auditor’s proposed audit scope, approach and audit fee. Ensure that no unjustified
restrictions or limitations have been placed on the scope

ii, Review the perfonnance of the external auditors;

iil, Consider the independence of the external auditor, including reviewing the range of services provided in
the context of al non-audit and consulting services bought by the Corporation from the external audit
firm; and

iv. Make recomimendations to the Board regarding the appointiment/re-appointment of the external auditors.

The above are included in the Board Audit Committee and Intemal Audit Charters duly approved by the Board
and submitted to the SEC,

{tem 8. Compensation Plans

There is no action that will be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation may be paid
or distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Item 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

The Corporation will submit to its stockholders for approval an Eighteen Billion Peso (Phpl8,000,000,000.00} increase in
the Corporation’s capital stock approved by the Corporation’s Board of Direclors on March 24, 2015 (the “Capital
Increase™), which will result in the increase of the authorized capital stock of the Corporation from One Billion Pesos (Php
1,000,000,000.00) to Two Billion Five Hundred Million Pesos (Php2,500,000,000.00) divided into Twe Billion Five
Hundred Million {2,500,000,000) shares each with a par value of One Peso (Phpi.00) per share.

Out of the One Billion Five Hundred Million (1,500,000,000) shares of the increase in the Corporation’s authorized capital
stock, Nine Hundred Miltion (900,000,000} shares will be offered for subscription to the existing sharcholders of the
Corporation: in proportion to their sharcholdings as of 12 May 2015 (the “Record Date™), rounded-off to the nearest whole
share, at an Offer Price of Twenty Pesos (Php20.00) per share, The shareholders who fail to manifest timely their intention
to subscribe and/or pay for their subscriptions shall be deemed to have waived their pre-emptive rights and the untaken
shares shall be offered to shareholders who opted to subscribe to additional shares, in proportion to their sharcholdings as of
the Record Date, rounded-off to the ncarest whole share,

As previously disclosed via a 17-C Report, the Capital Increase is intended to reset the Corporation’s gearing to an
appropriate level, whicii has reached 92% as of 31 Decanber 2014,

The shares shall enjoy equal rank, preference and priority with the presently issued and outstanding common shares of the
Corporation and shall be entitled to any and all the rights attached to them under the Corporation Code and the
Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws.

Under the Corporation Code and the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation, shareholders shall enjoy preemptive rights to
subscribe to all issues or dispositions of shares by the Corporation in proportion to their respective sharcholdings,

Subscription for shares of capital steck of a corporation pursuant to an increase in its authorized capital stock, when no
expense is incuired, no commission, compensation or remuneration is paid or given in connection with the sale or
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disposition of such securities, and only when the purpose for soliciting, giving or taking of such subscriptions is to comply
with the required minimum 25% subscribed capital stock, is exempt from registration under the SRC. No notice or
confinmation of exemption is required to be filed for the issuance of shares pursuant to an increase in authorized capital
stock

‘There ave no provisions in the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation or By-Laws that would cause a delay or deferment or
in any manner prevent a change in control of the Corporation.

Item 10. Medification or Exchange of Securities

No action is to be taken with respect to the modification of any class of securities of the registrant, or the issuance of
authorization for issuance of one class of securities of the registrant in exchange for outstanding securities of another class,

Ttein 11. Financial and Other Information

@

(b}

The Audited Financial Statements as of 31 December 2014 approved by the Board of Directors in o meeting scheduled
on 24 March 2015 is attached to this Definitive Information Statement as Annex “A” for distribution to the
stockholders on 20 April 2015 and presented during the Annual Stockholders Meeting on [2 May 2015.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The financial statements (Statements of Income & Balance Sheets) are for the years 2014, 2013 and 2012 are shown in
Million Philippine Pesos.

2014 vs, 2013 Financial Condition

Cash and Cash equivalents decreased by 23% from PhP6.1 billion in 2014 to PhP4.7 billion in 2014, PhP7.8 billion
cash was generated from operational activities, PhP6 biltion cash used for investing {purchase of assets) activities, and
PhP3.2 billion used to pay interest and Loan.

Recelvables decreased by 1% from PhP15.7 billion in 2013 to PhP14 billion in 2014 due to overall price decrease of
oil compared to 2014 (108 USD per barrel to average of 61 USD per barrel in Dec 2014)

Inventories decreased by 43% from PhP28.5 billion in 2013 to PhP16.3 billion in 2014 due to reduction in production
from falling crude prices.

Prepayments and other current assets increased by 28% from PhP9.5 billion in 2013 to PhPI2.2 billion in 2014
mainly due to increase in input VAT and creditable withholding tax.

Property and equipment incressed by 26% from PhP14.8 billion in 2013 to PhPI8.6 billion in 2014 due to
investments in the refinery and as well as the North Mindanao Import Facility,

Deferred income tax assets increased by 256% from PhP 1.5 billion in 2013 te PhP5.3 billion in 2014 due to the loss
suffered during the year.

Qther Assets decreased by 19% from PhP1.2 billion in 2013 to PhP 1.0 biflion in 2014 mainly due to pension payment,
and increase in depreciation for software asset.

Account Payable and accerued expenses increased by 39% from PhP14.3 billion in 2013 to PhP19.9 billion in 2014
that is attributable to the long holidays at end of the year that pushed payment and check pick up in January 2015, We
were also granted longer credit terms for some intercompany payables as part of working capital initiatives.

Short term Borrowings decreased by 39% from Ph35.5 billion in 2013 to PhP21.6 billion in 2014 due to reclass to
current portion by PhP11 billion which is payable by 2015 and partly due to repayment.

Current portion of loans payable increased by 100% from Nil balance in 2013 to PhP11 billion in 2014 due to reclass
from short tenm borrowings which becomes payable in 2015.
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Loans payable increased by 9% from PhP11 billion in 2013 to PhP12 billion in 2014 to meet the working capital
requirements,

Stockhelder's Equity decreased by 69% from PhP12.6 billion in 2013 to PhP3.8 billion in 2014 mainly due to the
recorded net loss.

2013 vs. 2012 Financial Condition

Cash and Cash equivalents decreased by 11% from PhP6.9 billion in 2012 to PhP6.2 billion in 2013. PhP4.9 billion
cash was used for operational activities, PhP3.4 billion cash used for investing (purchase of assets) activities, and
PhP 1.6 billion used to pay interest and dividend, offset by PhP9 billion cash borrowed for the above activitics.

Inventories increased by 5% from PhP27 billion in 2012 to PhP28.5 billion in 2013 due to unplanned refinery
shutdown resulting to higher inventory volumes at year-end.

Prepayments and other current assets increased by 34% from PhP7.1 billion in 2012 to PhP9.5 billion in 2013
mainly due to increase in input VAT and creditable withholding tax.

Other Assets increased by 33% from PhP0.9 billion in 2012 to PhPL.2 billion in 2013 mainly due to pension asset
revaluation (PAS 19 on Employee Benefits).

Account Payable and acerued expenses decreased by 23% from PhP18.6 billion in 2012 to PhP14.3 billion in 2013
that is attributable to the decrease on importation from SIETCO — when the refinery had to do unplanned shutdown,
oftset by products being purchased locally.

Dividend Payable increased by 10% from PhP0.009 biltion in 2012 to PhP0.01 billion in 2013 due to cheques not
claimed by sharcholders — latter on becoming staled.

Short term Borrowings increased by 35% from PRhP26.3 billion in 2012 to PhP33.5 billion in 2013 due to increase in
refinancing of matured foan during 2013 compared to 2012,

Stockhalder's Equity decreased by 9% from PhP13.9 billion in 2012 to PhP12.6 billion in 2013 due to the recorded
net foss, payment of dividend and slightly offset by revaluation of pension assets (PAS 19 on Employee Benefits).

2014 vs. 2013 Results of Operation

Net loss after tax for the year 2014 was registered at PhP(8.5) billion down from the results of 2013 amounting to
PhP(0.9) billion. Higher cost of sales over Net sales translated to a negative gross profit margin. Operating expenses
also increased in 2014,

Net sales increased by 13%, from PhP198.8 billion in 2013 to PhP224.1 billion in 2014, Increased Sales revenues are
due to the increased sales volume from 5,309M Liters in YTD Dec 2013 to 5,627M Liters in YTD Dec 2014, These
were aided by the success of various national promotions i.e., Coca Cola, Project Bell (8M Advantage Card loyalty
program), raftle prize of a trip to the Ferrari Factory, Project Elite — for every Php1560 purchase of Shell V-Power
Nitro and fuels you get free Magnum Ice Cream, and also the increased demand from Power sector,

Cost of Sales increase by 20% from PhP187.2 billion in 2013 to Phi*225.4 billion in 2014 is mainly due to the increase
in the volumes coupled by the higher cost of production compared to the market crude rate.

Gross profit margin decreased from PhPi1.6 billion in 2013 (6% of net sales) to gross loss of PhP1.3 billion in 2014
(1% of net sales). decrease in margins were due decrease in Supply and Manufacturing business margins due to higher
operational costs and unplanned refinery shut downs.

Operating expenses increased to PhP9.4 billion in 2014, from PhP8.8 billion in 2013 due to the higher level of
operations increasing general and administrative and selling expenses,

Other non-Operating Income/ (Expense) decreased to PhPP0.02 billion in 2014 from PhP1.2 billion in 2013. This is
mainly due to the gain on sale of Shell Gas (LPG) Philippines Inc in 2012 to settlement of claim made to local
company in 2013,

Finance income (expenses) has decreased from PhP(2.4) billion in 2013 to PhP(L.6) billien in 2014, mainly due to
realized foreign exchange gain as compared to realized foreign exchange losses as a result of peso appreciation.
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2013 vs. 2012 Results of Operation

Net income/(loss) after tax for the year 2013 was registered at PhP(0.9) billion down from the results of 2012
amounting to PhP4.8 billion. Net sales increased in 2013 that translated to a higher gross profit margin. Operating
expenses, finance costs and other non-operating expenses also increased in 2013, On a normalized basis however, net
income after tax (NIAT) for 2012 was at PhP1.2B, if we take out the contribution of the sale of the LPG business,
Similarly during the current year, NIAT would be st PhP0.4B, if we deduct the settlement for claims of a local
company - i.e., in October 2013, the local company which bought the Corporation’s shares over SGLPI in 2012 filed
for claims in relation to the supply chain of SGLPI that was adversely affected by a supervening event. As such, the
Corporation entered into a new agreement to scitle the claims of the local company amounting to P1.2 billion. The said
amount was settted in December 2013,

Net sales increased by 5%, from PhP188.8 billion in 2012 1o PhP198.8 billion in 2013. Increased Sales revenues are
due to the increased sales volume from 5,056M Liters in YTD Dec 2012 to 5,309M Liters in YTD Dec 2013, These
were aided by the success of various national promotions i.e., Coca Cola, Project Bell (SM Advantage Card loyalty
program), V-Power Trip to Haly Promotion, increase in volumes from deals with PSALM, Thenna Marine and also the
increased demand from Power sector and the favorable impact of the government’s anti-smuggling measures.

Cost of Sales increase by 5% from PhP§78.1 bitlion in 2012 to PhP187.2 billion in 20£3 is mainly due to the increase
it the volumes coupled by the higher average cost of crude by USD3 in 2012 (higher beginning inventory prices/value)
vs. 2013 (lower ending inventory price/value).

Gross profit margin increased from PhP10.7 billion in 2012 (6% of net sales) to PhP11.6 billion in 2013 (6% of net
sales). Increase in margins were due to higher sales volumes and the average crude price being lower in 2013 by USD3
as compared to 2012 prices, offset by steep decrease in Supply and Manufacturing business margins mainly due to
unplanned refinery shut down in November.

Operating expenses increased to PhP3.8 billion in 2013, from PhP8.5 billion in 2012 due to the higher level of
operations incrcasing general and administrative and selling expenses,

Other non-Operating Income/ (Expense) — from other non-operating income in 2012 of PhP4.6 billion, PhP1.1
billion non-operating expense was registered in 2013. This is mainly duc to the gain on sale of Shell Gas (LPG)
Philippines, Inc. in 2012 vs. settiement of claim mads to local company in 2013,

Finance income {expenses) has increased from PhP(0.7) billion in 2012 to PhP(2.4) billien in 2013, mainly due to
foreign exchange losses as a result of peso depreciation and higher interest charges due to increased borrowings.

2014 vs. 2013 Capital Employed

Return on average capital employed is at -16% for 2014 compared to 2% in 2014, Average capital employed
decreased by 3% to PhP53.7 billion in 2014 from PhP55.1 billion in 2013 decrease in inventories and increase in Trade
and other payables offset by increase in fixed asset investment and increase in deferred tax asset due to incurred losses

as well as increase in input VAT,

Net working capital decreased from PhP45.6 billion in 2013 to PhP27.3 biltion in 2014, with major decrease in
Inventory due to falling crude prices.

Long term assets increased by PhP7.4 billion in 2014, owing to an increase in Property, Plant and Equipment (refinery
and terminal investments) and Deferred tax assets.

Net cash flow generared/(used) from operating activities but before working capiial changes anounted v PhP(5.1)
billion in 2014, which reflects the net operating loss for the year, Decrease in current assets, increasc in liabilities other
than provisions, dividends payable, short-term borrowings and loans payable resulted in net cash generated from
operating activities to PhP7.4 billion,

2013 vs. 2012 Capital Emploved

Return on average capital employed is at -2% for 2013 compared to 1% in 2012, Average capital employed
increased by 24% to PhP5$ billion in 2003 from PhP44 billion in 2012 that is mainly due to higher short-term
borrowings to finance a higher net working capital in 2013,
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Net working capital increased by PhP8 billion in 2013, maialy due to increase in volume of the inventory, increase in
input VAT prepayments and decrease in payables to related parties because of refinery shut dewn and products being

purchased locally.

Long term assets increased by PhP0.5 billion in 2013, owing to an increase in Pension plan assct and Propeity, Plant

and Equipment.

Net cash flow generated/(used) from eperating activities amounted to PhP(5) billion in 2013, which reflects the net
operating loss for the year, increase in current assets other than cash, decrease in liabilities other than provisions,
dividends payable, short-term borrowings and loans payable.

STATEMENTS OF INCOME:

2014 2013 2012
(as restated)
Net Sales 224,085 198,849 188,849
Cost of Sales -225,394 -187,219 -178,111
Gross profit -1,309 11,630 10,738
Operating Expenses, net 9,429 -8,780 -8.481
Income from Operations -10,738 2,850 2,256
Other non-operating income/ {(Expense) -8 -1,170 4,579
Finance Income (costs), net -1,629 2411 -748
Income/(Loss) Before Provision for Incomne Tax -12,385 731 6,087
Provision for Income Tax 3,896 -181 -1,287
Net Income/{Loss) for the Year -8,489 912 4,799
Earnings Per Share -12.28 -1.32 6.94
BALANCE SHEETS:
2014 2013 2012
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4,722 6,161 6,925
Receivables, net 14,005 15,064 15,538
Inventories, net 16,336 28,514 27,048
Prepayments and other current asscts 12,160 6,532 7,089
Total cuirent assets 47,223 59,871 56,600
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Long-term receivables, advance rentals
and investments 1,390 1,409 1,442
Property, plant and equipment, net 18,631 14,777 14,551
Deferred income tax assets 5,294 [,489 1, 480
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Other assets 965 1,187 894
Total non-current assets 26,280 18,862 18,367
TOTAL ASSETS 73,503 78,733 74,967
LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS
EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable & accrued expeinses 19,893 14,292 18,572
Dividends payable 10 10 9
Short-term borrowings 21,550 35,537 26,3106
Current portion of Loans payable 11,000 0 0
Total current liabilities 52,453 49,839 44,897
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term loans payable 12,600 11,000 11,000
Provisions and other liabilities 5,219 5,334 5,216
Total non-current liabilities 17,219 16,334 16,216
Total Liabilities 69,672 66,173 61,113
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 3,831 12,561 13,853
Key Performance Indicators
2014 2013 2012
Current Ratio 0.90 1.20 1.26
Earnings per Share (12.28) (1.32}) 6.94
Debt-to-Equity Ratio 11.63 3.70 2.69
Return on Assets (%) (11.15) (L% 6.89
Return on Equity (%) (104) (%) 34.90

Figures are based on Audited Financial Statements.
Current ratios are camputed by dividing current assets over current liabilities.

Earnings per share is computed based on the net income for the year divided by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period.

Debt-to-equity ratio resulted by dividing total borrowings (short-tenn and long-term borrowings}) over stockholder’s
equity.

Return on asscls percentage pertains to net income over average tolal assets while return oi equity percentage is
computed by dividing net income over average stockholder’s equity.

Known Trends, Demands, Developments, Commitments, Events or Uncertainties that will have a Material
Tmpact on the Issuer’s Liguidity

The Corporation has reviewed the known trends, demands, developments, comnlitments, evenis or uncertainties during
the reporting period and is of the opinion that there are no items which will have a material impact on the issuer’s
liquidity. (Kindly refer to Note 3,1.3 - Liquidity Risk of the attached Audited Financial Statements)
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Capital Expenditures Commitnents

For the year 2015, a budget of PhPS billion has been approved for capital expenditures. Bulk of the capital
expenditures will be allocated mainly for the new import facility in North Mindanao, Manufacturing Refinery upgrade
to handle Euro IV compliance project, its maintenance work and the expansion of service stations and the support of its
retail businesses.

Any Events that will Trigger Direct or Contingent Financial Obligation that is Material to the Corporation,
Including any Default or Acceleration of an Obligation.

There are no material or significant events during the reporting period that will trigger direct or contingent financial
obligation that is material to the corporation except for the cases enumerated under “Note 28 ~ Contingencies” in the
attached Audited Financial Statements. The Corporation, however, is confident that the liability, if any that may result
from the outcome of these cases and investigations will not materially affect the financial position or results of the
operations of the Corporation.

All Material Off-Balance-Sheet Transactions, Arrangements, Obligations & Other Relationships of the
Corporation with Unconsolidated Entities or Other Persons Created during the Reporting Period

There are no material off-balance-sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations and other relationships of the
Corporation with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

Known Trends, Events, or Uncertainties that have liad or that are Reasonably Expected to have a Material
Favourable or Unfavourable Impact on Net Sales/Income from Continuing Operations

The Department of Energy (DOE) issued Department Circular DC2613-09-0021, mandating standard specifications for
gasoline, in line with Republic Act §749 or the Philippine Clean Air Act of 1999. All oil companies must distribute and
sell gasoline blended with 10% ethanol with the following specifications: regular grade with at least a 91 research
oclane number {green); premium, 95 RON minimum (red); and premium plus, 97 RON minimum (blue). The circular
was signed by DOE Secretary Carlos Jericho Petilta last September 19, 2013; retailers have until Janvary 1, 2014 to
comply with the new standards.

Any Significant Elements of Income or Loss that did not arise from the Registrant’s Continuing Operatlons

There are no material elements of income or loss that did net arise from the registrant’s continuing operations during
the period.

Any Seasonal Aspects that had Materia) Effect on the Financial Condition or Results of Operations

There are no seasonal aspeets that have a material effect on the financial condition or results of operations during the
period.

Seasonal Aspects that has a Material Effect on the Financial statements

There are no seasonal aspects that have a material effect on the financial statements.

Description of the General Nature and Scope of Business

The Corporation is invelved in the manufacture and distribution of fuels, lubricating oils, base cils and bilamen and
specialities through its refinery and distribution sites and marketing of the same through nation-wide commercial and
retail networks.
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The principal products include motor fuels (gasolines), diesel, aviation fuel, fuel oil and a aumber of industrial and
specialty lubricants,

Twenty-two {22) terminals throughout the country ensure the fast and efiicient distribution of petroleum products from
the Corporation’s refinery in Tabangao, Batangas to its various installations and depots and finally to its customers.

Main fuel products and hydrocarbon solvents are transported via lorries and barges. The 110-km Batangas-Manila
white oil pipetine (WOPL) which was used as the prineipal utility in transporting fuel products was shutdown in late
2010 due to a major leak which affected a residential and commercial conununity in Bangkal, Makati, It remains closed
and the subject of a Writ of Kalikasan {Environment Writ} filed before the Supreme Court. Low sulphur fuel oil is
transported by barges from the Tabangao refinery. Supply to the rest of the country is transported by coastal tankers,
barges and road tankers. :

The Shell General Business Principles (SGBP), Code of Conduct and our Commitment and Policy on Health, Safety,
Security and Environment (HSSE) & Social Performance (SP) apply to alt joint ventures that the Corporation controls.

Pursuant to the SGBP, the Corporation contribules to sustainable development by helping to meet the world’s growing
energy needs in economically, environmentally and sociatly responsible ways. The Corporation aims to deliver benefits
and reduce its impact through the choices it makes about which projects to invest in, by making more energy efficient
products, and by reducing the impact of its operations. Global environmental standards define requirements for the
Corporation, These cover arcas like responding to oil spills, energy efficiency, continuous venting or flaring of natural
gas, air and water emissions from its facilitics and handling of waste. The Corporation develops products and services
to help meet the need for clean, convenient and affordable energy — for example by producing more cleaner-buming
natural gas.

Safety is a top prierity in the Corporation. As part of Shell’s policies, operations must take a systematic approach to
managing environmental impacts, using its Health, Safety, Security and Environment (HSSE) management system, The
Corporation aims to have zero fatalities and to prevent incidents like spills, fires, and accidents that put its people,
neighbors and facilities at risk. In 2010, the Corporation continued to strengthen its safety culture, It introduced new,
simpler safety policies to make it easier to understand and follow the rules and check if these are being implemented.

The energy the Corporation supplies helps to support economic growth and development. In its operations, the
Corporation aims lo address social concerns and work to benefit local communities, protecting its reputation as it does
business. [l aims to encourage economic and social development while reducing any negative impact of its operations.
The benefits the Corporation brings to local people can include jobs, tax revenue, contracting and business
opportunities and social investment. The Corporation implements various social investment programs throughout the
country, primarily through the Pilipinas Shell Foundation, Inc. (PSFI), which was established in August 1982 as an
independent non-profit organization.

Amount Spent on Research and Development:

R & D Costs 2014 2013 2012

Amount (in Million PhP) 81.30 23.194 21618

Cost and Effects of Complying with Environmental Laws:

The Clean Air Act

In keeping with the worldwide trend for cleaner fucls, the Philippines has been progressively moving towards adapting
more stringent fuel quality standards, Iargely patterned afier those enforced in the EU (“Euro Standards™). In 1999,
Republic Act 8749, otherwise known as the Philippine Clean Air Act of 1999, was signed into law, providing a legal
framework by which air quality in the country could be improved via a combination of fuel specifications and motor
vehicle standards, The Implementing Rules and Regulations (JRR) were finalized in 2000.
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Emissions from Stationary Sources

Following the implementation of the Clean Air Act, limits were imposed on sulphur dioxide, nitrogen dioxide and
particulate emissions from manufacturing facilities. Continuous emissions monitoring systems (CEMS) were installed
in Tabangao in 2001, The Corporation conducts a Relative Accuracy Test Audit of its CEMS as part of the regular self-
monitoring reporis to the EMB, which is the prescribed method.

Biofuels

The Biofuels Act of 2006 (Republic Act 9367) was implemented with the aim of reducing dependence on imported
fuets. It also aimed to develop and ulilize indigenous renewable and sustainable clean energy sources to reduce
dependence on imported oil; to mitigate toxic and greenhouse gas (GSG) emissions; to increase rural employment and
income; and to ensure the availability of alternative and renewable clean energy without any detriment to the natural
ecosystem, biodiversity and food reserves of the country.

The Corporation currently blends diesel with 2% coco methyl ester (CME) and gasoline with 10% ethanol.

Fuel Quality

In order to meet the significant reduction in aromatics (from 45% to 35%) and benzene (from 4% to 2%) content in
gasoline, the Comoration imports gasoline and gasoline components (purchased chiefly from other Shell companies in
the region).

Euro IV-Equivalent Specifications

On September 7, 2010, the Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR) issued a Department Order
{DAO 2010-23) on Revised Emission Standards for Motor Vehicles Equipped with Compression Ignition and Spark
Ignition Engines, mandating compliance of all new passenger and light duty motor vehicles with Euro TV (P) emission
lhnits subject to fuel availability, starting January 1, 2016.

Euro 1V vehicle emission technology requires a more stringent fuel quality i.e. 50 ppm sulfur content for both diesel
and gasoline, In 2012, the Department of Energy spearheaded discussions on the development of a Euro [V-PH fuel
specification to support DENR DAO 2010-23. The Corporation, as a regular permanent member of the Technicat
Committee on Petroleum Products and Additives (TCPPA), was actively involved and supportive of the development
of Euro IV (P) futel specifications.

The Department of Trade and Industry promulgated and released the Philippine National Standards {PNS) for gasoline
and diesel which mandates the infroduction of Euro IV-PH fuels not tater than Januvary 1, 2016, Modifications to the
refinery will be made in order for the asset to produce Euro 1V (P)-compliant fuels, Consequently, the Corporation has

approved the investment for the upgrading of its Tabangao refinery and is now geared towards the full mobilization of
its contractor to ensure the timely completion of the project to meet the required Euro [V implementation deadline,

Securities of the Registrant
I} Market Price

The Cerporation is not listed in the Stock Exchange,

2) Holders

The top twenty (20} stockholders of the Corporation as of 24 March 2015 are as follows:

Pilipinas Shell Petrofeum Corporation
Preliminery Information Stetement (20-15]
24 March 2015

Page250f29




{€)

Stockhoelder Name No., of Shares | Percentage
Shell Overseas Investments BV, 403,988,998 67.1211%
[The Insular Life Assurance Company, Ltd. 134,702,822 19.4862%
Spathodea Campanulata Inc, 34,991,752 5.0619%
Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation 12,538,713 1.8139%
Sagitro, Inc. 4,658,894 0.0740%
Lourdes T. Arroyo, Inc. 3,211,366 (.4646%
Carosal Development Corporation 3,183,000 0.4605%
BPI/MS Insurance Corporation 1,972,622 0.2853%
Severo A. Tuason & Co., Inc, 1,465,692 0.2120%
[Ayala Life Assurance, Inc. 1,342,198 0.1942%
Pan Malayain Management & Investiment Corporation 1,268,536 0.1835%
Sahara Management and Development Corporation 992,132 0.1435%
Ms. Ma. Lourdes G. Aragon 085,228 0.1425%
Manuel P, De Leon Jr, 817,572 0.1183%
Ms. Narcisa L. Escaler 817,450 (.1183%
Miguel P. De Leon 817,447 0.1183%
Victoria P, De Leon 817,379 0.1182%
Francisco Ortigas Securities, Inc. 812,311 0.1175%
IAboitiz & Company Retirement Plan 805,781 0.1166%
IZarcon Development Corporation 750,000 0.1085%

3} Dividends

Cash Dividend (per share)

Percent/Amount Record Date Payment Date
P7.04 per share 17 April 2012 17 May 2012
P{.689 per share 16 Aprii 2013 16 May 2013

No dividends were declared in the last fiscal year.
Dividend Policy

To the extent feasible, it is the policy of the Corporation to declare its unrestricted retained eamings as dividends
to sharcholders, The payment of dividends in the future will depend on the Corporation’s earnings, cash flow,
investment prograrn and other factors.

4y Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities, Including Recent Issuance of Securities Constituting an
Exempt Transaction

There are no recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities.

Compliance with leading practice on Corporate Governance

The Corporation has joined the Institute of Corporate Governance and has since been in ¢lose coordination with the
Institute for the establishment of a raling measure to detennine ihe level of compliance by the Board and Management
with the Corporation’s Manual of Corporate Governance. The Board of Directors has approved the establishment of an
Evaluation and Monitoring System for compliance with its Manual.
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Item 12.

The Corporation has required the Exccutive Directors as well as the Independent Directors to attend seminars on
Corporate Governance. Non-Exccutive Directors have also attended seminars on Corporate Governance aid are much
aware of the same.

The Manual of Corporate Governance of the Corporation, which was revised pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circutar
No. 9, Series of 2014, requires the yearly review of the Manual so as to be able to continually improve the same,

There have been so far no sanctions imposed as a result of violation of the Manual of Corporate Governance, The
Corporation is committed to strictly adhere to the requirements of the said Manual,

Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Simllar Matters

No action will be taken with respect to any transaction involving the following;

(a) the merger or consolidation of the registrant into or with any other person or of any other person into or with the

registrant;

(b} the acquisition by the registrant or any of its security holders of securities of another person;

{¢) theacquisition by the registrant of any other going business or of the assets thereof]

{d} the sale or other ransfer of all or any substantial part of the assets of the registrant; or

{e) the liquidation or dissolution of the registrant,

Item 13.

Acquisition or Disposition of Property

There arc no matters or actions to be taken up with respect to acquisition or disposition of any property by the Corporation.

Item 14.

Restatement of Accounts

There are no malters or actions to be taken up with respect to the restafement of any assel, capital, or surplus account of the
registrant,

D. OTHER MATTERS

Fem 15,

Action with Respect to Reports

The approval of the stockholders on the following actions will be taken up:

(@)

(h)
(c)

Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders held on 5 May 2014, with the following points:

1} Annual Report of the President;

2) Appointment of Auditors;

3) Election of Directors; and

4) Ratification and approval of the acts of the Board, Board Conunittecs, and Management,

Appraval of the Annual Report of the President for the vear ending 31 December 2014:

Ratification of all acts of the Board of Directors, Board Committees and Management for the period covering 5 May
2014 through 12 May 20135,

These acts are covered by Resolutions of the Board of Directors duly adopted in the normat course of trade or business
including the following;

i)  Approval of contracts in the course of business;
i) Approval of investment decisions;
iii) Treasury maiters related to opening of accounts and bank transactions;
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iv) Appointment of Executive Officers;

v}  Appointments to the Nomination, Reinuneration, and Audit Copunittees of the Corporation;
vi}) Endorsement of the nominees in the Board; and

vii) Appointment of signatories and corresponding amendinenis;

(d) Election of the Members of the Board of Directors, including Independent Directors, for the ensuing calendar year;
(e) Appointment of Externnal Auditors; and

(f) Increase in Authorized Capital Stock.

[tem 16, Matters Not Required to e Submitted

No action is to be taken with respect to any matter wlich is not required to be submitted to a vote of security holders.

Item 17. Amendment of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents

As previously disclosed via a [7-C Report last 2 March 2015, On 24 February 2015, the Board of Directors of the
Corporation directed the Management to progress preparations for a capitalization increase amounting to Eighteen Billion
Pesos (Php!8,000,000,000.00) to reset the Corporation’s gearing to an appropriate level (targeted at 55% by the end of the
current fiscal year), which has reached 92% as of 31 December 2014, In so doing, the Corporation needs to amend its
Atticles of Incorporation to increase its authorized capital stock.

On 24 March 2015, the Corporation’s Board of Directors approved the proposed increase of the authorized capital stock of
from One Billion Pesos (Php 1,000,000,000.00) to Two Billion Five Hundred Million Pesos {Php2,500,000,000.00} divided
inte Two Billion Five Hundred Million (2,500,000,000) shares each with a par value of One Peso (Php1.00) per share,

Item 18, Other Proposed Action

There are no other actions to be taken up other than those mentioned above,

Item 19. Voting Procedures

For the approval of the increase in authorized capital stock and corresponding amendment of the Corporation’s Articles of
Incorporation, the vote of the stockholders holding at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock shall be required.

The vote of stockholders representing a majority of the issued and outstanding capital stock entitled to vote (“simple
majority”) shall be required for the approval of the minutes of the previous stockholders’ meeting, the Annual Report of the
President, the ratification of all acts of the Board of Directors and Management in 2014, the appointment of the independent
external auditor for 2015, and the clection of directors for 20135,

The shares shall be voted/cast by “viva voce”. Traditionally, the shares are voted by verbal motion and duly scconded
during the meeting. A matier is carried and approved when there is no objection from the floor.

The Corporate Secretary and Assistant Corporate Secretary have been authorized to count the votes cast in corporate actions
requiring the vote of the shareholders.

UNDERTAKING

The Audited Financial Statements as of 31 December 2014 scheduled for presentment to and approval by the Board of
Directors on 24 March 2015 is attached to this Definitive Information Statement for distribution to the stockholders on 20
April 2015,

Upon written request of the stockholders, the Corporation undertakes to furnish said stockholder with a copy of SEC
Form 17-A free of charge except for exhibit attached thereto which shall be charged at cost. Any written request for a
copy of SEC Form 17-A shall be addressed to the following:
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PILIPINAS SHELL PETROLEUM CORPORATION
Shell House, 156 Valero Street
Salcedo Village, Malkati City

Attention: The Corporate Secretary

PART I1.

SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set forth in this
report is frie, complete and correel.

This report is signed in the City of Makati on 24 March 2015,

By:

' Pilipinas Sheil Petroletm Corporation
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Isla Lipana & Co.

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation
Shell House, 156 Valero Street

Salcedo Village, Makati City

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audiled the accompanying financial statements of Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation, which
comprise the balance sheets as al 31 December 2014 and 2013, and the statements of income, statements of
total comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended 31 December 2014, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free trom material
misstntement, whether due Lo fraud or error,

Auwclitor’s Responsibility

Our responsibilily is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits, We conducted
our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, ‘Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves pertorming procedures to abtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
finpucial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessinenl
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or ervor, In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control retevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that ave appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements,

We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis {or our

audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Filipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation as at 31 December 2014 and 2013, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 3t December 2014 in
aecordanee with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

Isla Lipana & Co., 29th Flooy, Philamlife Tower, 8767 Paseo de Ruxus, 1226 Makati City, Philippines
T 103 (2) 845 2728, F: +63 {2) 845 2806, www.pwe.con/ph

Ista Epana & Co is a Phiippine member firm ofthe PwG ieiwark, PG rafars o ke Phikpp'nn membar firmand may sometimes refer to Lhe PaG network. Each member
firnk is & separate legal endbty. Please see www.pac comfslructure fos furihies delaits, -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation
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Report on Burcau of Internal Revenue Requirement

Our audits were condueted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole, The supplementary information in Note 31 to the {inanciat statements is presented for
purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a requirved part of the basic financial
slatements, Such supplementary information is the responsibility of management and has been subjected
to the auditing procedurves applied in our audits of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the
supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole,

Istyy Lipana & Co.

Rofdrick M, Danao

Pajtijer

CPALert. No. 88453

P11 No. 0ot1280, issued on 6 January 2015 at Makati City

SEC A.N. (individual) as general auditors 1202-A, Category A; effective until 25 March 2015
SEC AN. (firm)} as general audilors 0009-FR-3; effective until 15 August 2015

TIN 152-015-078

BIR A.N. 08-000745-42-2015, isstied o11 20 January 2015; effective until 19 January 2018
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0142, effective until 31 December 2016

Makati City
24 March 2015



Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation

Balance Sheots
41 December 20 awd 2013
(Al amaunts in thousand Philippine Peso)

R CNotes 2014 2013
Current assets
Gash A 4,721,647 6,161,150
Receivables, net 6 14,004,594 15,664,026
inventories, net 7 16,336,347 28,514,218
__ Prepayments and ofher current assots 8 12160188 9,531806
Towl current assets 222,076 59,871,200
Nonsurent acaets e L
Long-term receivables, rentals and investments, net 9 1,389,755 1,408,419
Property and equipment, net 10 18,630,728 14,777,222
Defarred income tax assets. net : 11 5,293,028 1,488,694
Other assats, nel R 965,518 _ 1,186,782
© Total non-cureent assels 26,279,930 18,862,117
. Totalassets ' | . 73502706 7873337/
T e et s e e DI
Accounts payable and accrued cxpenses 13 19,892,922 14,291,762
Dividends payable 24 9,668 10,090
Short-term borrowings 14 21,650,000 35,537,000
Gurrent portion of loans payable 1 1000000 -
Tolal current liabilities 52,452,590 49,838,852
Non-current liabilities
Loans payable, net of current portion 15 12,000,000 11,000,000
Provisions and other liabifities o 6 5219474 5,333,830
~ Tolal non-current liabilities ) 17,219,474 16,333,830
Total liahilities 69,672,064 66,172,682
- Exquity
Share capital 17 768,885 758,885
Share premium 7,437,828 7,437,829
Treasury shares 17 {507,106} {607, 106)
Retained eamings (deficit) 18 (4,184,802) 4524 373
Other reserves - 12,25 325,836 346,714
~ Tolal equity 3,830,642 12,560,695

Total liahilities and cquity

73,502,706 78,733,377

The notes on pages 1 to 59 are integral part of these finaneial

statements.




Pilipinas Shell Petrolenm Carpovation

Statements of Income
For each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2014
(AR mounds in thousand Philippine Peso, except per share data)

Nc_;tes 2014

2012

2013
Gross sales - 238,238474  211,333279 202,079,909
Sales discounts and rebates (14,153,649)  (12484,415)  (13,231,199)
Net sales - 204,084,825 198,818,864 186,848,710
Cost of sales 20,24 (225,394,173) (187.218,810) (178,111,171)
Gross profit {loss) i - ©(1,309,348) 11,630,054 10,737,530
Selling expenses 21 {7,736,002) (6,624,184) (6,440,052}
General and administralive expenses 21 (2,049,212} (2,376,083} (2,202,157)
Other operating income, net 22 356,864 220,677 164.040
“ncome (L.oss) from operations (10,738.598) 2,850,464 2,256,370
Finance income 23 239,492 31,793 753,728
Finance expense 23 (1,868,787) (2,442,862} {1,501 635}
Gain on sale of subsidiary 9 - - 4,133,654
Other non-operating income (expense), net 24, 26 {17,650) (1,170,395) 445 158
ncome (Loss) before income tax (12,385,5143) {731,001} 6,087,275
Renefit from {Provislon for) income tax " 3,896,963 (181,107) (1,287,883)
Profit (Loss} for the year B (8,488,580) (912,108) 4,799,392
' Eérnm_;s (Loss) per share - basnc and diluted 19 (12 28)"“ o (1 .32} - 894

‘the notes on pages 1 lo 59 ave integral part of these financial stateinents,



Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation

Statements of Total Comprehensive Income

For each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2014

{All amounts in thousand Philippine Peso)

Notes 2014

2013 2012

Profit {Loss) for the year (8,488,580)
Other comprehensive income (loss)

tems that may not be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss

Remeasurement gain {loss) on retirement benefits,
net of tax 25 (220,595)

ltems that may be subsequently reclassitied to
profit or loss

increase (Decrease) in fair value of avaitable-for-sale
financial assets 12 {13,488)

{912,108) 4,799,392

191,101 60,711

{70,268) 101,246

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year (8,722,663)

(791,275) 4,961,348

The noles on pages 1to 59 are integral part of these financial statements.



Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation

Statements of Changes in Equily

For each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2o14

{All amounis in thousand Philippine Peso)

Other reserves

Share- Fair
Share Share Treasury  Retained based value
o capltat  premium stock carings reserve reserve  Total equity
~ Noles 17 17 18 25 12
Balances at 1 January 2012 758,885 7437829  (507,106) 5725059 233,492 13,647,869
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - 4,799,392 4,749,392
Cther comprehensive income
Increase in fair value reserve
of avaitable-for-sale
financial assets - . . - 101,245 101,245
Remeasurement gain
on retirement benefits (net of tax
amounling to 26,019} - - . BO7IT - - 60,71
__ Total eomprebensive income - - o 4,860,103 101,245  4.961,348
Transactions with owners ' o
Cash dividends - - . (4,863,980) - - (4,863,980)
§hare-based compensalion - - 108,016 - 108,016
_ Total transactions with ownars - - - (4,863,980) 108,016 - (a.755964)
Balances at 31 Docomber 2012 756,885 7437820 (507,106) 6,721,192 100,016 134437 13,853,253
Comprehensive income ) —
Loss for the year - - - (912,108) - - {912,108}
Other comprehensive income (loss}
Decrease in falr value reseive
of avaitable-for-sate
financial assets - . ~ {70,268} (70,268)
Remeasurement gain
on retirement benefits (nef of tax
amounting to P81,901) - - - 191,101 - tenien
Total comprehensive Income - - {721,007) - {70,268) (791,275)
Transactions with owners
Cash dividends - - - {475,812) - - (475.812)
Share-based compensation - - - - (25,471} - (25471)
" Total transaclions with owners - I - {475.812)  (25471) - (501,283)
“Balances at 31 Decomber 2013 756,885 7,437,820 (507,106) 4524373 82,545 264,169 12,560,695
Gompraehensive income
Loss for the year - . - (6.488,580) (8.488,580)
(ther comprehensive loss
Decrease in fair value reserve
of available-for-sale
financial assels - - - - - (13,488) (13,488}
Remeasurement 10ss
on retirement benefis {nel of tax
amounting to P94,641) - ) - - (220,595) - - (220,595)
" Total comprehensive income - - - (8,709,175} - (13.488) (8,722,663)
" Transactions with owners
___Share-based compensation - ) - - - {7,380) - {7.,320)
Total transactions with owners - - - - {7,380) - {7.300)
Balances at 31 December 2014 758,886 7,437,829 (507,106) (4,184.802) 75,155 250681  3,830642

The notes on pages 1 to 59 are inlegral part of these financial statements.




Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation

Statements of Cash Flows
For cach of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2014
{All amounts in thousand Philippine Peso)

Notes 2014 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activitics ’
fncome (Loss) before income tax {12,385,543) (731.001) 6,087,275
Adjustments:
Provision for inventory losses 7 2,825 684 28,749 69,650
Depreciation and amorlization 10, 12 2,288,297 1,883,108 1,774,900
Interest and finance charges 23 1,250,786 1,175,902 1,382,343
Accrelion expense 23 221,680 113,647 107,745
Unreafized foreign exchange loss (gain}, net 23 179,292 76,454 (71.,225)
Pension expense 25 167,440 175,454 203,219
Pravision for (reversal of) impairment of
receivables 21 114,022 (459 (45,593)
Share-based compensation 25 73,832 70,046 108,016
Unrealized mark-to-market loss {gain), net 23 59 525 11,343 (36,203)
Provision for legal case, net 16 56,214 56,214 14,619
Loss an disposal of property and equipment 22 16,582 78,782 122,513
Whrile-off of accounts receivable 6, 21 12,338 20,565 36,649
Gain on sale of subsidiary 9 - - (4,133,654)
Cost of claim setilement 26 - 1,283,395 -

] Inleresl income 23 {19,688 {31,793) {20,229
Opersting income (loss) before working capitaf changes (5,128,529) 4,229,404 5,601,025
Decrease (increase) in current assets other than cash 7,688,394 (4,146,673) (7.558,086)
Increase (decrease) in liabilitics other than

provisions, dividends payable,
short-term borcowings and loans payable 5,213,330 {4,748,362) {545,578}
Cash generated from (used in) operalions 7,773,195 (4,6G5,631) (2,502,619)
Taxes paid - - {9G,535)
Pension conlributions paid 25 {412.907) {442,263) {542,921)
Net cash from (used in) operating activities 7,360,288 (5.107,894)  (3,142,075)
Cash fiows from Investing activities
Decrease (increase) in other assels 431,341 (297 ,565) 1,270
Interest received 19,688 (371) 7,625
Decrease {increase) in long-term receivables,
rentals and investments, net 19,6684 32,550 (44,017}
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 4,336 175,058 17,333
Additions/Charges from provisions for ARG,
remediation and demolition costs 16 (95,478) 31,929 {79,528)
Additions to program and software, properly
and equipment 10, 12 {6,025,114) (1,860,020}  (2,767,876)
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary g - - 4.055,374
Seftlement of claims by local cormpany 6 - {1,283,395) -
Net cash from {used in) investing activitieg "5,545 563‘ {3,201,814) 1,190,121
Cash flows from fihancing activities
Net proceeds from (setliements of) shoit-term
borrowings 14 {13,987.000) 9,220,800 2,241,200
Proceeds from long-term loans payable 15 12,000,000 - 11,000,000
Cash dividends paid 18 (422) (474,865)  (7,028,949)
Interest and finance charges paid (1,170,326)  (1.189,679)  (1,385,172)
Net cash from {used in) financing activilies {3,157,748) 7,666,268 4,847,079
Net increase (decrease) in cash for the year (1,443,023) {753,452} 2,895,185
Cash at the beginning of the year 6,161,150 6,924 552 4,028,041
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 3,520 - {9.850) 3,358
- T s 4721847 6,161,150 6924552

Cash al the end of the year

The noles on pages 1 10 59 are integral part of these financial statements,



Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation

Noles to Financial Slatements

As at g1 December 2014 and 2013 and for each of the

three years in the period ended 31 December 2014

{All amounts in table are shown in thousand Philippine Peso
except per share data and unless otherwise stated)

Note 1 - General information

Pilipinas Shell Petrolenm Corporation {the “Company™) was incorporated in the Phitippines and
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SIC) on g Jamuary 1959 primatily to engage
in the refining and marketing of petroleum products. On 5 December 2008, the SEC approved the
extension of the corporate term of the Company for another {ifty {50} years from ¢ January 2009 to

8 January 2059,

The Company is 67% owned by Shell Overseas Tuvestiments BV (SOIBV), a corporation registered under
the laws of Netherlands and 33% owned by Filipine and other foreign shareholders, The ultimate
parent of the Company is Royal Duich Shell ple. (RDS) (incorporated in the United Kingdom),

The Company is considered a public company under Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68, as
amended on 20 October 2011, which among others, is any corporation with assets of at least Pso
million and it has two hundred (2oa} or more sharcholders, each of which holds at least one hundred
(100) shares of a class of its ecquity securilies. As at 31 December 2014, the Company has 359
shareholders (2013 - 359 and 2012 - 362), 333 of whom hold al least 100 shares of the Company’s
common shares (2013 - 337 and 2012 - 337).

The Company has its principal office al Shell House, 156 Valero Street, Saleedo Village, Makati City and
has an oil refinery in ‘Tabangao, Balangas and various oil depots and instaltations all over the
Philippines. The Company has 765 regular employees as at 31 December 2014 (2013 - 741 and

2012 - 747).

The financial stalements have been anthorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on
24 March 2015 upon endorsement by the Board Audit Comuuittee on 16 March 2015,

Note 2 - Sununary of significant accounling policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the finanefal statemenls are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS). The term PERS in general includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS), and interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC),
Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) which have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC)
and adopted by the SEC.



The financiaf statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as maodified hy the
revaluation ol available for sale financial assets, included in other assols,

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with PIRS reguires the use of cortain eritical
accounting cstimates. It also requires management Lo exereise its judgment in the process of applying
the Company’s accounling policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumplions and estimates are signifieant to the financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

{«) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The folowing standards have been adopted by the Company for the first time for the financial year
beginning on tJanaary 2044

o Amendment fo PAS g2, Finaneial instroments: Presentation” on offsetting financial assets and
Jinancial Habilities, This amendment clavifies that the vight of set-off must not be contingent on a
future event. 1 must also be legally enforeeable for all counterpartics in the normal conrse of
husiness, as well as in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey. The amendment also
considers setUement mechanisms. The amendment did not have a significant effect on the
Company’s financial statements,

s dmendent o PAS 36, Tinpairmend of assets’, on the recoverable amount disclosures for non
[financial asseis. This wimendment removed cerlain disclosures of the recoverable amount of CG s
which had been inchuded in PAS 36 by the issuc of PFRS 13, The amendment did not have a
significant effect on the Company's financial statements.

o Amendment to PAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement’ on the novation of
derivatives and the continuation of hedge accounting. ‘This amendment considers legisiative
changes to ‘over-the-counter’ derivatives and the establishent of central counterparties. Under
PAS 39 novation of derivatives to central counterparties would result in discontinuance of hedge
accounling, The amendmenlt provides relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of
a hedging instrument meets specified criteria. The amendment did not have a significant effect on
the Company’s financial stalements.

»  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, ‘Levies’, sets out the accounting for an obligation to pay a levy
if that tiability is within the scope of PAS 37, ‘Prouisions’. The interpretation addresses what the
obligating event is that gives rise to pay a levy and when a liability should be recognized. The
Company is not currently subjected to significant levies, the impact on the financial statements is
not material.

Other standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective for the financial year beginning
on 1 January 2014 are not material and not refevant to the Company.

(=)




{6) New stendeards, conendinents and interpretations net yel adopied by the Comprtny

A nnnber of nesw standards and amendmenis to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning aller : January 2014, and have not been applied in preparing these finaneial
statements, Nome of these standards are expeeted 1o have a significant effect on the financial
statements of the Company, excepl the following sel out helow:

o PFRS g, Financial instritments’, addresses the classification, measwrement and reeognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. The complete version of PERS g was issued in July 2014,
It replaces the puidance in PAS g9 that relates 1o the classification and measurement of financial
instruments. PFRS 9 retaing hut simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three
primary measuremcent sittegories for Gnaneind assels: amortized cost, fair vidue through other
comprehensive income (OCY and fair value through profit or loss. ‘The basis of classitication
depends on the entity’s business model aud the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financinl assel, Tovestments iw egqitily instrumenis are requiced 1o be measwred al fair value
through profit or loss with the irrevocable oplion al inceplion Lo present changes in faiv value in
QOCI not recyeling, There is now a new expected eredit losses model that replaces the incureed loss
impairment model used in PAS 39, For financial liabilities there were un changes to elassilication
and measuremoent exeept for the recopnition of changes in owo credit risk in other comprehensive
fucome, for liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. PIFRS ¢ relaxes the
requirements for hedsae effectiveness by replacing the bright line hedpe effectiveness lests, It
requeires au econontie relationship belween the hedged item and hedging inslnwment aad for the
‘hedged ratio’ lo be the smme as the one managensent actually use for risk management purposes,
Contemporancous docamentation is still required but is different to that currently prepared under
PAS 39. The slandard is effeclive for aceounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Early adoption is permitted. The Company's initial assessment of PFRS g's potential impact on its
financial stalements provides that it would change the classification of its financial assets but it will
not affect the measurement of its current types of financial assets. The Company will continue its
assesstoent and finalize the same upon effective date of the new standard.

o PFRS .15, Revenue from contraets with customers’, deals with revenue recognition and establishes
principies for reporting usefu! information to users of financial statements about the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows avising from an entily’s contracts with
cuslomers. Revenue is recoghized when a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus
has the ability to direct the use and ohtain the benefits from the good or service. The standard
replaces PAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and PAS 11 ‘Construction contraets’ and related interpretations. The
standard is effective [or annual periods beginaing on or after 1 January 2017 and carlier application
is permitted. The Company’s initial assessment of PFRS 15s potential impact on its {inancial
statements provides that its current revenue recoghition will not he signifieantly affected, The
Company will continue its assessment and linalize the same upon effective date of the new
standard,

There are no other standards, amendments or inlecprelations that are effective after 1 Jannary 2014
that are expected to have a material impact on the Company,

2,2 Cash

Cash cansists of deposits held at call with banks. Tt is carvied in the balance sheet at face amount or
nominal amouut.

(3)




2.3 Financial instruments

A financial instrwment s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enlity and a finaneial
liahility or equity instrument of another enlity. The Company recognizes a financtal instrument in the
balanee sheet when, and only when, the Company hecomes a party lo the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

2.3.1  Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets and liabilities according Lo the categories described below.
The classitication depends on the purpose for which the financial asscts were acquired, Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition,

(e} Financial assels

The Company classitics its financial assets in the following categories: fair valne through profit or loss,
loans and reeeivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale finaneial assets. The
Company’s financial assets are limited to loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.

() Loans and receivables

Loans and receivabies are non-derivative financlal assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and where management has no intention of trading. These are included
in current assets, exeept for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date, in which
case, these ave classified as non-current assets,

Included in this category are the Company’s cash (Note 5), trade receivables (Note 6), olther current
receivables (except for elaims from government and miscellaneous receivables) (Note 6), loans to an
catity under common shareholdings, marke! investment loans and other long-term receivables
(Note 9).

{i) Available-for-sale financial assels

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are eilher designated in this calegory or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the financial assels within 12 months from the balance sheet date. Available-for-
sate financial assets mainly represent unquoled equity sccuritics and proprictayy club shares and are
classified under other assets in the balance sheet (Note 12),

(b} Financlal Habilities

‘The Company classifies iis financial lixbiliides ai initial recoguiiion in the following categories: ai fair
vatue through profit or loss and other financial Habilities, The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial Habilities were acquired.

(i) Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises two sub-categories: financial liabilities classified as held for trading, and

financiat liabilities designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition,

(4)




A financial liability is classified as held for trading il it is acguired or incurred principaily for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near Lerm or if itis part of a pertfolio ol identificd financial
instrumends Lhat are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual patlee of
short term profit-taking. Derivatives are alse eategorized as held for trading unless they are designated
and effective as hedging instroments. Einanetal liabilitics beld for trading also include obligations to
deliver financial assets borrowed by a short selter,

A financial liability is classilied as financial Hability at {air value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition if: such designation significantly reduces measurvement or recoguition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; the financial liability forms group of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in necordanee with the
Company's docomented risk managewent or investimenl strategy, and infonnation aboul grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and PAS 39 periils the entire eombined contraet {asset or liability) to be designated as fair
value through profil or loss,

The Contpany’s foreign exchange forward contraets ave considered not significant in value and are
inchuded under aceounts payable and acerved expenses acconunt in the halance sheel. Such
arrangements qualified as a derivative and are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.

(it} Other financial Habilities

Issued financial instrunenis or their components, which are nol designated at {air value through profit
or loss, ave classitied as other financial habilities, wheve the substanee of the conlvaclual mrngement
results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or another {inaneial asset to the
holder, The Company’s financial liabilities under this category include accounts payable and accrued
expenses (excepl amounts due to government or its agencies) (Note 13), pavable to related parties
{Note 24), dividends payable (Note 24), shori-term borrowings {Note 1.}, loans payable (Note 15) and
cash security deposits (Note 16).

2.3.2  Recognilion and measurement

{ct) Initial recognition and measurement

Regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade dale (the date on which the
Company contmits to purchase or sell the asset) at invoice amount. Financial assets and labilities not
carried at fair value throuph profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs.

Financial liabilities carried at fair value through protil or loss ave initially recognized al fair value, and
transaction costs ave recagnized as expense in profit or loss.

(b} Subsequeni ineasureneni-

Loans and receivables are subsequently measuréd al amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

Availuble-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at faiv value. Unrealized gaivs and losses
atising from changes in the fair value of assets classificd as available-for-sale are recognized in other
comprehensive income,



Derivatives are subsecuently re-measnred at their fair values. The metharl of recognizing the resulling
gain or loss depends on whether the derivalive is designuted as 2 hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of the item being hedged, Gains or losses arising [rom changes in the fair value are presented in
profit or loss. Other financial linbilities are subsequently measured at amoctized cost using the effective
interest method,

Dividends on available-for-sale equily instruments are recognized in Lhe slatement of income as part of
other non-operating income when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.

2.4.3  Determination of fair value

The fair values of quoted investiments classified as available-for-sale financial assels are based on
current market prices. If the market for available-for-sale linancial assets is not active {and for unlisted
securities), the Company establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of
recent arm’s-length transactions with reference to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and
relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs (Note 2.4).

2.3.4 Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried af amortized cost

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Financial assels or a group of financial assels is
impairved and impairment losses ave incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset {a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events} has an impact on Lhe estimated future cash flows of the {inancial asset oy
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated,

Evidence of impairment may include indicators that the customers, group of customers, individual
debtor and/or group of individual debtors is experiencing significant financial diffieulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or other
financial reorganization, and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
eslimated fulure cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults,

The Company first assesses whether there is objective evidence of impairment exists individuaily for
recetvables that are individually significant, and collectively for receivables that are not individually
significant, If the Company determines thal no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed receivable, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of finaucial
asscts with similar evedit risk characteristies and collectively assesses those for impairment,
Receivables thal are individoally assessed {1 bapaicuent and Loy which an impainment loss is or
continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financtal usset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized in the statement of income. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the diseount rate forneasuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
detcrmined under the contracl, As a practical expedient, the Company may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price,
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impainment Toss deeveases and the decrease can be related
ohjeetively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s eredit rating), the reversal of the previously recognized impairment loss is recognized in the
stitements of income, Reversals of previously recorded impairment provision are based on the result
of management’s npdate assesstent, considering, the avaitable facts and changes in circiinstances,
including, but not limited 1o resulis of recent discussions and arrangements enteved into with customers
as 1o the recoverability of receivables at the end of the vepouting period, Subscequent recoveries of
amounts previously written-off are eredited against selling, general and administeative expenses in the
statenient of comprehensive tncome,

Reversals of previously recorded impairment provision ave based on the resull of management’s update
assessment, considering the available facts and changes in circumstances including but not limited to
results of yecent discussions and avrangements entered into with customers as to the recoverability of
receivables al the end of the reporting period. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previonsly wrilten-off
are eredited against selling, general and iwhminisiralive expenses in the statement of income,

{b) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidenee thal a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of available for-sale financial
assels, a signilicant or (oore than 20% of the original eost of the available-for-sale financial asset) or
prolonged (mare than one year after reporting date) decline in the fair value of the sceurity below its
cost is also evidenee that the assets are impaired. I any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss (imeasured as the difference between the acquisiiion cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit ov
loss) is removed from equity and recognized in statement of income. Iimpairment losses recognized in
the slateinent of income on equity instruments are not reversed through the statement of income.

2.3.5 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to reecive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially abf visks and rewards
of ownership,

Financial liahilities ave derecognized when extinguished, i.e., when the obligation is discharged or is
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial Hahility is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or Lthe terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original lability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the slatement of income.

2.4.6  Ofisctling hinancial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when theve is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an inlention to settle on a net
basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. As at 31 December 2014 and 2013,
there are no financial assels and finanedal liabilities that were olfset.
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2.4 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants al the measurement date.

The fair value of a non-financial assel is measured based on its highest and best use, The asset’s current
use is presined to be its highest and best use.

"The fair vatue of financial and non~financial liabilities takes into account non-performance risk, which
is the risk that the entity will not fulfill au obligation.

"The Company classifies its fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
sighificance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarehy has the following
levels:

s Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asscts or liabilities (Level 1),

» Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 Lhat ave observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indivectly {that is, derived from prices} (Level 2), ’

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (Level 3).

‘the appropriate level is determined on the basis of the lowest level inpult that is significant to the fair
vilue measurement.

‘The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted markel prices at the
reporiing date. A market is regarded as active il quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regnlatory agency, and those prices
vepresent actual and regularly oceurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis, The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in level 1. Instruments included in level t comprise primarily of cquity investiments
classified as available-for-sale. The Company’s investment in available-for-sale linancial assels (Note
12) which is measured at fair value at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is classified under level £, The
Company does not have non-financial assets and liabilities under Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that ave not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation technigues maximise
the use of observable market dala where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates, If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument arve observable, the instrument is
included in level 2, The Company’s derivalives in relation to forward contracts are classified under
level 2.

If one or more of the siguificant inpuls is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

*  Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments,

2 The fair value of interest rate swaps is caleulated as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows based on observable yield curves.

+  The fair value of forward foreigh exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at
the balance sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back Lo present value.

s Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.
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The Company does not have financial iustrnmieats and now-financial assets/liabilities classified under
level 3.

5 Receivables

Trade vecelvables arising from regular sales with average eredit term of 30 10 60 days and other current
receivables are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at amartized cost, less
provision for impaivment, Fair value approximates invoice amonnd due to short-term nature of

the financial assets, Other long-term reecivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortizad cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Provision for impairinent of receivables is established when there is objective evidenee that the
Company will nol be able to colleet all amounts due according to the orviginal terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankrapley or
{financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in payments is considered indicators that the
reeetvable is impaired, The amount of the provision is the difference hetween the asset's careying
amannt and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effeelive interest rate.
The carrying amount of the assel is reduced through the use of an allowance accoual and the amount of
Lhe provision is vecognized in the statement of income under selling expenses, and aeneral and
administrative expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written-off against the
allowance account for trade receivables, Subsequent recoveries of the amount previously written-off
are credited against selling expenses in the statemend of ineome.

2.0 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost is determined using the first-in
first-out (FTIFO) method for crude oil and finished products, and moving average method for materials
and supplies. Crude oil and finished products inventory is net of estimated volume of unpumpable
stocks. Cost of praducts sold includes invoice cost, duties, excise laxes, vefinery production overhead,
freight and pipeline costs and excludes borrowing costs, Net realizable value, in case of refined and
finished products, is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses (less further conversion costs, in ease of ecrude inventory), Provision for
inventory losses is provided, when necessary, based on management’s review of inventory movement
and condition of inventory item. Inventory losses, if any, is charged as part of cost of sales in the
Company's statement of income,

Crude oil and finished products are derecognized when sold, and materials and supplies are

derecognized when consumed. The carrying amount of these invenlories is charged to cost of sales in
statement of income, in the period in which the related revenue is recognized.
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2,7 Prepayments and other current assets

Prepaid expenses are expenses paid in cash and recorded as assels before they are used or consumed,
as the service or benefit will be received in the future. Prepaid expenses expire and are reeognized as
expense cither with the passage of time or through use or consumption.

Advance tax paynents related to inventories are recognized initially as prepayment and charged to
operations when products are sold.

Input VAT claims is stated at face value less provision for impairment, if any. Provision for
unyecoverable input VAT, if any, is maintained by the Company at a level considered adequate to
provide for potential uncollectible portion of the claim, The Conipany, on a continuing basis, reviews
the status of the claim designed to identify those that may require provision for impairment losses, A
provision for impairment of unrecoverable input VAT is established when there is objective evidence
that the Company will not be able to recover the elaims. "The carrying amount of Lhe asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of loss is recognized in the statement of
income. As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company has no provision for impairment of inpul VAT
{See Note 4.2,b).

2.8 Current and deferred incomne taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax, Tax is recognized in the statement
of incotne, except to the extent that that it velates to items recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
cquity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is caleulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, Management periodically cvaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected 1o be paid to the tax authorities.

Peferred income tax is provided in full, using the liabilily method, on temporary differences avising
hetween the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
The deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or Hability in
a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction affects cither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and ave expected to apply when
the refated deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferved income tax liahility is scttled,

Deferred incomme tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of
unused tax losses (net operating loss carryover or NOLCO) and unused tax credits (excess minimum
corporaie income tax or MCIT), w the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit wiii be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred income tax liabilities are
recognized in full for all taxable temporary differences, except Lo Lthe extent that the deferred tax
Habilily arises from the inilial recognition of goodwill.

The Company reassesses at each balance sheel date the need to recognize a previously unrecognized
deferred income tax asset,
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2.9 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are carvied at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Historical cost inchudes ils aequisition cost or purchase price and expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items necessary to bring the asset o its working condition and
lncation for its intended use, Cosls of assels under construction are acewmutated in the arcounts until
these projeets ave completed upon which they are charged to apprapriale property aceomts,

Subsequent costs are ineluded in the asset’s carrying anount or recognized as a separale asset, as
appropriate, only whenitis probable thal lilure economic benelits associated with the item will flow o
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecagnized. Al other repairs and maintenance are chargied to the statement of income diring
the financisl period i which they are incurred,

Assel retivement obligation (ARO) represents the net present value of obligalions associated with the
retireinent of property and equipment that resalied from acquisition, constraction or development ang
the normal aperation of propecty and equipment. ARO is recognized as patt of the cosi of the related
properly and equipment in the period when a legal or eonstructive obligation is established provided

that best estimate can be made, ARO is devecopnized when the related asset has been retired or
disposed of.

Depreeiation on property aud equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of cach asset ta its residual value over its estimated useful lives (in years), as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5to 40
Furniture and fixtures 5to 20
Machinery and equipment 3t0 30
Transporialion 5t025

ILeasehold improvements are amortized over the actual or anticipated term of the lease or estimated
useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter. Assets under construction are not subject to
depregiation until it is pul into operation.

ARO is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated life of the related assets or lease term (in
casc of leased assets) whichever is shorter,

Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset. The asscts’
residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Property and equipment are derecognized upon dispoesal or when no future econowmic benefits are
expecled from its use or disposal and related gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
procoeds sith the canying amount of assets. The cost and ielaied accuwmulaid depreciaiion of asseis
sold are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is eredited or ehavged to other
operating income (expense) in the statement of income.,

2,10 Intangible assets - computer software
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and

bring to use the specific software. These costs ave amortized over their estimated useful Jives of five
years from the time the softwave has been ready for its intended use in operations,
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Costs assucialed with maintaining compatter software programs are recogized ag an expense as
incurred in the statement of income,

Intangible assets are derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are cxpreted
from ils use ov disposal and relaled gains and Josses ou disposals are delermined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount of assets, The cost and related secumulated amortization of
intangible assels disposed arve removed from the accounts and any resulting gain ot loss is eredited or
clurged Lo other operating income (expense) in the statement of income.

The Company’s intangible assel is classitied as part of The “olher assels” aecount in the halanee sheel
{Note 12},

2.1 lovestments in subsidiary, associates and jointl arvangements
(a) Subsidiarics

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Company has conlyol. The
Company controls an enlity when the Company is exposed Lo, or has rights to, variable retarns frow its
involvenient willi the entily and has the ability to affect those returos through its power over the entity.
Subsidiarvies are fully consolidated from the date on which control is translerred 1o the Couprany, ‘They
are deconsolidated from the date that eontral ceases.

The Company applies the acquisition method o aceount for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the linbililies
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equily interests issued by the Company. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent labilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values al the acquisition date. On
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Company recognizes any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controiling interest’s proportionate share of the recognized
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets,

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred,

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrving value of the acquirer’s
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previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Company is recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date, Subscquent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset ox Jiability is recognized in accordance with PAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
tw viher comprchensive income, Contingent consideration that is elassified as equity is not re-
measured, and its subsequent settlement is not acecounted for within equity.

‘The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equily interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. I the lotal of consideration transferred,
non-controlling inlerest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
divectly in the statements of income,
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Transactions with non-controlling inlerests that do not result in loss of control are aceounted for as
equily transactions-that is, as Lransactions with the owners in their capacity as ownets. For purchases
{ram non-controlling intevests, the difference hehween auy consideration paid aned the relevant share
acquived of the carrying valte of nel assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals 1o non-controlling interests are also recorded in equily,

When the Company ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measutred 1o ils fair
value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recopnized in profit or oss,
The fair value is the initial carrying amount for purposes of subsequently aceounting for the retained
inlerest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income in respeet of that entity are aceounted for as if the Company
had direetly disposed of the relaled assets or liabilities, "This may mean that amounts previously
reeognized in other comprehensive income are reclassitied 1o profit or logs.

Business eombination involving entities under common controt are accounted for using the
predecessor’s cost method, which is simiba 1o pooling of interest,

(h) Assoclates

[nvestments in associates ate aecounted for al cost following the provisions of PAS 28 - Investinent in
Associates on exemptions in using equity method, These investments are stated al cost less
impairment in vialue, if any, in the Company's financial statements (Note 9). Under this method, the
Campany recognizes iucome from the investments only to the extent that the Company rececives
distribution from accumnulated profits of the subsidiaries arising after the date of acquisition.
Distributions reccived in excess of such profits are regarded as recovery of investments and are
recoghized as a reduction of the cost of the investment. The Company recoguizes dividend income
from investments in the statement of income when its right to receive dividends has Deen established.

(c} Joht arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending
on the contractual righls and obligations cach investor,

Joint ventures are accounted for at cost following the provisions of PAS 28 on exemplions in using
equity method. At consolidation level, joint ventures are accounted for using the equity methad.
Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Company’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
moveutents in other comprebensive income. When the Company's share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Company’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Company does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
vertlies,

Joint aperations are accounted for by recognizing the Company's own or its share of assets, liabilities,
reventie and expenses of the arrangement.
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2.2 Impairment of non-financial assels

Properly and equipment and other non-current assets (investments in other entities and intangibles)
that have definite useful life are reviewed for impairient losses whenever events or changes in
civcumstances indicate that the canying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is
recognized {or the amount by whieh the assel’s carrying imount of the assets exceeds ils recoverable
amount, which is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use
requires entities to mike estimates of future cash flows to be derived from the particular assct, and
discount them using a pre-Lax market rate that reflecls current assessments of e time vabhie of money
and the risks specific to the assel. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (eash- generating units),

Where an impairment toss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating,
unit is inercased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but the inereased carrying amount
should not exeeed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment Ioss been
recognized for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years, A reversal of an impairaient loss is
recognized as income immediately in other operating income (expense) in the statement of income.

2.3  Accounts payable and acerued expenses

Accounts payable and acerued expenses are obligations to pay lor goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from supplicrs and are 1recognized in the period in which
the related moncy, gonds or services are received or when a legally enforceable claim against the
Cowpany is established, Accounts payable are classificd as curvent liahilities if payment is due within
one year or less, 1 nol, they are presented as non current liabilities,

2,14  BRorrowings and hovrowing costs

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference belween the proceeds (nel of transaction costs)
and the maturity value is recognized in the statement of income over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as curvent liabitities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
sctilement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs direetly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying assel
are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are recognized and charged to
operalions in the year in which they ave incurred,

2.15  Provistons

Provigions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constiuetive obligation as a result
of past events, it is inore likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
abligation, and the amount of the obligation can be reliably cstimated. Provisions are not recognized
for future operating losses,

Where there ave a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering Lhe class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized
even if the likelihood of an oulflow with respect Lo any one itein included in the same class of
obligations may be small,
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Provisions are measured at the preseut value of the expenditures expeeted Lo be required Lo settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that vefiects envrent market assessments of the time value of money and
the riske specific to the oblipation. 'The increase o the provision due to passage of tme is recopmized s
part of other operaling expense in the statement of income.

Provisions are reviewed al the end of each reporting period sl adjusted to reficet the current hest
estimate. 11 it is no longer probable that an oatflow of resourees embodying economie henefits will he
vequited Lo settle the obligation, the provision shall be reversed and derecognized from the balance
sheel.

2.16  Conlingeoeics

Contingent assets and Habilitics, are not vecognized in the financial statements. Conlingent labilitics
are disclosed unless the possibility of an oulflow of resources embadying economnie henefits is remote.
Coulingent asset are disclosed when an intlow of cconomic benefits is prabalie.

2,17  Share capital

Common shares are classified as equity. Share premium is recognized for the excess proceeds of
subseviptions aver the par value of the shaves issued.

Where the Compauy purchases its equity share capital (Ureasury shares), the consideration paid,
incliding any directly attributable incremental costs (nel of imeome taxes) is dedueted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of.
Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, are included in equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders,

2.18 Dividends distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shaveholders is recognized as a lability in the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors.

2.19  LEarnings per share

Rasic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing the profit attributable to sharcholders of the
Company by the weighled average number of conunon shares in issue during the year, excluding
comnion shares purchased hy the Company and held as treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of conunon shaves

outstandling to assumc conversion of all dilutive potential commnion shares. The Coinpany has no
dilutive potential common share.

2,20 TForeign eurrency transactions and translations

{a¢) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial stateinents of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economie environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The finaneial

statements ave presented in Philippine Peso, which is the functional and presentation curreney of the
Company.
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(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign curreney transactions arc transtaled into Philippine Peso using the exchange rvate prevailing at
the date of the transaclion. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setllement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and Habilities
denontinated in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of income.

2,21 Revenue and expense recognition
{a) Revenue

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future econnmic benefits will flow into the entity and specific eriteria have been met for each of the
Company’s activilies as described below. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably
measured until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved, The Company bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arangement,

(i) Sale of oil products

Sales comprise the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from the sale of oil and gas
products in the ordinary course of the Company’'s operations. Sales is shown net of value-added tax.
Discounts and rebates are recognized and measured based on approved contraets and agreements with
customers, The Company does not grant reward points to customers.

Sales of oil and gas produets are recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods are transferred to the buyer, which generally coincides with the actual delivery of goads.

Delivery does not oceur unless the products have been shipped oul of the Company’s premises or
received by the customer depending on shipping arrangements.

(i} Other operating income

Other operating inconte, such as retailer and franchise fees, is recognized on an acerual basis in
accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

Finance income, such as foreign exchange gains and interest income, is recognized as incwrred and
presented at gross after operating profit. Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis,

taking account of the prineipal outstanding and the cffective rate over the period to malurity, when it is
¥
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determined that such fiwcomie will acerie to the Company.

{iv) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to reccive payment is established. The Company's
dividend income is presented as part of other non-eperating income in the statement of income.

(b) Costs and expenses

Costs and expenses are charged to operations as incurred.
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222 Leases - Company is the lessee

Leases of retail stations, pipelines and office preiises where a significant portion of the risks and
rewatds of ownership are refained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives from the lessor) are charged to the statement of income
on a straight-line Inasis over the period of the lease,

When the Company enlers into an arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of related
transactions, thal does not take the legal form of a tease Inil conveys a tight Lo wse an asset o is
dependent on the use of a specific assel or assets, the Company assesses whether the arrangement is, or
contains, a lease, The Compuny does not have such arrangements.

2,23  BEmployee benefits
{u} Pension obligation

The Company maintains a pension scheme, which is finded through payments to teustee-administered
funds, determined by periodic aetuarial ealentations, 'The Company maintains a defined benell
pension plan, which is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit thal an employec will
receive supon retirement, dependent on certain Factors such as ape, years of eredited serviee, and
comnpensalion.

The liability iccognized in the balance sheel in respect of detined benefit pension plans is the present
value of the detined benetit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
asscts. The defined benefit obligation is caleulated annually by indepeudent actuavies using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is detetmined by
discounling the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that
are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturily
approximating to the terms of the related pension abligation, In countrics where there is no deep
market in such bonds, the market rates on government bonds are used.

n cases when the fair value of the plan assets is in excess of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation, Lhe Company measures the resulting asset at the lower of such amount determined, and the
asset ceiling calculated as the present value of available future refunds and reductions in e Tuture
contributions,

Restricted or non-transferable assets of the fund are excluded in the determination of fair value of plan
agsels,

Remeasurement gains and losses aising from experience adjustinents and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited as ‘remeasurements’ to equity in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they arisc

Past-service cosls are recognized immediately in the statements of ineome.
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(b} Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date,
or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company
recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Company can no
longer withdraw the offer of those henefits; and (b) when the entity recognizes costs for a restrueturing
that is within the scope of PAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits, In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundaney, the termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer. Bencfits falling due more than 12 months after
bakance sheet date are discounted 1o present value.

{c} Bonus plans

The Company recognizes a liubility and an expense for performance-related bonuses, hased on a
formula that takes into consideration the Company and employee’s performance, The Company
recognizes a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation,

(d} Performance-share plans

RDS operates a Performance Share Plan (PSP) covering all of its subsidiaries’ employees. PSP for
conditional shares are awarded to eligible employees based on their sustained performance and value.
The extent to which shares are finally delivered at the end of a three-year performanee period, or not,
depends upon the performance of the Shell group.

The fair value of shares, determined using a Monte Carlo pricing maodel, is eredited as ‘other reserve’ in
equity and is charged to profit or loss over the vesting period. The fair value of shave-based
compensation for equity-settled plans granted to employees under the RDS schewes is recognized as an
intra-group payable to parent company when charged-out. The charge-out is based on the entitled
personnel that were employed by the Company at the time of swarding,

2,24  Related party relationships and transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly, or indirectly
through one or nmore intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operaling decisions, Such relationship also exists between and/or among
entities under common shareholdings, which includes entities that are under common contral with the
reporting enterprise, or between and/or among the reporting enterprise and its key management
personnel, directors, or its shareholders. In considering each possible related party relationship,
atlention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal forn.

225  Operating segmenis

An operaling seginent is a group of asscts and operations engaged in providing products or services that
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of ather operating segments (Note 30).

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the inlernal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resotirees and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the general
manager who makes strategic decisions,
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2,20  Evenls after halunee sheet date

Past year-cned evenls that provide additional information abowt the Company’s posilion at the halanee
sheet date (adjusting events) are veflected in the financial statements, Post vear-end events thai ave not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when materiul.

Nole 4 - Financiad risk management

3.1 Iinaneial risk factovs

The Company's operalions expose it 1o a variely of financial risks: macket risk (ineluding loreign eurrency
exchange risk, fair value interest rigk and price risk), eredit risk, Hguidity risk and cash flow inlevest rate
visk, ‘The Company’s overall visk management program fncuses on the nnpredictability of finaneial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effeets ou the Company’s {inancial performance,

Risk management is eavried ot by its Regional Treasury - Shell Treasury Centre East (STCE) smder
policies approved by the Board of Dircetors, STCE identifies, evaliuates and hedges financial visks in
elose cooperation with the Company’s operating anits, The Board of Divectors provides written
prineipltes for averall risk management, as well as written policies covering speeifie arens, sich us foreign
exchange risk, interest-rate visk, evedit risk and investing excess louidity,

a0 Markel risk

Mauaket risk is the possibility that changes in currency exchanpe rales, interest rates or the prives of crude
oil and refined products will adversely affect the value of the Company’s assets, labilities or expected
future cash flows,

{a) Foreign exchange risk

The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign cirrency exchange risk arising from
enrrency fluctuations, primarily with respecl to the iinportations of erude and finished products
denominated in US dollar, Foreign currency exchange risk may also atise from fture commercial,
transactions and recognized assets and liabilitics denominated in a eurrency other than the Company’s
functional curreney.

Foreign exchange eurrency risks are not hedged and the Company does not enter into significant
derivalive contracts Lo manage {oreign currency risks. Since foreign currency exposure is significantly
coneentrated on purchase of crude, the Company manages {oreign curreney risk by planning the liming
of its importation seltlements with related parties. :

Yor the year ended 31 Decemnber 2014, if the Philippine Peso had weakened/strengthened by 5%
(assessmend threshiold used by tnanagenient} against the US dollar with all other variables held
constant, equity and post-tax profil for the year would have been P375 million (2013 - P486 willion;
2012 - P480 million) lower/higher, as a vesult of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of US
dollar-denominated trade receivables and payables as al balance sheet dates,

Management considers that there are no significant foreign exchange risks with respect Lo other
currencies disclosed in Note 27,
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(h) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow and T vahae inlerest rvisk is the risk that fulure eash flows of a financial instrament will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates,

The Company has no significant exposure o faiv value interest vale risk as the Company has no
sipnificant inlevesl earning assels and interest-bearing Habilities subject to fixed inlerest rates.

The Company’s intevest-rate sk atises hom its horrowings, Borrowings issucd at variable rates expose
the Company to eash flow intevest-vate visk. At 31 December 2014, 2ot and 2012, the Company’s short-
term borrowings and loans payvable ciory Roating rates based an a certain index phus applicable
premium,

The Company does not entey into significant hedging activities or devivative conlriets to cover risk
agsociated with borrowings,

For the year ended 31 December 2o, if interest rates on Philippine peso-denowminaled borrowings
had been too basis points (assessment tiireshold used by wmanagement) higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post- tax profit for the year would have been P32 million (2013 - Pa26 million;
2012 - P26 million) lower/higher, mainly as a resull of higher/lower interest expense on foating rate
barrowings, Managemenl uses oo basis poinls as threshold i assessing e potential impact of
inlevest rate moveents in its operations,

(e} Price risk

The Company is ntot significantly exposed to price risk on equity securities and proprietary club shares
because investments eld by the Company classified in the balance sheet as available-for-sale financial
assets are not considered muaterial in the financial statements,

q.1.2  Credit risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institntions, as well as credit exposure to trade
and non-trade receivables.

The Coinpany maitains cash and certain other financial instruments with various major financial
institutions. ‘To minimize this risk, the Company performs periodic evaluations of the relative credit
standing of these financial institutions and where appropriate, places limits on the amount of eredit
expostve with any one institution. Additional information is presented in Note 5.

The Company has policies in place to ensure that sales of producls are made to customers with
acceptable creditworthiness. Counterparty credit risk is managed within a framework of individual
eredtt Hmiis with wlilizalivn being veguiaely teviewed, Credil cheoks ate perfunined by a depaciuent
independent of sales department, and are undertaken before contractual commitiment. Where
appropriate, cash on delivery terms are used to manage the specific credit risk.

There is o concentration of eredil risks as at balance sheel dates as the Company deals with a large
nwmber of homogenous trade customers, Additional information is presented in Note 6,

3.1.3  Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that suitable sources of [unding for the Company’s business activities may not
be available. The Company has access to sufficient external debt funding sources (banks credit lines) to
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et currently foreseeable borrowing requirements, The Treasury group centradly monitors bank
borrowings, foreign exchanpe tequirements and cash flow position,

Surplus cash is invested into a range of short- dated waoney mavket instruments, time deposits and
money funds, which seek to ensure the security and liguidity of investments while optimizing yield.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liguidity reserve on the basis of expeeted eash
fow. Foreeasted Hiquidily reserve for 2015 is as follows:

. 015
Opening cash baiance for the year 4,721,647
Net cash from operating aclivities 7,024,784
Capital expenditures (3,469,4567)
Net cash used in other investing aclivities 35,475
Nel cash used in financing aclivities 3 (3,663,448)
Ending cash balancefortheyear 4,648,061

The table helow analyzes the Company's Hnaneial liabilities into selevant sinburity groupings based on
1he remaining period at the balanee sheet date to the contractunl iatwrity date. The amownts disclosed
in the table ave the contractual undiscounted eash flows, Balanees presented in the table appiroximate
their cnrrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

91-180 180 days - Over
e — 0-90days ~ days  1year 1 year Total
AL 31 Decamber 2014

Short-{erm borrowings 21,650,000 - 21,650,000
Future interest payment 18,836 278,202 - - 296,838
Loans payable - - 11,000,000 12,000,000 23,000,000
Dividends payable 2,668 - - - 9,668
Accounts payable and

accrued expenses 19,716,155 28,062 17,213 17,606 19,779,926

41294458 307,154 11,017,213 12,017,606 64,636,432

e December 2013

Shoti-term borrowings 35,637,000 - - - 35,537,000
Future interest payment 136,852 79,604 160,977 53,070 430,503
Loans payahle - - - 11,000,000 11,000,000
Dividends payable 10,080 - - - 10,000
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses 14,100,085 - , - - 14,100,095
... 49,784,037 79604 160,977 11,053,070 61,077,668

Availability of funding to settle the Company’s payables ate ensured since the Company has unused
credit lines of P40.9 billion as at 31 December 2014 (2013 - P35.7 hillion amd 2012 - P37.6 billion) and
tnddrawn borrowing facilities at floating rate amounting to P4o0.9 billion

(2014 - P24.8 hillion and 2012 - P27.4 billion), which is expiring within one year.

The Company has a P1o.2 hillion credit facility with STCE, which does not have an expiration date.
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g2 Capital management

The Company manages its business to deliver strong cash flows to fund capital expendilures and growth
hasged on cautions assumptions relating to erude oil prices. Strong cash position and operational cash
flow provide the Company financial flexibility both to fund capital investiment and return on equity.
Total capital is caleulated as ‘equity’ as shown in the balance sheet fess other reserves plus net debt.

(a) Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from operating activitics is considered a measure that reflects the Company’s ability to
geucrate funding from operations for its investing and financing activities and is representative of the
realization of value for shareholders from the Company’s operations, ‘The statement ol cash flows show
the components of cash flow. Management uses this analysis to decide whether to obtain additional
borrowings or additional capital infusion to manage its capital requirements.

(b) Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio is a measure of the Company’s financial leverage reflecting the degree to which the
operations of the Company are finaneed by debl. The amount of debt that the Company will commit
depends on cash inflow from operations, divestment proceeds and cash outflow in the form of capital
investment, dividend payments and share repurchases. The Company aims to maintain an efficient
batance sheet to be able to finance investment aud growth, afler the funding of dividends.

The gearing ratio is caleulated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is caleulated as total loans
and borrowings less cash and eash equivalents.

The Company does not have a [ixed gearing larget and management considers whether the preseut
gearing level is comnercially aceeptable based on the ability of the Company to operate on a stand-
alone basis and is set after appropriate advice has been taken from Tax, Treasury and Legal advisors,

The gearing ratios at 31 December are as follows:

& Notes 2014 2013
Total loans and borrowings 15,16 44,550,000 . 46,537,000
_less: cash 5 4,721,647 6,161,150
Net debt 39,828,353 40,375,850
_ Total equity : 3,604,806 12,213,981
Total capital” e _ 43,333,158 52,689,831
Gearing ratio 2%  T7%

In 2017, the Company temporarily incurred higher borrowings mainly due to payment arising froma
settlement of a elaim by a loeal company {(Note 26.d) and higher working capital requirements as a
result of the unplanned refinery shutdown in November 2013. In 2014, oil prices dropped-off by half
within a period of three months, the rapid decline resulted in inventory price losses (Note 7) that

adversely impacted the gearing ratio despite absotute decline in borrowings.

The Company is not subject lo externally imposed capital requirement.
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3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below presents the canying amounants of the Company’s [inancial assels and financial
liahilities, which approximates its fair values, as at December 31, 2014 and 2013.

- - B ~ Notes 2014 2013
Financial assels
Loans and receivables
Cash 5 4,721,647 6,161,150
Receivables 6 10,228,547 12,361,129
Loans to TRI, a refated party g 379,678 494,678
Market investment loans 9 83,817 57,566
Long-term receivables g 26,293 36,115
Available-for-sale financial assets 12 262,206 293 807
Total financial assets 165,702,188 19,404,445
Financial Habilities
Cther financial liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 13 19,779,926 14,100,095
Dividends payable 24 9,668 10,090
Short-term borrowings 14 21,650,000 35,537,000
Loans payable 15 23,000,000 11,000,000
Total financtal liabitities L 64,339, 64,339,694 60,647,185

Receivables in Lhe table above exclude claims from the government and miscellaneous receivables
while accounts payable and acerned expenses exclude amounts payable to the government and ils

related agencies.

‘The following methods and assumplions were used to estimate the value of each class of financial

instrument for which it is practicable to estimatie such value:

(a) Current finaneial assels and liabilities

Due to the short-term nature of the accounts, the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, receivables,
deposits, accounts payable and short-term horrowings approximate the amount of consideration al the

time of initial recognition.

(b) Financial assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost

Loans to TRI, staff car loans, market investment loans, other long-term receivables and payables, are

carried at amortized eost.

(¢) Financial assets carried at fair value

The Company’s available-for-sule financial assets are marked-to-market if traded and quoted.

Otherwise, these are held at cost less impairment, if any.

(d) Loans puyable

‘The carrying values of long-terin loans payable approximates their fair value because of regular interest

repricing based on market conditions.
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Note 4 - Critical acconnting estimates, assumplions and judgments

Estimates, nssumplions and judgments are coutinually evahiated and are hased on histarieal
experience and other factars, ineluding expecetations of fuiure events that are believed to he reasonable
under the circumstances.

gt Critical acenunting estimates and assamplions

The Company makes estimales and assumptions eoncerning the future. ‘The resulting acconuting
estimales will, by definition, scldow equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of cansing a malerial adjustuent Lo the careying amounts of assels and
fabilitics within the next finaneial years are discussed belosy,

(a) Pravision for impairmeni of receivables

The provision for impairment ol veceivables is based on the Company's assessment of the collectability
of payments from its debtors. This assessment requires judgment regarding the ability of the deblors to
pay the amounts owed to the Company and Lthe outeome of any disputes. The amounts and timing of
recorded provision for impairment of receivables for any peviod woundd diffir it the Company made
different assumptions or utilized different estimates, Hence, management considers il impracticable o
disclose with sufficient reliability the possible effeets of sensitivities surrounding impairment ol
receivables, The Company's poliey in estimating provision for impaivment of receivables is presented in
Note 2.5, The carrying amount of receivables and other information are disclosed in Note 6.

(b} Provision for inventory losses

The Company provides allowance for inventories whenever the nel realizabie value of inventories
hecome lower than cost due to damage, physical deteriovation, obsalescence, market driven price
changes in price levels or other causes (i.e. pre-termination of contracts), Assessment of inventory
losses on a regular basis is also performed based on historical information and past experience. The
provision accotnt is reviewed on a monthly basis to refleet the estimated net recoverable value in the
finaneial statements. The Company sulfered significant loss due to continuous decline in crude oil
prices that started during the last quacter of the year (Nole 7). Using thirty (30} days average stock
reserve period, subsequent losses on major products after balance sheet date is estimated at P568.9
million. The carrying amount of inventories and ather information are disclosed in Note 7.

{¢) Provision for asset retirement obligation and environmental liabilities and remediation

Estimates of the ARO recognized are based on current legal and constructive requirements, teclmology
and price levels. Since actual outllows can differ from estimates due to chavges in laws, regulations,
public expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the fulure, the
catrying ainouitt of the obligation is regulady reviewed amd adjusied io take accouni of such changes,

The implicit rate (based on management’s market assessment of the time value of money and risks
specific to the obligation) used in discounting the cash flows is reviewed at least annually. The discount
rate used to delernmine the present value of the obligalion at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is 3% and the
amounl is recognized as aceretion cost or income in the statement of income,

The Company has sel total oulstanding provision of P8 19 million {2013 - P823 million) to cover the

required environmental remediation covering speeific assets, based on external evaluation and study
and total outstanding provision of P1.6 billion (2013 - P1.5 billion) {for ARO.
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Turther, il is reasonably possible based on existing knowledge that outeome within the next finawcial
year that are different from assumptions could require an adjustment to the carrying amount of the
provision for ARO and environinental Habilities and remediation. However, inanagement does not
foresee any changes in terms of business operations and its circumstances that would cause a significani
change in the initial estimates used. Additional information is presented in Note 16,

In relation to the First Philippine Industrial Corporation {IFPIC) oil pipeline leak incident in 2010, there
is no showing that the mere eutry of the Company into agreements with FPIC for Lhe use of the white
oil pipeline ereated a legal or constructive obligation on the part of the Company,

(d) Determining useful lives and depreeiation

Management deterinines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for the Company’s
property and equipment (Note 10). Management will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives
are different from the previous estimate, or will write-off or write-down technicaily obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Management does not foresee any changes in
terms of business operations that would warrant reassessment of estimated useful lives,

{e) Pension benefit obligation and employee benefits
The determination of the Company's pension benefit obligation and employee benefits is dependent on
the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in caleulating such amounts. Those

assumplions, as described in Nofe 25, include amony others, discount rates, and salary increase rates.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions
follow:

Nlmbact oﬁn'equily and
income before tax

- 2014 - 2013
Discount rate
Increase by 0.50% (213,464) (191,208)
Decrease by 0.50% 231,957 213,732
Salary increase rate
Increase by 0.50% 223,113 193,804
Decrease by 0.50% (207,434) (1756,244)

The above sensitivity is based on u change assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.

In practice, this is unfikely to oceur, and changes in soine assumplions may be correlated, When
caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the
samce method has been applied as when caleulating the pension asset (liability), The methods and tvpes
of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to priov years,

White the Company’s management belicves that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate,
significant differences in actual experience or significant changes in actuarial assumptions may
materially affect the pension obligation and employee benefils.



4.2 Critical judgments in applying the Company’s accounting policies
(o) Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets (Noles 10 and 12) ave reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circomstances indicale that the carrying amount of an assel may not be recoverable. On a regular
basis, management delermines if there ave triggering events or impairment indicators based on current
circumstances. An impairment loss is recognized whenever evidence exists that the carrying value is
not recoverable, ‘

Management believes thal no impairment charge is necessary because Lthere are no impairment
indicators on all assets at CGU level at 31 December 2014 and 2013,

(L) Taxes

A certain degree of judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes, as there are
cerlain lransactions and calenlations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business.

The Company recognizes liahilities for lax audit tssues when it is probable. The Habilities are based on
estimates whether additional taxes will be due, Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, sueh differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Further, recognition of deferred income Lax assels depends on management’s assessment of the
probability of available fulure taxable income against which the temporary differcnces can be applied.
The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at each balance sheet date and reduces the carrying
amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Management helieves that deferred tax assels are
fully recoverable at the balance sheet date (Note 11).

The Company recognizes provision for impairment of input value added tax (VAT) and specific tax
claims based on the Company's assessment of collection or recoverability through eveditable tax
eertificates from the government. This assessment requires judgment regarding the ability of the
government to settle or approve the application for claims/ereditable tax certificates of the Company.
Management believes that its input VAT and specific tux claims ave fully recoverable as at balance sheet
date (Notes 6 and 8).

(c) Joint arrangements

The Company helds 33.33% of the voling rights of a joint arrangement with other local oil companies
over the Pandaean depot {(Note g). The oil companies have joint control over the arrangement as under
their contractual agrecment, unanimous consent is requived from all parties to the agreement for all
relevant aclivities.

The Company's joini arrangement provides all the parties to the agreement with direct rights to the net

assets and obligations for Habilities of the Pandacan depot. Also, all the parties to the arrangement are

the sole beneficiary of all the resources available in the Pandacan depot. Therefore, this arrangement is
classified as a joint operation,
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(d} Assessing contingencies

The Company is currently invalved in various legal proceedings including a number of tax cases

(Note 28). Estimates of the probable costs for the resolution of these claims, if any, have been
developed in consullation with internal and external counsels handling the Company’s defense in these
malters and are based upon the probability of potential results. The Company's management curvently
believes Lhat the ultimate oulcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effeet on the
financial stalements, 1t is possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially
affected by changes in the estimales, in the effectiveness of its strategies relating to these proceedings
or the actual outeome of the proceedings (Noles 16.a and 28),

Note 5 - Cash

‘The account al 31 December 2014 and 2013 consists of cash in banks which arve earning interest at the

prevailing bank deposit rates.

The Company maintains cash deposits with universal and commercials banks in the Philippines.
Universal and commercial banks represent the largest single group, resource-wise, of financial

institutions in the countey.

Cash at December 31 is maintained with the following type of financial institutions:

) i 2014 2013
Universal banks 3,661,634 5,593,633
Commercial banks 1,460,013 567,517
4,721,647 6,161,150
Note 6 - Reeeivables, net
The account as at 31 December consists of:
» . Notes 2014 L2013
Trade receivables
Third parties 9,886,398 11,339,775
Related parties 24 557,813 1,142,242
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
from third parties o {214 ,685) (216,376)
e 10,229,547 12,266,641
Non-irade recelvables from related parties 24 - 13707
Current portion of long-term receivables o 9 80,781
Other receivavles
Clabms from governiment agencies
Duty drawback and other claims 2,126,359 1,753,761
Specific tax 1,142,831 1,235,767
Miscellaneous 849,782 981,579
4,417,972 3,971,107
Provision for impairment of other receivables {342,925) {668,210)
N - 3775047 3,302,897
B - 14,004,594 15,664,026
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‘The more significant coniponents of miscellaneous receivables pertain to creditable withholding taxes,
interest receivables and cross-charging claims,

The gross carvying amounts of the Company's trade and other receivables are denominated in the
following currencies:

2014 2013
Philippine peso 13,660,259 15,565,561
US doilar 998,634 871,851
Other currencies o 3,291 10,200

14,662,184 16,547,612

"The Company holds collateral as sceurity for trade veceivables from thivd parties in 2014 valued at P4.2
billion (2013 - P4.3 billion} consisting of eash securities, letters of eredit or bank guarantees and Real
Estate Mortgages (REM). These securities can be applied once the related customer defaulted on
seltlement of the Company's receivables based on agreed credit terms,

(@) Past due recetvables but not impaired

The aging of past due but not impaired trade receivables from third parties as at 31 December are as
follows:

CPastdue 2014 2013
Less than 30 days 363,127 158,252
31 - 60 days 113,978 50,897
61 - 90 days 15,788 10,717
91 - 180 days B - _ @l5si8 6,072

580,412 225,938

These balances relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default.

(b) Impaired receivables

The maximum exposure Lo credit risk at the reporting date is the carvying amount of each class of
receivables mentioned above, Impaived receivables are fully provided and movements in the provision
for impairment of the receivables are presented in the table below.

Nole Trade  Others Total

At 1 January 2013 197,232 723,700 920,932
Provisions (Reversals) 219 18,144 (18,603) (459)
Wiite-offs B o ) . (36,887) (36,887)
Af 21 December 2013 215,376 668,210 883,586
Provisions (Reversals) 21 711 {48,418} {49,127)
Wiite-offs R - (276,869) (276,869)
AL 31 December 2014 214 8665 342,925 557,600

For the year ended 31 December 2014, total trade receivables writlen-off directly to statement of
income amounted to P12.34 million (2013 - P29,6 million and 2012 - Pgo.7 million) based on the
Company's assessinen! of recoverability {Note 21).
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{¢) Neither past cue nor impaired

The credit quality of trade receivables from third parties al 31 December thal ave neither past due nov
impaired has been assessed by reference to historical information about counterparty defauli rates:

Trade receivables

__{counterparties with internal creditraling) =~~~ _ 2014 2043
A 1,975,365 1,898,045
B 2,456,362 3,738,044
C 2,915,120 3,103,402
I ... D 1,744,475 2,158,970
Total trade receivables ) 8,001,322 10,898 461
A - Customers with strong financial performance and with low probability of default,
B - Customers with good financial strength but with some elements of risk in one or more financial
or non-financial inputs,
C - Customers with poor financial status and halance is secured with post-dated checks and other
cotlaterals,
D - Customers with a medinm risk of default or are otherwise deemed ‘“No Credit’ customers, ‘The

receivable, however, is deemed performing hence impairment provision is not necessary.

Trade and non-trade receivables from related parties are all current in age. The other classes and
renmaining balances within irade, non-trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets,

There are no receivables that are neither past due nor impaired that have been renegotiated for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,

Nole 7 - Inventories, net

The account as at 31 December consists of:

_ R Note 2014 2013
Crude oil and finished products 20 18,830,491 28,183,489
Materials and supplies o e 354,112 363,325
At cost 19,184,603 28,546,814
Provision for inventory write-down (2,820,947} {15,618)
Provision for inventory chsolescence S {27,309} {16,878)

At net realizable value 16,336,347 28,614,218

Cost of inventories included as part of cost of sales amounted 1o P2ag billion (2013 - P187 billion and

2012 - P178 hillion) (Noie 2oj.
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Details of and changes in provision for iuventosy losses as at and for the years ended 31 December ave
as follows:

Crude oiland  Malerials

finished and
~ Note products supplies Total
At 1 January 2013 76,716 10,024 86,740
Provisions 20 29,749 - 29,749
Write-offs (83,893} - {83,893)
At 31 December 2013 22,572 10,024 32,696
Provisions 20 2,825,684 - 2,825684
Wrile-offs R - (10.024) _ (10,024)
At 31 December 2014 2,848,266 - 2,848,266

Write-offs in 2014 mainly pertainy to inventories tagged as defective and slow to non-moving lubricant
groups aud additives,

Cost of inventory written-down lo net realizable value included in the provisions for inventory
amounted to P2.8 bitlion (2013 - P15.6 million) (Note 20)., The significant decline in the Company’s net

realizable value was a result of the continuing decline in oil prices, which started during the last quarter
of the year,

Note 8 - Prepayments and other current asscls

The account as al 31 December consists of:

e " Nole 2014 2013
Input VAT, net of output VAT 7,916,878 6,478,026
Prepaid corporate income tax 2,599,338 1,477,824
Advances to an entity under common sharaholdings 24 762,000 449 231
Advance rentals 555 791 369,289
Prepaid specific tax 172 655 292,915
Prepaid insurance 9,778 226,892
Prepaid duties and taxes 8,651 83,619
Others o - 135,097 154,070

B T 12160,188 9,531,866
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Note 9 - Long-term reeeivables, rentals and investments, net

The account as at 31 December consists of;

B Notes 2014 2013
Loans to an entity under common shareholdings 24 379,678 575,459
Current portion 5§ - {80,781)
379,678 494 678
Advances to an enlity under common shareholdings 24 163,447 100,000
Provision for impairment of fong-term receivables
from related parties o {163,447} -
379,678 504,678
Advance rentals 26 850,070 461,613
Market investment loans (a) 83,817 57,566
Investments in associates (b) 43,676 49,638
Other long-term assets (b) 7,221 9,809
o 984,784 778,626
Long-tenm receivables (¢) 44 868 55,980
Provision for impairment of long-term receivables {19,675) {19,875)
o 25,293 36,115
1,389,755 1,408,419

(a) Market investments loans

Marke! investment loans consist of unsecured promissory notes collectible from third party customers
on various dates up to year 2016 with inlerests ranging from 9% 1o 18%. These balances are fully
performing since it relates Lo a number of customers with whom there is no recent history of default.

{b) Invesiments in other entities

i, Joint operations

The Company entered into an agreement with two {2} ather oil campanies 1o integrate their operations
al the Pandacan depot while retaining individuat ownership of their facilities (e.g. tanks, equipment,
efe.). Pandacan Depot Services, Incorporated (PISI) has been incorporated and registered with the
Philippine SEC on 29 September 2004. Actwal operations of PDSI started on 1 Novetaber 2004.

The Company’s share in asset held-jointly as at 31 December 2014 amounting to P7.2 million (2013 -
P7.8 million) is presented as part of other long-term assets. These balances were presented net of

Habilities which are not considered material.

il. Assoctales

Tn 2011, the Company purchased 44% interest in Bonifacio Gas Corporation al an acquisition price of

P34 million from Shell Gas {LPG), Inc. (SGLPT).
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The details of assets, liabilities and resulls of operations of assaciates, all of which are incorporated in
the Philippines, are as follows;

Mel
S Interest  Assets  Liabililtes  Assels  Income
2014 .
Bonifacio Gas Corparation, associate 44%, 125,860 46,839 79,011 254574
___Kamayan F,{ga![ygorpnra{ipn, assoclate  40% 17747 2,305 16,442 123,750
2013 -
Bonifacio Gas Corporation, associate Ad% 116,934 31,205 85,729 29,144
___ Kamayan Realty Gorporation, associate  40% 1507/  117% 13906 13,806
2012
Ronifacio Gas Corporation, associate 44% 131,289 60,384 70,005 19,355
Kamayan Really Corporation, associate  40% 18521 1,654 16,86/ 3050

Bonifacio Gas Corporation is an eutity engaged in wholesale distribetion of LPG and was established 1o
operate a centralized gas distribution system within the Bonifacio Global City, Kamayan Realty
Corporation is an entity engaged in Jeasing and selling of veal properties,

There are no contingenl liabililies relating Lo the Contpany's interest in the associates,

Hi. Subsidiay

In 2012, the Company completed the sale of its only subsidiary, SGLPI (a company incorporated and
registered in the Philippines engaged in marketing and trading of liquefied petrolewm produets), 1o a
tocal company. The Company recognized a P4 billion gain from the trangaction, which was presented
as a separale line item in the Company's statement of income. Dividend income received from SGLPI
in 2012 amounted to P445.10 million (Note 24).

(¢} Long-term recefuables

As al 3t December 2014, long-term receivables of P183 million (2013 - P1g million) was lmpaired and
fully provided.,

Movements in provision for long-tenn receivables are as follow:

Other
Related  long-term

o _ B o Nole parties recelvables  Tolal
At 1 January 2013 - 20,225 20225
Wite-offs 21 - 1380) (350)
At 31 December 2013 - 10,875 19,875
Provisions 21 163,447 - 163,447
Reversal - (300) _ (300)
At 31 Degember 2014 163,447 19,675 183,022

The individually impaived receivables maindy relate to Batangas Bay Carriers Tne,, whiclt is in difficull
cconomice situation and ave aged over a year.
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As at 31 December po14 and 2013, there are no other long-term receivables that arve past due hul not
impaired. The other classes and balances wilhin fong-term veceivables, rental and investments ave fully
performing,

The maxiatum exposure to evedit risk al the reporting, date is the canving value of each dass of
receivable mentioned above, ‘The carrying mmounts of loans to TRE market investment loans and

long, term receivables approsimate their v value as batanees are amortized based on varying market
rates, which falls under level 2 of the faiv value hierarehy (Note 2.4),

The carcyisg amounnts of the Company’s long-tevm receivables are denominaled only in Philippine
Pesos.

Nole 10 - Property and equipment, nct

Property anel equipment as at 31 December and the movements in the accounts for the year consist of:

Leasehotd  Machinery and  § anslore ang Assefs aneler

o inrovemenls equipatend fixtures Nunsportstion obligation  constiuzton  Telal
Coust
AL kanvary 2013 t5,8726.520 23,840,548 42 470 {66,739 1,338,323 1,414,610 11,612,188
Acqulisitions 200,076 215,518 8 15,4489 - 1.368,933 1,860,020
Assel retirement obligatinn - - - - tha 7an 173,760
Disposolshente off {117 625) (16,372 (273) {11,281) (§27,200) {462,751)
_Dnanstersd Addustments 367,161 50008 B2 @s) (e3weey) .
AL 31 Decembar 2€H3 14,714, 140 A4651,300 42 Bif 181,047 1,424,452 1,649,451 43,143,237
Acquisiions. . - - 16,944 . 1,008,570 6,025,114
Asset retirement obhgation - - - - 28,9386 - 28,935
isposalshyiite off (30.607) {24,99) (60,934) {8,969} (41,214} . (167,647}
Reclassification to
program soflware 813,669 7507252 27,068 . {1,416,466) {14,914
 AES1 Decembar 2014 14,797,602 ! 818961 2 412,473 6,441,565 49,014,729
Accumulated deprecintion
ang amaorttization
At 1 January 2043 (8,177.342)  {(17.131,576) {806,278) {149,941) {795,475 - (27.051,312)
Gepreciation and amoilizaton
{Noles 20 and 21) (401,698) (1,134,022 (18,491 (11,417) {141,768) - {1,707,394)
Gisposals 138,457 151,842 273 8,629 103,480 - 402 6914
Transters/Adjustments (12.485) 12,422 - L 63 - -
At 31 December 2013 {8,453,058)  {18,101,334) {824,496} {§62,729) {834,388) - {78 386,015)
Deprociation and amoerbzation
(Noles 20 and 21) {596,240) (1,341,099) {16,928) {14,750) {104,795) - (2,164,710)
Bisposals 16.926 18,107 60,824 8,545 41.214 - 146,725
. TransfersfAdjusiments G313.558 758,252 27.058 2,683 - (1,401,552} -
AL 31 December 2014 8,418,824)  (16.665.974) (763,430)  (186,251)  {8B7,068)  (1.401,552) (3€.384,000)
Net book values
At 31 December 2013 5,764,072 G508 966 28.341 38,318 533,064 1,849,461 14,777,222
At 31 Dacember 2014 6,378,268 6,574,654 65,631 44,051 A24,204 9,040.013 18,630,729

The balance of property and equipment as at 31 December 2o14 includes (ully depreciated assets stilkin
use amounting to P8.7 hillion (2013 - P8 hillion).

Assels under construction represent cost of ongoing capital projects in the retail and refinery business
segments.

The Company also recorded asset retirement obligation covering certain assets in Pandacan and other
depots and installation around the country amounting to P1.j billion as at 31 December 2014 and 2013,
The amount of provision is based on external study which takes into consideration the required
remediation based on the requirements, if auy, of local ordinance, Estimated amount of future
obligation is discounted using a discount rate of 3% (Note 16).
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Nole 11 - Provision for income iax; deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and lizhilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assels against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority, ‘The offset amounts at 31 December are as follows:

Deferred tax assels

Deferred tax assels to be recovered afier more than 12 months

Deferred tax assels to be recovered within 12 months

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities {o be seitled atter more than 12 monihs

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled within 12 months

Deferred lax assels, net

2014 2013
6,127,294 2,123,961
57,138 -
6,184,432 2,123,961
(890,504) {12,817)
(622,450)
(890,504)  (635,267)
_5,203.928 1,488,694

‘The Company's deferred income tax assets (liabilities) at 31 December consist of the tax effects of the

following teraporary differences:

. 3 2014 2013

Peferred income tax assets (liabilities)
Provision for inventory losses 864,477 9,779
Unamortized contribution for past service cost, nel 403,781 436,512
Assel retirement obligation 389,086 276,505
Provision for remediation costs 245 660 246,924
Operating lease - effect of siraight lining 174,822 177,223
Provision for impainment of receivables 119,306 64,613
Claims for tax creditsfduty drawhacks 102,878 200,463
Unrealized mark-to-markel {gains) loss 40,971 (12,817}
Share-based compensation 22,547 24,763
Unrealized foreign exchange gains 16,167 {1,686}
Refirement benefit obligation (199,700)  (220,601)
Prepaid duties and taxes (680,804)  (400,163)
Other provisions 527,858 493,558
2,007,049 1,295,073
NOLCO 3,068,924 -

__MCIT o 217,965 193,621
Deferred income tax assels, nel o 5,293,028 1,488,694

The gross iovements in net deferved income tax assels are us follows:

i 2014 2013
At 1 January 1,488,694 1,480,186
Charged {Credited) to profit and loss 3,686,359 {103,212)
Charged {Credited) to other comprehensive income 94,541 {81,901}
MCIT 24,334 193,621
At 31 December 5,293,928 1488694
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Realization of the future benefits refated to the defereed incote tax assels is dependent on many factors,
including the Company's ability to genevate taxable income in the future, The Coampany's managemend
has considered these factors in arviving at its conclusion thal the deferred income tax assets at

31 December 2o and 2013 ave fully realizable,

The MCTT ean be applicd against the Company’s regalar theome tax within the next three years
immedialely following the taxable year tn which the MCIT was ineurred. The Company recognized
MCOIT of Pagq million in 2014 e Pigf millicn in 2013 which will expire in 2017 and 2016, respeetively.

NOLCO can be cairied over as a deduetion {rotn gross Laxable income for three conseeutive taxable
years immedfately {ollowing the year of such loss. Duving the year, the Company recognized deferred
ineome tax of P billion on NOLCO amounting to Pro, million swhich will expive in ooy,

The details of provision for (henefit from) income tax for the years ended 31 Decernber follow:

I R T P
Cutrent {(210,604) 77.89% 981,218
_Deferred (3,686,358) 103,217 306,685

(3,896,963) 181,107 1,287,883

The reconeiliation of provision for (henefit from) income tax computed at the statutory rate 1o aclual
provision for income tax shown in the statements of income is shown below:

. [P ———— P .- RS 2014 2013 2012 -
income tax (benefit} at statutory income tax rate at 30% {3,715,663) {219,300) 1,826,183
Income tax effect of:

Non-deductible expenses 37,161 29,065 416,531
Limitation on deductible interest expense 508 1,149 634
Income subject to capital gains tax - 351,119 (1,240,006)
Dividend income - - {136,268)
Interest income suhjected Lo final lax {1,5623) (3,447) {1,923)
Income subjected to 8% final tax {7.585) {12,908) {14,950)
__Non-taxable income “ 743 - -
{Benefit from) Provision for income tax before final taxes (3,686,359) 145,678 850,111
Final taxes on interest and other charges ~(210,604) 35,429 437,772

(Benefit from) Provision for income tax at effective tax rate_ (3,896,963) 181,107 1,287,883

Nole 12 - Other assels, net

The aceount as at 31 Decemmber consists of;

) ) Note 2014 2013
Pension asset 26 G65,668 735,337
Available-for-sale financial assets (a) 262,206 293,807
Program soflwares {b) 14,333 134,326
Others 23,311 23,312

965,518 1,186,782
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{a) Available-for-sale financial assels

Available-for-sale financial assets mainly represent equity securities and proprietary club shares which
are carried at fair value {Note 2.4). Details of the account at 31 December are as follows:

- O ——— 2014 2013 [—
Cost o 11,525 29,638
Fair value adjustments recognized directly in other comprehensive incame

1 January 264,169 334,437

Change during the year (13,488) (70,268)

31 December 250,681 264,169
) 262,206 293,807

(b) Program softwares

Program softwares as at 31 December and the movements in the accounts for the years consist of:

Notes 2014 2013
Al cost
1 January 880,285 880,285
Rectassifications from property and equipment AUC 14,914 -
Disposal - (6,412) -
31 December o 888,787 880,285
Accumulated amortization
1 January {745,959 (670,247)
Amaortization for the year 20, 21 {134,587} (175,712)
Disposal ) 6,092 -
31 December o (874,454) (746,959}
Net book value 14,333 134,326
Note 13 - Accounts payable and accrued expenses
The account as al 31 December consists of:
o Notes 2014 2013
Trade payables
Third parties 5,649,659 4,857 122
Related parlies 24 8,841,787 6,870,308
14,491,446 11,727,430
Non-trade payables from related parties 24 861,914 430,318
Other pavables
Project-related costs and advances 1,813,613 712,626
Rent and utilities 26 1,079,304 23,903
Employee henefits 629,765 245,205
Advertising and promotions 168,302 331,886
Duties and laxes 112,996 191,667
[T-related costs 46,929 21,013
Interest 14, 15 41,145 16,208
Supply and distribution 6,346 5,933
Others . 641,162 515,673
S 19,892,922 14,291,762
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Note 14 - Short-term borrowings

The account as al 31 December consisls of unsecured short-term loans from various local commereial
banks intended to fund crude and produet importations and working capital requirements. The loans
mature on various dates within onie year after balance sheet date.

Ihe average annual interest rate on local borrowings for 2014 was 1.79% (2013 - 2.77% and
2012 - 4.01%). Total interest expense charged to operations in 2014 arising from short-term loans
amounted to P381.7 million (2013 - P669.5 million and 2012 - P8o6.9 million) (See Note 23).

There are no horrowings related 1o acquisition, conslruction or production of a qualifying asset in 2014,
2013 and 2012,

Nolc 15 - Loans payable

[n January 2014, the Company enltered into a loan agreements with Bank of the Philippine Islands
(BPD) and Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company (MBTC). Details of the loan agreements are as follows:

Amount  Interest . o Terms
BPI
P5,000,000  2.7632% as at 31 December Payable after thirty-six (36) months reckoned
effective until nex! repricing from the drawdown date on 10 January 2014,

Principal is payable in lump sum at maturity date.
Interest is repriced every three (3} months.

MBTC
pP7.000000  0.0421% as at 31 December Payable after thirty-six (36) months reckoned
effective until next repricing from the drawdown date on 29 January 2014
Principal is payable in lump sum at maturity date,
Interest is repriced every three (3) months.

On 2 March 2012, the Company entered inlo a loan agreement with BPI o obtain an unseeured loan of
P11 billion, Details of the loan agreement fotlow;

Amount Interest B Terms
P11,000,000 2.8947% as al 31 December Payable after thirty-six {36} months reckoned
effective until next repricing. from the drawdown date on 2 March 2012,

Principal is payable in lump sum al maturity date.
Interest is repriced every tiree (3) months.

As at 31 December 2014, the P11 billion loan is presented as part of current liabilities as it becomes due

and damandable within 2o,

Total infevest expense charged Lo operations in 2014 arising from these loans amounted to P696.4
million (2013 - Pa22.84 million and 2012 - P305.96 mitlion) (See Nole 23).

Under the loan agreements, the Company is required to comply with cerlain covenants, as follows:
¢ Maintenance of the Company’s legal status,
¢ Ensure that at all times the loans rank at least pari passu with the claims of all other unseeured and

insubordinated creditors excepl those whose claims are preferred by any bankruptey, insolvency,
liquidation or other similar laws of general application,
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The Conpany shall nol create ur ]!l!l‘ltllil to subsisl any encumbrance over atl ar any of ils present or
fuhwre revenues or assets other than a permitled encombrance as defined in the loan agreements,
The Company shull duly pay and discharge all taxes, asaesament and charges of whatsoever nature
levied upon or against it, or against its praperties, revenues and assels prior to the date on which
penalties allach thereto, and to Lhe exient only that the same shall be contested in good faith and by

appropriale legal proceedings,

The Company is in compliance with the covenants as at reporting periods presented. Sec also Note
4.1.1 for the malurity analysis of these loans,

The carrying amounnts of loans payable approximate their fair values as balances are subjeet to
changing, interest rates based on market, which falls under level 2 of (aie value hierarchy (Note 2.4),

Note 16 - Provislions and other liahilities

The aceount as at 51 December consists of:

1,561,022 1,504,808
1,611,137 1,480,711

818,867 823,081

Provision for legal cases {a)
Asset retirement obligation (b) 10
Provision for remediation and demolition cosls {c)

QOperaling lease 26 6Y3,086 1,110,853
Cash secuiity deposits 379,744 333,806
Ofhier fiabilities , 156,618 80571

i T / 5,219,474 5333830

(a} Provision for leyal case

The Company has recorded provisions for tax and legal items relating to the regular operations of the
Company. Movements in the provision for legal easc follow:

T " Note 2014 2013
1 January 1,504,808 1,448,594
_Provisions, het e 22 56,214 56,214

31 December ... 1561022 1,504,808

(b) Asset retivement obligation

Movements in the provision for asset relirement obligation follow:

Note 2014 T a0is
1,480,717 1,328,850

1 danuary

Additions 28,935 163,780
Accretion 23 188,610 78,628
_Charges e _ (87,119) {90,647)
31 Dacember o o 1,611,137 1,480,711
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Assel retirement obligation represents the future estimated dismantling cosls of various assels used in
retail, depot and commercial operations. Average remaining life of the related assets is 6 years as at
31 Decentber 2014 (2013 - 7 years), These are stated at present value at 35 December using a discount
rate of 3%.

{c) Provision for remediation and demolilion costs

Movements in the provision for remedialion and demolition costs follow:

] o Note 2014 2013

1 danuary 823,081 829,266
Accretion 23 33,080 35,019

S Charges (37,294) (41,204)
31 December o 818,867 823,081

Provision for environmental liabilities (remediation and demolition) is recorded where there is a
constritctive or legal obligation to remediate any known environmental damages arising in the ordinary
course of business, The amount recorded is generally based on independent evalualion of
environmental firms. The estimated amount of provision is recorded al net present value discounted

at 5%.

Noie 17 - Capital stock

Capital stock and treasury shares as at 31 December 2014, 2013 and 2012 consist of:

Number of
B -~ shares Amount
Authorized capital stock, common shares at P1 par value per share 1 bittion 1,000,000
Issued shares 758,885,514 758,885
Treasury shares o {67,614,089) (507,1086)
issued and outstanding shares o 691,271,425 251,779

On 24 February 2015, the BOD approved the proposed increase in capitalization by P18 billion. This
wolld consequently increase authorized capital stock and its corresponding rights.

Note 18 - Retained earnings: Dividends

Cash dividends declared in 2014, 2013 and 2012 follow:

_Date of declaralion Per share 2014 2013 2012
16 Aprif 20123 C.62 - 475,812 -
17 April 2012 7.04 - - 9,143
17 Aprit 2012 7.04 o - - 4,854,837

- 475,812 4,863,980

No dividends were declaved during 2014, Included in the balance of retained earnings is the amount of
P1.t billion representing the retained earnings of Shell Philippines Petroleum Corporation as at 30
June 1999 upon its merger with the Company. The said amount is available only for stock dividends.
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Note 19 - FEarnings per share

Computation of earnings per share for the years ended 31 December follow:

Note 2014 2013 2012
f-arnings available to stockholders:

.. Profit{loss) for the year : (8,188,580) (912,108) 4,799,392
Weighted average number of shares 17 758,885,514  7h8,885 514 758885514
Treasury shares oM (67,614,089)  (67,614,089)  (67,614,089)

. . 691,271,425 691,271,425 691,271,425
Farnings (l.oss} per share, basic and diluted {1228y  (1.32y 8.94

Noute 20 - Cost of sales

The compunents of cost of sales for the years ended 31 December ave as follows:

_ , — Notes 2004 2013 2002

Crude and product costs {,24 208,027,852 170,992,430 160,942,062
Duties and specific tax $5,593,207 5,442 970 5,700,114
Logistics and transshipment 5,604,636 4,572,396 4,454 862
Manufacluiing oxpenses 2,621,261 2,962,166 107,702
f-raight and wharfage 994,294 1,045,351 5,694,825
Depreciation and amorlization 10, 12 830,083 787,023 728,483
Salaries and other employee benefits _ 122,840 516,415 483,233

225,304,173 187,218,810 178,111,171 _

The more significant components of manufacturing expenses consist of insurance, transport costs,
supplies and rentals.

Noie 21 - Selling, general and adininistralive expenses

The components of selling, general and administvalive expenses for the years ended 31 December ave as
follows:

} Selling General and administralive
e e Notes 2004 2093 0 20012 2014 L2018 2012

Qulside services 1,630,347 2,182,087 1,735,430 531,041 629,639 577,734
Depreciation and

amortization 10, 12 1,342,849 827,630 868,650 126,365 168,453 177,867
Rentals 26 1,307,875 1,266,926 1,188,408 83,191 70,462 75,973
Compensation, pension cost

aind empioyac sonclils 24,05 1277430 005,009 1341315 148,400 161,854 347,248
Repairs and maintenance 1,088,788 233,104 414,044 33,403 30,432 41,207
Advertising and promotions 606,288 580,634 511,337 133,506 45,008 69,370
Travel and transportation 141,226 180,380 173,946 3273 9,580 35,193
Communication and ulilities 136,331 172,152 152 485 445898 443,561 375,871
Write-offfimpairmenl

(Reversal} of receivables 6,9 127,107 29,1056 4,001 {747} - (12,445)
Insurance 61,186 8,084 1,424 204,179 385,401 304,017
tAlscatlaneous 7,875 48,162 48,111 11,703 131,693 210,524

7,736,002 6624184 6440052 2,049,212 2,376,083 2,202,157
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Note 22 - Other aperaling income, net

The components of other operating income {expense} for the years ended 31 Decomber ave as {ollows:

. .. Notes 2014 am3 2012

Retailer fee, rental income and

franchise commission 330,083 279,069 241 970
Royaltics 24 68,822 66,207 71,814
l.oss on disposal of property and equipment 10 {16,682} (78,782} (122,513)
Camnissions {31,798) {15,720} {19,815)
Provision for legal cases, net 16 {56,214) {66,214} {14,619)
Provision for remediation and demolition cost - {£9,765) {19.069)
Others, net o 61,653 85,882 17,272

356,964 220,677 161,040

The mare significant components of the 'Others, net' account in the table above consist of concession fees
and contracling conrmissions,

Noie 22 - Finance income (expensc}, net

The components ol finance income {expeuse) for the years ended 31 Decoinber ave as follows:

___Notes 2014 2013 202
Finance income
Realized foreign exchange gain 27 219,804 . 627,071
Interest income 59 19,688 31,793 20,229
Unrealized foreign exchange gain 27 - - 71,225
_ Uyealized mark-fo-market gain 24 - - 356,203
S 239,492 31,793 763,728
Finance expense
Interest and finance charges 13,14,15  (1,250,786) (1,175,802) (1,382,343)
Accretion expense 14 (221,690) {113,647) {107,745)
Unreaiized foreign exchange loss 27 (179,292) (76,454) -
Realized mark-to-market loss 24 (149.274) - -
Unrealized mark-to-market loss (59,625) {11,343) -
Bank charges 14, 1% (8,220} {5,487) (11,547)
~ Realized foreign exchange 10ss B 27 - (1,060,049)

(1,868,787)  (2,442,862) (1,501,635)

(1,629,295) (2,411,069) _(747,907)

‘I'he notional principal amount of the forward contract as at 31 December 2o1g4 amounted 1o Pzeo
willion. The fair values of the related asset amounting to P1.7 million is booked under receivables and
the related liability amounting to P173.1 million is booked under accounts payable and acerued
expenses in the balance sheet,
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Note 2. - Related parly transactions

I the normal course of business, the Company transacts with companies, which are cousidered related
parties uuder PAS 24, "Related Party Disclosures™,

The transactions and outslanding balances of the Company willi refated parties as at and for the vear
encded 41 December 2o ave as follows:

{a} Entitics under common sharcholdings

" Receivables
o _ Noles  transaclions (Payables) Teuns und conditions L
Purchases of gonds and scivices i3 154 075,877 (9,591,144} Payable batances are to be setlted i cash

and are due within 30 to 60 days from
data of each transaction. These die non-
interest hearing and not coverad by any
_ . Quwantee, See (i), (Kand@v).
13 172,619 (27,924)  Payable bainnces ate {o be settled in cash
and are due within 30 te GO days from
date of each transaction These are not
interest baaring and not covesad by any
) o ghuarantee. See (ii). o o
3] 8,540,097 567,813 Receivable balances are to be scitleo in
cash and are due within 30 to 60 days
from date of cach bansaction. These are
aon-inferest bearing and not covered by
any secutity.

leases

Royally fee (v) 22 68,822 - Payable bafances are to be settled in cash
within 30 days from month and
t.oans extended by the Company {(vi) G - 379,678 Principal is due for collection in cash ance
tnterest on loans extended by the the proporty of TRI associated to this loan
Company 6 13,454 - is sold. Inferesl of 3% - 7% is being

collected in various quaretly installments
up to Febroary 2029. The receivable
. R o halance is not coverad by any security,
Advances extended by the Advances of the Company o FPIC are
Company (iv) 4 6216 163.447 recovered thraugh offselling over an
approximated period of twanty-four (24)
months against future FPIC billings for
serwvices rendered thru the WOPL and
BOPL. These advances are not covered
by any securily.  Full provision was
) _ . recognized for the balance in 2014,
Admin biffings (vii) 13 {01,954} {84,633) The non-trade payable balances lo be
settled in cash and are due within 15 days
from month end. These are acn-interest
bearing and aic nol covered by any

. _secunly. o
Fension 25
Coniributions to the plan 412,967 - Contributions to the plan and investing
Plan assels - investmenls - 26,831 transactions of the plan are approved by
Transfer of obligations due to the Relirement Plan Board of Trusiees.
{ransfer of employees 5,528 -
Advances 8 3¥0,000 762,000  Advances peitain {0 assistance extended

by the Company to the Retirement Fund.
The balance is colieclible in the nexi
reporting period through direct conlribution
of the Fund to the Gompany's plen assets.
The balance is non-interest baaring and is
not covered by any security.
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(6} Parenl company

e Note  Transaclions Payable foans
Dividends declaser) i ©.668) Dividends are vsually paid within 12
- . __roonths front repoiting date. o
(e} Key management persannel
o . Note  Transactions Balances . dewns .
Guerent
Saianes and other shert tem
enployee bonefits 95410
Non-cunent The lenms and atrangements of these
Posi-employment benefits 25 7,016 39,412 non current employee benefils are
i ised compensation 16,003 swinirtatized in the selated notes.

The transactions and ontstanding balances of the Company with related parties for the comparative
figares as at and for the years ended 31 Decomber 2013 and 2012 ave preseated in the table below, The
terms amd arrangements presented for 2014 also apply to the transaetions and bakances {or 20373 and

2019,

(1) Entities under common shareholdings

A _ 2012
Recowvables Recoivabls
) Notes  Transactions (Fayables) Transaclions {Payables)
Purchases of goods and services 13 148,730,455 {7,273,455) 153,524,313 {(13,795,969)
Leases i3 125,583 (27,171} 132,674 (23,608)
Sales ) 1,142,242 9,392,669 1,910.077
_Royally fee {v) LR 385746 -
Loans extended by the Company {(vi) <] - 575,459 . 676,489
inlerest on loans extended by the Company G 13,707 18707 16972 LR Ty
Advances oextended by the Company {iv) 8,8 - _ 157,231 100,000 180,802
_ Admin billings (vi}) - 84,370 _ - 127,573 160891
Pension 25
Contributions to the plan 442283 - 542,921 -
Plan assets - investraents 270,783 - 308,335
Transler of obligations due to
transfers of employees 40,754 - 32,646 -
__Advances ) 392 000 397,000 - -
(b) Parent company
2013 - 2017 -
B Note Transactions Payable Transaclions _ Payahle
“Dividends dectaied 18 486,376 10,080) AR 7A W -5 L E)
(¢} Subsidiary
S 2013 . 2012
e _HNotes  Transactions Balances Transactions  Balances
Dividends receivad i - 445,156 -
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(d) Key management personnel

(i)

2013 2012
 _Note  Transactions Balances Transaclions falances
Current
Salaries and other shori-term
employee benefits 100,789 - 93,687
Non-current 26
Post-employment benefits 8,523 21870 23915
___Share-based compansation 32,716 _ - 49,387
{i) The Company purchases erude and other oit products from Shell International Eastern Trading Co.

(SIEFCO), an entity under comman sharelioldings. "Che Company’s erude purchases are being
processed through its refinery in Batangas. Cost of purchases during the year amounted to
’153.4 billion (2013 - P131.5 hillion and 2012 - P129.2 hillion), As at 31 December 2014, balances
payable 1o SIETCO amounted to P8.5 billion (2013 - P5.9 billion and 2012 - Pit.i billion). During
the year, the Company recognized mark-to-market loss of P149 million (2013 - vil; 2012 - P35
wmillion gain), in relation to ils aviation product purchases from SIETCO.

Under existing agreements with Shell International Petroleum Company (SIPC) of the United
Kingdom and Shell Global Solutions International B.V. (8GS) of The Netherlands, an entity under
cotmon sharcholdings, SIPC and SGS provide management advisory, business support, and
research and development and technical support services to the Company under certain {erms and
conditions. These agreements shall remain in {ull foree until terminated by cither party by giving
the other party not less than 12 months prior wrilten notice to that effect. Cost of the services
charged to operations amounted to Pr.g hillion in 2014 (2013 - P1.7 billion and 2012 - P1.7 hillion)
{Note 21}. As at 31 December 2014, halances payable 1o SIPC amounted to P22 million (2013 -
P1z4 million and 2012 - P47 million),

(iti) The Company leases from TRI the Shell House office huilding for a period of thiree years, renewable

(iv})

annually thereafter. Rent expense charged to operations amounted to P87.5 niillion in 2014

(2013 - P79.6 million and 2012 - P78 million) (Note 22), As at 31 December 2014, there are no
outstanding payable related to the Shell House lease (2013 - nit and 2012 - P2 million), The
Company also leases from TRI, a portion of the Tabangao Refinery land area and lots for several
depots located around the country. Lease term ranges from 5 (o 50 years and is renewable,
thereafler. Rent expense charged 1o operations amounted to P85 million in 2014 (2013 - P46
million and 2012 - P54.7 miltion), Asat 31 December 2014, payable related to the refinery and lots
for depois is P27.9 million (2012 - P27.2 million and 2012 - P21.6 million).

The Company entered into separale agreemcents in 1969 for the use of the white oil pipcline
(WOPL) and in 1981 for the use of the black oil pipeline/spurline (BOPL) owned by FPIC for
delivery of praducts from the Company’s Fabangao refinery to its Pandacan and Sucat depots for a
fee per barrel of product moved, Total coste related to this agreement in 2014 amounted to Po
million (2013 - P130 million and 2012 - P118 million). In 2012, the Company extended a cash
advanec to FPIC amounting to P163.4 million which can be recovered against future billings for
services rendered thru WOPL and BOPL {(Note 9), In 2014, the Company provided an allowance

for this cash advanee due to finaneial difficulty of FPIC.
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(v) On 1January 2008, the Company and Shell Brands International AG (SBI), an entity under
common shareholdings, entered into Trade Marks and Manifestation License Agreement pursuant
to which SBI, the licensor, grants the Company, the licensee, a non-exclusive right to reproduce,
use, apply and display the Shell trade mark and other manifestation. In consideration, the
Company shall pay a royalty fee, which shall be computed as certain percentage of sales. Royally
rate varies from 0.01% to 0.58% depending on product type, This agreement can be termivated by
cither party without any penalty.

(vi) The oulstanding louns Lo 'Fabangao Realty, Ine. (TRI) were substantially used for the construction
of pipeline and trestle facilities and acquisition of land and building, The current portion of the
loans as at 31 December 2014 amounted to nil (2013 - P80.8 million), In a separate Memorandum
of Agreement, the Company agreed with TRI to operate, maintain and secure said facilities for a
fee.

{(vii)The Company receives billings from entities under common shareholdings for group-shaved
expenses related to IT maintenance, personnel and other administrative costs.

Noie 25 - Employee henefiis

(@) Retirement plan

The Company has a non-contributory retivement gratuity plan (Plan) for the benefit of its vegular
employees, The assets of the Plan are maintained by a trustee bank. The Plan provides for payment of
henefits, either in hunp sum or in instaliments at the option of the retirees, upon attainment of the
normal retirement age of 60, or, upon relirement/separation at an earlier age.

The pension obligation is determined using the “Projected Unit Credit Cost” (PUC) method, Under the
PUC method, the annual normal cost for the portion of the retirement is determined as the anmount
necessary to provide for the portion of the retirement benefit acerning during the year.

'The actuarial present value of the vetirement benefits obligation under the plan is measured in terms of
actuarial assumptions for discount rate, salary increases, relivement rates and mottality using the 1985
Unisex Aunuity Table and 1952 Disability Table. The rate used to discount post-employment benefit
obligations are based on the caleulated single effective discount rate determined by discounting the
projected benefil payments using diffevent term-dependent derived zero-coupon government bond yields.

The actuarial valunation of the Company's retirement plan was performed by an independent actuary at
41 December 2014, 2013 and 2012 using the projected unit eredit method, The latest actuarial
valuation report prepared by the independent actuary was for the year ended 31 Deccmber 2014, The
principal assumptions were:

Iy PPN

] - 2044 2U13 2012
Discount rate 4.40% 5.30% 5.80%
_ Future salary increases _ 5.00% 600%  800%

Assuiptions regarding (ulure mortality experience are sel based on published statistics and experience
in each tervitory, The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiving at age 66 on the balance
sheet date is 41 years for male and 34 years for female,
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The overall investment poliey and strategy of the retivement plan is hased on the Board of Trustees’
suitability assessment, as provided hy its investment advisors, in complianee with Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas requirements. The Company does not perform an asset-liability matching study. However,
the retirement plan has a Risk and Audit Committee who performs quarterty review of risks relevant to
running the retirement fund. The stme committee prepares review highlights for presenlation to the
vetirement plan Board of Trustees, Responsibility for governance of the retiement plan les with the
Board of Trustees.

The following are details of the pension expense and pension assel as al and for the yeurs ended 31
Decemnber are as follows;

Pension asset 666,668 735337 195,526
_Pension expense 167,440 175454 203,219

The amount of pension assel (iability) recognized in the balance sheets is determined as follows:

T(4,020,046)  (3.484,709) (3,134,674
4,685,714 4,220,046 3,330,150

665,668 735337 195576

Present value of defined benelit obligation
f-air value of plan asscls

'The movement in the pension asset recognized in the halance sheets as at 31 December {ollows:

) —_— e Note 2014 2013 2012
1 January 135,337 195,526 {230,906)
Pension expense (167.440) (175,454) (203.219)
Actuat contribtitions 412,907 442 263 542,921
Remeasurement gains (losses) N ~_(315,136) 273,002 86,730
31 December 12 665,668 735,337 195526

Pension expense recognized in the statements of income is as follows:

) _ Note 2014 2018 2012
Current service cost 206,414 186,795 187,509
interest cost (38,974) (11.341) 15,010

Transferred liability during the year . - . 700
i o 167,440 175,454 203,219

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

o 2014 2013 2012

1 January 3.484,709 3,134,624 3,082,821
interest cost 184,689 181,808 200,383
Current service coslt 206,414 186,795 187,500
Benefits paid (284,303) (206,188) {169,634)
Transter of employees fromfio entities under common control {5,528) {40,754) (32,646}
Remeasurement {gains) losses fromu

Changes in financial assumptions 371,603 191,350 (80,253)

Experience adjustments o B o 62,162 37,074 (53,650)

_31 December __4,020046 3,484,709 3,134,624
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Changes in the fair value of the plan assets follow;

S 2014 2013 2012
1 January 4,220,046 3,330,150 2,851,915
Interest income 223,663 193,149 185,373
Contributions 412,907 442,263 542,921
Benefils paid (284,303}  (206,188) {169.634)
Transferred from/to enlities under common shareholdings, net {5,628} {40,754} (33,346)
Remeasurement gains (losses) from experience adjustments 118,929 501,426  (47,079)
31 December ] 4685714 4220046 3,330,150

The carrying value of the plan assets as at the years ended 31 December 2014, 2013 and 2012 are
equivalent to the fair values presented above and are comprised mainly of investments in eqguity
securities and similar financial assets, which account for 89% of the total plan asseis. Plan assets are
comprised of:

2014 2013 2012
Investments in debt securities
Government securities 607,034 72,068 65,631
Loans and discounts - - 53,765
Investment in equity securilies
Unit investment trust funds 3,975,581 4,033,590 2,945,936
Other equity investmenis 13,162 12,418 10,332
Others - 89,937 101,870 254,486

4,685,714 4,220,046 3,330,150

Plan assets as al 31 December 2014 excludes an amount equivalent to P1.7 billion (2013 - P1.9 billion
and 2012 - P1.g billion) pertaining to restricted investments in shares of an entity under common
shareholdings engaged in real estate leasing.

Expericnce adjustments on plan assels and plan liabilities for the year ended December g1

2014 2013 2012
Plan assels - gain {loss} 118,929 501,426 {47,079}
Plan liabilities - loss (gain) 62,162 37,074 (563,556}

Expected contribution to the plan in 2015 is P2og million.

The Company has no other transactions with the fund except for those noted above and summarized in
Note 24.

The expected undiscounted maturity benefif payments for the next 10 years as at 31 December are as
follows:

B ) 2014 2013
Following year 76,512 122,031
Between 2 o 3 years 434,898 372,362
Between 3 {o 5 years 303,964 296.436
QOver b years 2,087,494 1,981,001
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{h) Share-based compensation

RDS operates a Performance Share Plan (PST) covering all of its subsidiaries’ employees who are not
metthers of the Exceutive Committee, PSP tor condilional shares are awarded to cligible eimployees
hased an Ltheirsustained performance and value. The extent to which shares ave finadly delivered at the
end of a three-year performance period at no cost but delivery depeids apon the performanee of the
Shell group.

A Monte Carlo option pricing model is used to estimate the fair valie of the share-bhased compensation
expense azising from the Plan. The model projects and averages the vesuits for a range of potential
vuteomes for the vesting condilions, the principal assumptions for which are the share price volatility
and dividend yields for RDS and four of its main competitors over the last three years and the last ten
years.

Movements of the sharves granted in respect of Uie PSPC for the peviod ended 31 December 20144 and

2013 are as follow:

. 2014 S
Weighted Weighted
average average
fair vatue fair value
,,,,,,,,,,,, e, Shares  (in U.S. Doltar) es  (in U.5. Dollar}
Shares granted as at 1 January 163,255 30.38 5 J0.¢
Grants during the year 62,080 35,68 910 29,46
Shares delivered during the year {54,542) 26.61 (90,720) 20.42
Cancelledfforfeited during the year - - {4,050 3165
Shares granted as at 31 December 170,793 30.89 163,266 31.22

The total share-based compensation recognized in the statements of income during the year amounted to
P74 million (2013 - Pyg million; 2012 - 1108 million).

Note 26 - Lease and other conunitinents

(a} The Company has separate agreements with various ship owners for the usc of white and black oil
vessels for a fixed time charter fee per day, Amoeunt charged to operations under this contract
amouited to Pr.g billion for each of the three years ended 2014.

(b} The Company has depots for the distribution of oil products located in various sites all over the
country, All of these depots arve leased from vavious lot owners ranging from 5-265 yeass contracts
rencwable upon muiual agreement by both partics. These ave integral part of the downstream
network as fuel products are stored and loaded to tank trucks and barges from these depots.
Amount charged to operations amounted to P2.o hilllon for 2014 (2013 - P2.0 billion and
2012 - P17 billion).

(¢) The Company has existing agreements with various lessors covering a number of retail stations.
Such agrecments have terms ranging from 1 to 25 years renewable upon mutual agreement of the
parties, Likewise, the Company enteved into various lease agreements covering offices, retail sites
and storage points. Amount charged to operations amounted lo P10 billion for each of the three
years cnded 2014.
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The rent expenses related to these agreements and lease arrangements with an entity under
common sharcholdings (Note 2.4} arve recorded as part of cost of sales in the statement of income
(Note 20) except for the lease of Shell House, which was recognized as part of selling, general and

administrative cxpenses,

The long-term porlion of advance rentals on these leases is included under ‘Long-lerm receivables,
rentals and investments, net’ account (Note 9); the current portion is included under ‘Prepayments
and other eurrent assets’ account (Note 8) in the balance sheets.

Under PAS 17, the Company recorded additional lease accruals amounting to P12 million arising
from Jease straight-lining for each of the three years ended 2014,

‘he Company's future minimum rental commitments related to the above leases as at 31 December

are as follows:

- 2014 2013 2012
Less than 1 year 3,246,615 2,979,933 3,246,615
More than 1 year but not more thah & years 4,702,344 7,578,757 4.703,344
Over b years 3,974,268 5,170,735 3,974,258

(d) In October 2013, the local company which bought the Company's shares over SGLPT in 2012 (Note
g} filed for claims in relation to the supply chain of SGLPI that was adversely affected by a
supervening event, As such, the Company entered into a new agreement Lo seitle the clains of the
local company amounting to Pr.2 billion. The said amount was settled in Decemnber 2013 and was

charged to the statement of income under other non-operating income (expense).

Note 27 - Foreimm currency denominated assets and linbilities

The Cotpany's foreign currency assets and liabilities as at 31 December are as follows:

Net foreign
currency
assels Exchange Paso
) Currency _Assels  Liabilities ___ (liabilities) rate equivalent
2014

US dollar 64,807 304,877 (240,070} 44,62 (10,711,923)
Euro 3,251 5,251 {2,000} 54.34 (108,680)
Japanese yen 4,181 248,545 (244,354} 0.37 {90,411)
UK pound 99 1,194 (1,095) 659.41 {76,004)
Singapore dollar 439 2,604 {2,165) 33.70 (72,961)
Chinese yuan - 2,260 (2,760) 718 {16,227}
Australian dollar - 84 (84) 36.21 {(3.041)
Canadian dollar - 8 (8} 38.40 {307)
Swedish kroner - 16 (16) 5.69 {91)
Malaysian ringgit 228 2 226 12,79 2,891

(11,076,754)
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Net foreign

currency
assels Exchange Peso
" Currency _ Assets  Liabililies _ {liabilities) rate equivalent
2013
US dollar 37,104 234,293 (197,189) 44.40 (8.755,192)
UK pound - 455 {455) 72.90 {33,170
Euro 1,211 1,565 (344) 60.82 (20,922)
Singapore doliar - 469 {469) 35.00 (16,415)
Malaysian ringgit - 86 (86} 13.48 {1.159)
Australian doliar - 2 2) 39.46 (79)
Japaness yen 1,843 23,107 (21,264) 0.42 {8,931}
Chinese yuan - 1,959 {1,959) 731 {14,320)
— (8,850,188)
2012
US dollar 53,280 365,845 (312,556) 41.056 {12,830,424)
Euro 1,136 1,441 {305) 5453 {16,632}
Singapore doltar - 329 {329) 33,70 {11,087)
Chinese yuan - 1,389 {1,389) 6.61 {9,181}
UK pound - 111 (111) 66.32 (7,362)
Japanese yan - 3,956 (3,956) 0.48 {(1,899)
Malaysian ringgit 1,275 63 1,212 13.47 16,326
~ Australian dollar 43 22 2 4287 896
L B (12,859,363)

Note 28 - Contingencies

{a} Excise tax on importations of Catalytic Cracked Gasoline (CCG) and Light Catelytic Cracked
Gasoline (LCCG)

The Company imported substances such as CCG and LCGG which it combined and blended with other
petroleun: substances to produce finished gasoline products thal are compliant with the requirements
of the Clean Air Act and the Philippine National Standard.

I 2004, the then Deputy Commissioner of the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) Legal and Inspection
Group, acting on the opinion of the Departiment of Energy (DOE) that CCG and LCCG were raw
materials or blending components in the production or processing of gasoline in ifs finished form,
ascertained that imported CCG and LCGG were not subject to excise tax under the Nalional Internal
Revenue Code (NIRC) because they were intermediale gonds which were not intended for domestic sale
or consumption but were instead additional components in the production of finished gasoline
products which were then subject Lo excise tax,

Relying in good faith on these administrative actions, the Company imported from 2004 to 2009
shipments of CCG and LCCG into the Philippines with each shipment covered by the corresponding
BIR Authority to Release Imported Goods (ATRIG) stating that the importation is not subject lo excise
tax, Upon payment of value-added tax (VAT) as assessed in the ATRIGs, the Burean of Customs (BOC)
allowed the entry of the impotted CCG and LCCG without payment of excise tax.
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In 2009, 1he District Collector of the Port of Balangas issued a letter demandivg from the Company the
payment of delicicney excise tax, VAT and penalties covering inportation eatries from 2006 o 2008,
"Fhe Company requested 1he cancellation of the demand letter for lack of factual and legal basis, The
Disteiet Colleetor of the Port of Batansas denied the request of the Company awd declared that the T
mandated the payment of excise tax on importation of unteaded gasoline and that it mide no
distinction or gualificalion on whether or not it was for consumption or sale lo the domestic market,
The District Cotlector of the Port of Batanpas then reiterated his previous demand and threatened
enforcemuent of Section 1508 of the Tariff and Customs Code of the Philippines (PCCP) which would
hold the delivery or release of imported articles when an imporler has an outstanding and demandable
necount.

The Company appeated before the Commissioner of Customs {COC). n the meantime, the Dircetor of
the DOE-OIl Industry Management Burcau issued a letter reiterating the carlier DOFE finding that CCG
and LCCG imports were raw materials or blending components in the production or processing of
gasoline in its finished form . The then BIR Commissioner issued a memorandum confirming and
reiterating the initial ruling in 20044 to the effect that CCG and LCCG ave intermediate produets or
blending components which are not subject to exeise lax under Section 148 of the NIRC.

"The COC denied the appeat of the Company and demanded the payment of exeise tax and VAT for the
Compiny's CCG and LOCG importations this time from 2004 to 2009, The Company filed a motion for
reconsideration of the Letter Decision, which was denied by the COC, The COC then ordeved the
Company to pay the principal aimount of P7.3 billion and pay the excise tax and VAT on al incoming,
€06 and 1L.CCG shipments,

The Company thereafter filed a petition for review with the Court of Tax Appeals (CTA) for the purpose
of appeating the ruling of the COC as well as to apply for the issuance of a temporary restraining order
{TRO) to immediately prevent the COC from seizing future shipments of the Company pursuant to
Section 1508 of the TCCP. The Company likewise applicd for the issuance of a suspenston order for the
purpose of ensuring the preservation of the status quo while the merits of the appeal are being heard by
the CIA.

While the case was pending in the CTA, the BIR Commissioner at that time issued on 15 December
2009 a Letter-Ruling declaring that the CCG and LCCG imports of the Company were subject to excise
tax on the ground that the law did not make any distinction or qualification on whether or not the
imponts were intended for consumption or for blending with other substances. 'the ruling effectively
reversed the earlier rutings of former BIR Comntissioness.

Following the reversal of the ruling by the BIR Commissioner, the BOC started collecting excise taxes in
January 2010 on shipments of the Company. The Company paid the ROC assesstuents inder protest
and on 27 January 2010, filed a Supplemental Petition sceking to annul the 15 December 2009 ruling
by the BIR Commissioner.

In view of the paramount public interest, the government agreed not to exercise Section 1508 of the
TCCP an condition that the Company posts a surety hond,

On 4 March 2010, the CT'A approved the surety bond posted by the Company and enjoined the COC,
the Collector of Customs at the Port of Batangas, the BOC and alf persons acting under their divection
or authority from undertaking any actions under Section 1508 of the TCCP and/or from all remedies to
collect from pelitioner the excise taxes and VAT, with inerements, subjeet of the case.
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On 27 Noveher 2012, the CEA 39 Division issued 2 Resolution granting the Company’s Motion for
Sunmmary Judgment, The Conrt decmed that BOC's demwand for Whe paynrent of excise taxes on
importations of LUCG/CCG during the period 2004 to 2009 withoul merit, rendering the discussion on
whether the COG/1CCG are praperly elassified (under Section 148(c) or Section 148(f) of the NIRC, as
amended) moot and acadensie. The CTA ruled in favor of the Company and respondent was prohibited
from collecling the alleged unpaid excise laxes ad VAT thereon, on the Company’s importations of
CCG/1.OCG for the relevant periods in 2004 1o 2000,

The BOC filed a Petition lor Review with the CTA En Bane, Meanwhile, the Company filed ils own
Petition for Review wilth the CTA En Bane because the CUA did not invalidate the 15 December 2009
Ruling of the CIR with respect Lo double taxation - fivst, upon importation and the ather upon
withdrawal of the finished grade products from the refinery,

Management believes that provision should nol be recognized as at 31 Decemiber 2014, vorg and 2012
sirree iU is the Company's assessment that ability arvising is not probable hecause the Company’s factual
and legal pogitions are strong, This assessment is supported by the favorable CUA yuling during the
year.

(h) Exeise tax on Importations of Atkylate

Following Lke raling, of the BIR authorizing the colleetion of excise taxes on CCG/LCCG imporlations,
the Company began inposting Alkylate as its blending component. The COC issued Customs
Memorandum Circular No. 164-2012 dirceting the BOC and its officers to take the "appropriate action”
in relation to BIR Ruling dated 29 June 2012 {Ruling No. M-o59-20i2) issued by the BIR
Commissioner, In the ruling dated 29 June 2012, the BIR Commissioner held that Atkylate is also
subject of excise tax upon importation, The BIR Ruling further held that the Company is liable for the
amount of P1.3 bithion {US$33 million) representing the unpaid taxes, on the importations of Alkylate
from 2010, A Petition for Review of the BIR Ruling was filed with the C'A. On 18 Seplember 2012, the
Company filed a Motion for the Issuance of a Suspension Order to stop the implementation of Ruling
No, M-059-2012,

On 22 October 2012, the CTA issued a Resolution approving the issuance of a Suspension Ovder
stopping the collection of alleged deficiency excise taxes (and VAT) {or the period from 2010 to.June
2012, upon the posting by the Company of a surety bond. Said bond was duly filed and the CTA
approved the same on 30 October zo12,

In a Resohrtion dated 28 January 2013, the CTA denied the BIR/BOC Motion to Dismiss the case,
Subsequent appeals (Petitions for Certiorari) from the denial of the Motion Dismiss have been filed by the
BOC and the BIR with Supreme Court (SC).

On 2 June 2014, the Company filed a Petition for Certiorari with Application {or the Issuance of a
Temporary Restraining Order and/or Writ of Preliminary Injunction with the SC questioning ihe denial
of its application for the isswance of a suspension order against the assessment and collection of excise
taxes on its March 2014 alkylate shipment, On 7 July 2014, the SC issued a temporary restraining order
cujoining the CTA and the tax-collecling agencies of the government from imposing exeise taxes on
incoming atkylale importations of the Company.

Meanwhile, in the main case before the CTA, on 31 July 2zo14, PSPC fited a Motion {for Judgment on the

Pleadings. This Motion was denied by the tax court on 13 Febrnary 2015. On 16 March 2015, PSPC filed
a Motion for Reconsideration from this denial of the Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings.
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(c) Other significant pending lox cases

The Company is a defendant or respondent in cases involving tax eredit certificates (TCC) and
assesstents for local taxes by Batangas City Government. The total amount of case pending (excluding,
htterest and penalties) is P653 million, Management believes that the ultimate outeome of the
coutingeneies diseussed below will not have a material impact on the finaneial statements as of 31
December 2014, 2013 and o1z,

(i) The Company filed two {2) separate pelitions wilh the CTA secking Lo invalidate two {2)
assessiments by the BIR for speeific taxes (plns 25% surcharge, 50% fraud surcharge and 20%
interest) previously paid by the Company through TCC acquired by the Company from their
oviginal holders, and which TCC's the BIR alleged were fraudulently issued.

In a decision dated 25 Decenther 2007, the SC rendered a decision, that has since become final, in
one of the cases declaring that the Company is an innocent transferee for value. On 30 April 2009,
the seeond division of the CTA ruled in favor of the Company in the remaining TCC case with an
aggregate amount of P23g mitlion. On appeal, the CTA En Bane affirmed on 22 Febroary 2on the
CTA decision, prompling the BIR Cowmmissioner to elevale 1o appeal the malter before the SC,

Anolher collection case involving TOC's with an aggregate valne of Prg million that were used by
the Company in paynient of Laxes payable (o the BOC was dismissed by the Regional 'Trial Court
(RTC) of Manila, The COU has sinee appealed the same 1o the Conrt of Appeals,

(1) The Batungas Cily local tax case amonnting to °338 million is now pending with the 8C. On 11
August 2005, the CTA issued a resolution ordering Batangas City and any of its officers to hold in
abeyance the collection of the taxes under dispute.

On 21 June 2007, the 2ad Division of the CTA rendered a decision finding the Company not liable
for business taxes on the manufacture and distribution of petrolevm products and further deelared
that the amount assessed as mayor's permit fees was excessive. The City was further precluded
from imposing taxes on the manufacture and distribution of petroleum products and was ordered
to refund the excessive mayor’s permil fecs in the amount of P3.5 million. The Company filed a
Motion for Clarification to correct the computation of the amount to be refunded. The znd
Division of the CTA issued an Amended Deeision last 31 July 2007 partially granting the
Company's Motion for Clarification.

The City of Batangas {iled its Petition for Review with the CTA en bane last 20 December 2007. In
a decision dated 22 Januwary 2009, the CTA en bane affirmed the decision of the 2nd Division and
dismissed the Petition for Review filed by the City for lack of meril. Hence, the appeal by the City
of Batangas to the SC. Awailing further action from the SC.

(ii) Other than the tax cases tiled against the Company above, there arc aiso tax cases filed by the
Company for its claims from the government that are pending as at 33 December 2014, 2013 and
2012, Management believes that the ullimate outcome of such contingencies will not have a
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

() Pandacan zoning ordinance
On 28 November 2001, the City Government of Manila enacted Ordinance No, 8027 rezoning the
Pandacan depot from an Industrial 11 to a Commercial I classification. This ordinance required the

Company and two (2) other ail companies operating in Pandacan to cease and desist from operating
theit business within six (6) months.
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Tn June 2006, the Manila City issued a new zoning ordinance, Ordinance No. 8119, which classifics the
area of the Pandacan depot as an Overlay Planned Unit Development and required the phase out of the
Pandacan oil depot within a period of 7 years. The Company and another oil company filed with the
RTC of Manila, a joint complaint praying, among others for injunctive relief Lo stop the effectivity and
implementation of Ordinance No. 8119,

On 28 April 2009, the SC denied the motion for reconsideration from its decision in the case of ‘Social
Juslice Soviety, el al. vs. Honorable Jose L. Atienza Jr.," ordering the City of Manila to enforce
Ordinance No. 8027 and giving the Company, along with the two (2) other oi companies, a go-day
perind 1o submit to the Manila Regional Trial Court of Manila, Branch 39, a comprehensive plan and
reloeation schedule for the transfer of the Pandacan depot out of its present sile,

The Company and the two (2) other oil companies have submitted a plan which identified the criteria
for determining the location for the new depol. The relocation plan is still under consideration by the
RTC of Manila Branch 39,

However, on 28 May 2000, the Mayor of Manila signed his approval of Ordinance No. 8187, which
repeals Ordinance No, 8027 and amends Ordinance No. 8119, allowing the continued stay of the
Pandacan depot. Opponents of Ordinance No. 8187, Social Justice Society and former Mayor of
Manila, et al,, filed separate cases to question its validity before the SC. The Company filed its
Comment-in-Intervention and Memorandum and now awaits further action by the SC.

In 2012, the City Council of Manila passed Ordinance No. 8283, which reclassifies the area where the
Pandacan depot is located from being Industrial Zone into a Mixed Commercial/Residential Zone and
requires the removal of the oil terminal by January 2016, The former City Mayor vetoed the Ordinance.
However, the new City Mayor has publicly pronounced that he would ensure the closure of the
Pandacan depol. On 29 August 2013, the Company filed a Petition for Declaratory Relief with the
Regional Trial Court of Makati City to challenge the validity of Ordinance No. 8283.

On 25 November 2014, the SC decided to declare Ordinance No. 8187 unconstitutional and invalid with
respeet Lo the conlinuing stay of the Pandacan depots. On 5 January 2015, the Company filed its
Motion for Reconsideration.

In response to the latest decision of the SC, as well as the logistical optimization required from the
impact of the pipeline shutdown, the Company accelerated the depreciation of Pandacan assets in
2014. The impact of aceclerating the depreciation of Pandacan assets during the year is P35 million,
The total carrving amount of Pandacan assets amounted to P394 million as at 31 December 2014 (2013
- P749 million).

(e) Cases Filed by the West Tower Condominium Corporation
(i) Makati Regional Trial Comrt - Aclion lor Damages

Residents of West Tower Condomininm as well as various individuals and corporations who
reside/located in Bavangay Bangkal, Makati City filed a Complaint before the Regional Trial Courl
of Makati City on 24 March 2011, Aside from the Company, the complaint names the First
Philippine Industrial Corporation (“FPIC"), First Gen Corporation and Chevron Philippines, Inc.
and their divectors as defendants, and alleges that the aforementioned companies and individuals
violated Republic Act 6969 (Toxic Substances and Hazardons Wastes Control Act of 1990),
Republic Act 8749 (Philippine Clean Air Act of 1999) and its Implementing Rules and Regulations),
Republic Act 9275 (Philippine Clean Water Act of 2004) for which it claims damages pursuant to
AM. No. 09-6-8-5C. (Procedure on Envirenmental cases).
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(ii)

W

T'his is in connection with the leak of petrolenm produets from FPIC's white oil pipeline within the
proximity of the West Tower Condomininm Corporation. ‘The Company avails of said pipeline’s
services Lo leansport white oil produets front its vefinervy in ‘Tabangao, Batangss to s Pandacan
terminal,

The plaintiffs allepe that the oil “spill” cavsed by FPIC's pipeline was of such magnitnde that it
eaused envivonmental damage that affected their Yives health and properties, They claim tha
defendants are colleatively and solidarily liable to pay the dinages sustained by the plaintiffs
resulting from the atleged willful violation by the defendants of cavironmental taws, vules and
regulations and/or their malicious neglect or failure to excreise the extraordinary diligence and
wre required under the civeumstances by fasw and jurisprudenee.

The plaintiffs seck compensation of some P2.8 billion.

i its ruling dated 22 August 2011, the RTC declared the ease as an ordinary action for damages
instead of an environmental case. Consequently, the plaintiffs were required to pay the appropriate
filing fees within to days from veceipt of order. The plaintiffs moved for the reconsgideration of the
ruling, In an order dated 29 Mareh 2012, the RTC denied the plaintiffs’ motion {or reconsidesation,
The RTC's rulings were elevated by the plaintiffs to the Court of Appeals.

The Supreme Court resolved Lo adopt Uhe favorable recommendations to the Court of Appeals and
ardered FPIC to subit a cantification from the Seeretavy of the Depariment of Energy (DO that
the pipeline is already safe tor commereial operation. Ou 29 October 2013, the DOE Certification
wits subuitted Lo the Supreme Court.

Management believes that provision should not he recognized as of g1 Decemiber 2014, 2013 and
2012 since it is the Company's assessinent that liability arising is not probable becanse the
Company’s factual and legal positions are strong.

Department of Justice

Also in connection with the leak of petroleam products from FI'IC's pipeline, West Tower Condo
Corp. filed ot 15 October 2011 a case of Criminal Negligence (violation of Art. 365 of the Revised
Penal Code) against the eleven (1) directors of the Company.

Preliminary investigation is ongoing before the Department of Justice wilh the Company
respondents having filed their respective counter-affidavits on 19 December 2o,
Management believes that the ultimate outeome of these eontingencies will not have a naterial
impact on the Company's financial statements, given that the Company is only a client of FPIC,
Please refer to Note 4.1.¢ for additional information,

Uther ftigations

11 1996, an action for damages was filed against several U.S. corporations, including Shell Gil Company,
alleged to be manufacturers of pesticides conlaining chemicals used in plantations in Davao City,




In August 2009, a Davao City triad court issued a Notice of Garnishiment of the Company’s funds in a
bank, The Company sought and abtained protective relief frean the Comrt of Appeals on the basis that it
was nol o party to the case nor to the compromise agrecment subject of the case. “The Cowrt of Appeals
furthier ovdered the judge who issued the excention and garnishment against the Company's assets Lo
recuse himself from further presiding in the proceedings in the tral court, The 8C has declarved the
dismissal of one of the two petitions filed for failnre of petitioners to sufliciently show that the Court of
Appeals commilted any reversible error ine the deeision and resolution. “The S8C has not yet resolved the
remaining petition but the nmnagement believes that the ullimate ouleome of this contingeney will not
have a matevial impact on the Company's financial statements, given that it is similar 1o the previous
petition which will most probably have the same outcone,

Note 29 - Dervegulation Law

On 10 February 1998, RA No. 8479, otherwise knowi as the Downstream Qil Industey Deregulation Act
ol 1998 (the “Act”) was signed into law. ‘The law provides, among olhers, for oil refiners to list and offer
at least 10% of their shares to the public within three years from the effectivity of the said law,

I a letter to the Department of nergy {(DOE) dated 12 February 2001, the Department of Justice
{DOJ) rendered an opinion (hat the g year period in Section 22 of RA 8479 for oil retineties to make a
public offering s only direclory and not mandatery, As to when il should be accomplished is subject of
reasonable regulation by the DOL.

Currently, a refiner may conduct a public offering by itself taking inte account “the prevailing husiness,
economic, equily capital market, social or political circuustances and/or ather conditions” or by 1he
Seeretary of Energy upon a determination that the socio-economie, political, financial, and technical data
and information warrant the conduct of an Initial Public Offering (IP0), as guided by Lhe assessment and
determination of an independent financial adviser mutually aceeplable to the DO and the offevor,

The conduct of the public offering is subjeet to quarierly review depending on the developments of the
above factors,

Notc 20 - Operating segmmcents
‘the Company is organized into the following operating scgments:

(2) Retail - pertaing to the business of direetly sexvicing end consumers (private and commercial
motorists) via retail service stations managed by individual dealers invalving the sale of petroleuin
fuels, lubricants and convenience store items.

(h) Commereial - pertains to business willi commercial accounts in various seclors e.g. industrial,
power, manufactaring, wholesale, transport, construetion, agriculture, mining, hotel and other
seciors o1 cuslomels,

(¢} Manufacturing and Supply - covers the manufacturing business at the Tabangao Refinery. Supply
manages the erude/finished product importation and logistics requirements of manufacturing as
well as the produet transfers from the refinery to the distribution sites.

Geographical segmentation does not apply Lo the Company’s business,



Financial information ahout business segments is presented below:

Wanufacuring

o e ) o Retail Cammencial ant supply Olhers Tolal
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2014
Segnient revenue
L ocat 67,945 151 /183,250 27,369,393 36772 212,001,466
__ bxport and Intemational T 7474.8M 4,608 468 s 12083,809
Tolot 107,545,154 84,558,144 31,977,861 3672 224084825
Segment assels 17.055,842 20,755,349 25,376,900 9.811615 73.502 706
Segrent hibillies (3.980,504) (46,399,402} (15425142)  (3806.466) (69.672,064)
Property and equipment 5,938,123 90,638 4,307,015 6,284,953 18,630.72%
___BDepreciation and amortization ) [657,447) (B82,/54) @1.z200 (142.004)  (2,299,297)
As at amd for lhe yeer ended 31 Decemmboer 2013
Segment revenue
Local 99,175,804 68,491,130 16,257,764 2334 183927122
Expoitand International - e 088AGENT 7227326 0 - 14020742
I1otat G9,175,804 76,085 547 23,505,089 2834 194,848.854
Segment assets 22682 A7 24,761,305 18,285439 12004109 78733377
Segment tiabilities {9.019,408) {£.598,932) (5,082,958} (504713856} {66,172,682)
Propeity and equipmont 5,994,716 4,767,851 Y3/, 767 /6,408 14,777.222
_Depreciation and amortization ) o (617.154) (310,476} {787,023} (168.453)  (1,BB3.105)
As at and for the year ended 31 Duecamber 2012
Segment ievenae
{ocal 97 347,694 66,005,494 10,344 868 - 173,788,056
Expoit and Internationa - 7,894,577 785013 1064 15,080,654
Total 97,347,694 73,900,071 17,509,081 J.0684 188848710
Segmient assels 16,540,230 20,450,398 33,091,786 4,884 254 74,966 G634
Segment liabilities (5,987,797)  (4.367.579) (15330.245) {35427.794) (61,113415)
Properdy and equipment 9,200,027 1,128,965 4,221,868 16 14,550,876
Depreciation and amartization (521.257) {345,369) (728,383} (179.891)  {1,774.200)

The telal sales of the manufacturing and supply segment include sales to entities under common
sharcholdings amounting te P7.6 billion (2013 - P8.6 billion and 2012 - P9.3 billion).

Note 31 - Supplementary information required by the Bureau of Internal Revenuce

The following information required by Revenue Regutations No. 15-2010 is presented for purposes ol
filing with the BIR and is not a required part of the basic financial slatements.

(i} Output value-added tax (VAT)

Output VAT declared and the revenues upon which the same was based al 31 December 2014 consist of;

Gross amount

o ‘ . o of revenues  Oulput VAT
Subject to 12% VAT
Sale of goods 200,104,698 24,012,563
Sale of services - -
Sale lo government 11,849,979 1,421,997
Others i - -
) 211,954,677 25,434,560
Zero-rated
.__.Sale of goods - 28773855 -
Exempt
. Saleofgoods | 556,099 -
Total R 239,284,631 26434,560
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Zero-rated sale of goods pevtains to direct export sales transactions with PEZA-registered activities and
international vessels pursuant o Scetion 168 (b) of National Internal Revenue Code,

VAL exempt sales pertain to transaetions with exempt entities such as Shell Philippines Exploration
B.V., Adlaon Energy Development Corpovation, British Embassy, Embassy of Malaysia, Embassy of the
Crzech Republie, Embassy of the Russian, Food and Agriculture, Intl Labour Organization, New Zealand
Embassy, Pasar Employees Multi Purpose, Posco Phitippine Manila,Royal Netherlands Embassy,San
Beda Coliege, South African Embassy, Top ammusement Technology Intl, United Nations Children
Fund,United Nations Devt Programime and United Nations Population Fund, which are exempt
pursuant Lo Section 109 of National Internat Revenute Code.

(i) Input VAT

Movements in input VAT for the year ended 31 December 2014 follow:

Beginning balance 6,618,428
Add: Current year's domestic purchases/payments for;
Importation of goods for resale or manufacture 19,433,652
Domeslic goods for resate or manufacture 5,165,718
Services lodged under other accounts : 1,561,804
Services rendered by non-residents 81,021
Capital goods subject to amortization 1,394
Capital goods not subject to amortization -
Other adjustmenis 592,489
Deduct: Glaims for tax creditfrefund N -
Total input VAT 33,444 514

(iif) Imporiations

The total landed cost of imports and the amount of custom duties and taviff fees acerned and paid foy
the year ended 31 December 2014 follow:

“Landed cost of imports 161,947,104

_Customs dulies and tariff fees paid__— - 2,456,556

{iv) Documentary stamp tax
Documentary stamp taxes in relation to the Company’s borrowing {ransactions were expensed and

settled by the local bank. The velated balances amounting to '165.8 million were reimbursed by the
Company as part of bank service fee.
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(v) Excisetax

Excise taxes relate lo purchase of petroleum and mineral products by the Company. These taxes are
normally paid in advance by the Company and charged to cost of sales upon sale of goods, Total
amount paid and charged to operations for the year ended 31 December 2014 are as follows:

B o ~ Paid Mm('.‘:ﬁé"rge " Balance
Petrofeum products 4,393,923 4230671 8,624,594
_Mineral products _ o 20,482 17,882 38,374

4,414,405 4248563 6,662,968

{vi) All otherlocal and national taxes

Al other local and national taxes acerued and paid for the vear ended 31 December 2014 consist of:

Real property taxes 185,718

Municipal taxes/Mayor’s permit 37.667

Community 1ax o 7,035
230,420

The above local and national taxes are lodged under miscellaneous account in selling, general and
adiministralive expense.

(vit) Withholding taxes

Withholding taxes paid and acerued and/or withheld for the year ended 31 December 2014 consist of:

- Paid Accrued Total
Withhoiding tax on compensation 454,236 30,631 484,867
Expanded withholding tax 691,731 91,896 783627
Fringe benefit tax 11,163 2,212 13,375
Final withholding tax ) 65,385 5 65,380

1,222 515 124,744 1,347,269

Creditable withhalding tax for 2014 is P878 million, swhich represents balance supported with
creditable withholding tax certificates as at 13 January 2015,

{viii) Tax assessments/cases

The Company’s taxable year 2010 is currently under audit by the BIR, Taxable year 2011 is still open
while a Letter of Authorily was received for taxable year 2013.
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